
i

M 6
ma

v

0
N

a
o m

m
a

v o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00000 0 00000000 0 00000

m O o 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 99999999 0 99999
a

c

00
E
Q

a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 03 0E u N
h co I

M
n co O co O o O O f0

N n W M
CDO O1 O O O O 0 O 0 f0 m

N

M 1n a W
Q ao 5 N N Oi O 00 Y 0 0 h ri t0 vi Cl 0 0 0 0 Io 00 0

0 m
CO

CO
0 CO

C a 0 n n
V CO co N 40

co N N N 0 n10
c

N N Cl V t0 0
m
z

m 0 a s v V a a v a v Sr v v v v v

0
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N N 01010101 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N V
O

o
0 al v a0 M co M fV 1 0 In O M v In W a r m cg

N O N O O O O O N CO O 1 N O

j a s C a a a N a 88a a a

a w w w
o

w w w U 0 0IL
N z

a
u oci

Z Z Z W
LL r

Z

F Zy xILI U v W
m i

w Z W W W W 1 zm V j
c 2 2 a U U U w j y 0 I 1 Y

S U O @ 0 Z y Z ak n
v

J
0

Z to
z V

m

m a 0 p
ce

z W 0 y a 0 W z F 7 Q W
N J

M J nco
J n Y

r z Y W
a

z Z o O o co a
W

CNA

O z O o a F
cm

a gr

as U M U x W
to w a U j O

0
w 1

to z0 U o

G w4

re a m n tu Z J W W W

x
W x

a
W O lL w LL x

2

I x aILL LL LL
v Z Y

Q

7 W CO CO
00 w O w O

a 0 3 U M V CC V d d a 3 y N t F U n N 2 2 a i a a Q
Q a
to co
E 2
T S
a r 2

a E

mre z

In 0 cowo
a

aylc
c

V
3 n a0 Ot O O N an

m a CO n
NO

st

O
N n n n N h OV t0 r M V N N N

M
O CO

O

NO a 0 0 0 h G O O N V 10 0
0 a N CO M M f

M N Y V V a a f 0 N a

a 0

O E
0

W CO
O C CO

U
y W

0

UO O x x x o coco
x

OOo
sm

W Q as o of w
z a coWWW 0 I 1

z g a 0 c c U g LL LL 1 y

v
z

2 W LL a a Qa W o
g g

W W w M
re a z 20

C o 2 2 o q 4 W F222116T z

0
0 J 0 a S r J J J J J et J W 2 re0

W 0 z Q z 2 2 2 LL x J
O S

O
z

LL

W J O W Y W CC CL M J x O
V Y Y Y Y Y Q CO I U M Z J

J W h W Z O Z W

O co v In In a0 co co co co v In In In In f0 CO m O co O m

CO 00
0 IA M a0 n N N N 01 M n 0 n n n m t 04 aA m MV t0 n a0 as m m m W m m m 0 V CO n CO

O ZS m V
A c Z

s
0

g
W w w

S p 0 j W W W W W W W W
W

Ip z U Z Z Z Z Z z z z 0

z c Q W z 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 m
0 c w 0 1 1

5
I

g 5
1

gX
m 0 c0 0 W W W W W W W W

0 o 0 O
c 0 O O x x x x x re ce O W W W W W

Ip m F z z H 000000000U U U U U U U U F 0 0 000000000U U U U F U U U U U0 r t o E W w Z Z Z z Z Z Z z Z J J J Z Z Z Z Z

5 0 00000000 11111
U K K K 000000000 a a a a a a a a LL LL LL LL U



N

ii O

COa
V

0
N

C

a
m

m
0

P O O 0 0 O O O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0

m
0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 66966

a

C
00
E
Q

0 O N 0 0 0 0 0 CO 0 Co 0 CI O O 0 a 0 N 0 0 0 co 1 N CO 0 0E N CD t O OO O O O C O V O 0 C 0 0 m n O 0 co 0 V
Q r g O O 6 6 M Oi CG N O Cif O 4 h t I 1j O N 01 W O OD

O co N O O I h N O C7 N O co t r n Co O CD V 0 N 0 0 hC N N O N V n N 0 0 V O r Is V W M

O VI N N COO W r c i c

Z N

W O O O O O O 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O 0 00 r N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N
VO00

N
CO W aa aaOm

O h 0 N N O O O N N O O N N N O N N O Naa a a osa

0 H
a

01
x

V 1

0 z Oo
N re 0 re

w 0 W C V V x

Q w U

C LL 0 O p m 0 co
0O W W

a
N N

Cd W Q U a Z
111 2

a W
O h W

X J
a
J U y m 0

U K
W

J Jgaa f 0 c4 Q2 Rd wUV o 0 0 x Q z a x Z o Ti 3 J O N F
CO

0 zm axw C W W I COW c00 gca
in om z m O Q a Q Q W N U Q a 0

8a xLL w
0 1 a zcooI J 00X COZWO z z z P z z z w

m 0J00N mWWO 0 OOW W
Q N W Q tY U w m 11 W 0 H 1 0 qa U O Q

0 OJ I O g
re

a m LL LL 0 0 Z a N CO CO O 5000 m m 02u

2
ma

co

a c 2
s E

mre Z COO 44
0

1 I0p0 P cv

o W W
in V LII

W iR ik t 0 cci
N N r

c V V v m a V v V V 0 V m O n M to
N N N N N N N

G
O O N CO

r
0 CO

O
0 m C O V

aO O a X a Oa 2O 8O 33ON
M O 0 N N 0000 N 0 N N N N W

CO
CO0

CO
H

z z Z Z Z
Z

a N
re

ai 00 W O x 0 U 0 0

co w

0 0 0 0 w Z o U w 0 m h Z O
0 Q

z z Q w Q Q Q w
z re 06 o aa a cZ
o

0 W

z W Z F 0 U z 0 Z K Z Z ir
Z

c 2 z WW Z Z a 2 Z F
Z O z Z Q W F

j O p 0 0 Z m 0 0 0 Z Q O O z o Q O w
a U O m w 0 m m K

W O X Z Q 2 O
LL

o O XVX U

U CO w LL O LL LL t W 1 m 0 1 J
1x m x x W m

O W z co 0 Q co O O J F W
0 U H a F W

cc D

O J
J w J

0
J J J Z J w Q CO W J 1 W J x CO Q

1
W

0QWWW 0
W J00 J o JJ

O li 0 Q 0 d co s t U 2

C N p g N 0 r 0 N sr N Is CO 0 O 0 0 N W srpO N n 0

Z h O O O N O N O pp

C
0 O O m o m

x
m 0 0 M 0 W m SiOf O r

0
00

1 F W 000 0 0
z re CC K CG K

z n U zzzzz
F 1 0 0 0 0 0

Z
0

z Z w w w w w 2 0 U U U U U
CC F F F F 1

Z
0 u7 0

z z z z z
0 z 101010100

X
0 Z w V 0 0 0 0 0 z 2 a s as a s

i
0

W W IS O R F 3 W V Q Q Q Q Q 1 J J J J J

0 E 0 z H a 1 z 1 m m x a a 00000U U U U w w 4a a4
ww w w w w

r 1 1 re
g 0 0 0 0 0 zzzzz zzzzzLL LL LL LL LL DD000 W W W W W

5 ti u u Q Z Z Z Z Z 22222 0 0 0 0 0



co C

ii 0co

a

v

0
N

e

0CO

0
0

p 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0
m 9 0 0 0 0 9909000090000000o90990 0 0 0 0 0

O

c

00
E
Q

0 CO 0 r n Of CO N D to CD M 0 0 0 M O 0 0 0 0 O v M 0 CO 0 0 0 OE O i0 r 0 CO f0 co O ID in N r M 0 v M O h co N 0 0 CO N N M O M a V 0 0
D Oj M M C0 fV tC C7 C7 N N n D I N co D N V V C7 4 O O t G m N a C V h 4aa M N N m M N N CO CO I 0 fp f0 10 N CD Of N V V N CD 0C V t0 r r 0 M N 1 N s O

mM g N 0

Z N

D v V V v V Y v v v V v V V V v V v V v v V v V Y Y V 7 v v V

0 0 0 0 000000000000000000000900 0 0 0 0
N C4 Q N N N Q N N N N N N Q N N N N Q N N N N N N N N N N N N

8 N O 0 cn h CO t0 n a a V M M V M O O I O M O m
N N O O O O O O N N O f V O O N N N N

c

aaaaaaaaa 1

a

o
I

r

W

CC M I

p CO N Wp
W

c W O W W z

V IDC1 r A Y CO
w 0

Le
ik r W I J

V
co

N m x W 0 w 1 LT C N Y
a

Z
o p o d r z W w r g U

o
w

N W S O CI I m W
O O O m m w p0

re a o 0 0 u7 w
0

w w s w O LL 0 W W Q 2 m Z a o 3 0 0 1 o pto
m z Z

Q Q Z Q Y Z m V V r
W p r

m H W 0Q ILL Q

o
w o 0 0 0 w 2 0 Q X z z as C a w a o1 Qa m 0 co 0 5

0
Q N o m m x p re C C z m W w W W C p W W O c4 O m Q J1 O Q
ax m m C a r r C v co 0 0 m M M 0 CO x 0 z 5 0 x O O w w Cl w

m
m
m

0 C
S

m N V O O
U u to z z z N

z
C V M N 07 C3 M

CO 0 co r
n O 0 h CO M N 0 0 N n h M M I CO 0 N 0 0 0 O 0 0 N

p 0 D CO 0 N 4 N N f co n r V M 10 N 0 O 0 co N W
W N CD CO O M N 01 CO CO N

cop
CO CO r CO t0 O O O N W M CO M M N M co

O a 10 O 2 p O m 0 N N O m 0 p O m CD 2 n CO O O D CD CO CD
O lA 10 0 0 0 10 M

0
v v O O O 0 0 N N f

O h r hN M M M M M co M 0 0 0 0 N t r P M n n d X

0 0
z z

0 mrocorew co co co

w H F
Z Le Ce J J

V
Ce Z K

E z z z 3 w m m a a a a qo z a a a
co y y m 0 J

Z O 0 0 0 0 r r
0 0 0 0

Iz

0 e7 2 e7 J w w 0 0 0 a H I D n Y Y

ea W j j
V 0 I I r a r r r 0 0 2 0 0 1
c 0 z W W W W W W W CO CO CO r Z Z 7 J J O

Q Q
0 A Q Q Q

J Y J Q Q Q Q Q Q Q Z W W Q W W V m m a a a a m a n a

Y z Q
p p p W 0 0 W W

J O O Q r r p Q

0 J z 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 z z z e w W Q x x o o z z z z z

Q O 0Q 0Q
0 0 0 0 0

J J J CO m m 3 3 3 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000

D 2

Le Le Le Le Le Ce Le

2 1 1 x x S z z z 2 z z O h
O O

z z z
a n J J

J
J Z W W W W W W w z z z 2 O o O r I z W W W o O Z W W W
O W 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 p N x z O
CC 1 0 I Q Q Q Q Q Q Q m m m U 00322z IS CO N CO H H m 0 0 0

Y
m x N v v v v 4V v 0 N m 0 6 N M N r W D us CD m CD 0 0 0 w m m

O
N O CO CO CO 60 n M M CO M M N N N n CD N N N

C13 0 f N N V Y D D 0 CO f r 1 f 1 I r

0

0 0
J z

Y m Z

Z p 0 N

U Z LIZ

O

re J w z z 0 w a w w w
O d 0 N N m CO 0 0 0 0

CC CC tY m0 3 C7 0
m

to fn 0 N to ti to 0 0 D 0 to 0 0 0 N D N D 0 0 O CO co 0 d d d
L m a F zz I rrrr rrrrrrrrrrrrrrrr r F o
0 E w 0 0 w W w w W w w w w w w W w w w W w w w W

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
w

W
w w r 0000

W W W J J J J
z J m K CC CC W x C m m CC m C C re x C CC CC w re x C C CO m CO CO
W r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r r MD MD0Cr 0

ti
CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO U CO CO D CO CO CO 0 CD CO CO CO CO CO CO CO d C 0 p



coa
V

0
N

a
0 0

co0

v 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 000000000000
a

c
00

E
Q

N N N O 0 CO O O O N 0 O O O O O O N O 0 CO O 0 CO 0 Co Co m 0 0 a
E V CO N N O O 0 V 10 N CO O V r O O N CO CO L as 0 N 1O 0 0 n O M Co O

N O 10 h h co 0 r Co 0 IN 0 h N I 0 Co CIS 01 s m oe O O O1 n CG 10 h ca co
N 1 N V V V V W u if CO CO 0 0 1s CO 0 M N N CO co Ic

C N co co Co 0 I N 0 N

rij
z

m V V V v v V V V a V V V V V V V V v a v v
to
0

o o o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 000000000000
N N N N N N V N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N Q Q N N N N

8 O O O O W a O N V a 1 Y a in a v p ap V co CO M M O co 17 17
N N N O z Q NN O O N Q N O O Q Q O O O O o O

0 O N N N N
C

re
0

m 0

0 v W

Z 52 m re

5 0 o a w
Cg LL J co O W

O
g W Y

Y ny n
0

c

O
m m X

o

U v
4 0

o

0
0 J O Co Go m

w a

W Wc7 c7 a w a W
p c00

0 aLU
2 x

0 a r

Nul 2 IuQ00
0 Jw

a
F

wwwcv
O Y w

LLzz Q
ILZW9

W Y W 46
0 La O 0 mzU W U O

rem

a Q 0 W W
re 0000M H Qg UU ZZ m
Q Q 0x g a w

PIRD
J

0 0 d
w00

z O a 0 a g 1 a z w w
a m03X00 2mrC Van H00 Yre m0au mm 0re re

Q

o a
E
0411

r 2

z

E co

ao 0 O CO

CO 0 CO 0 N
O N N W N

V
LO

a N
C V t0 V V V O W N l Co m 4 CO N 0 IC Co V Vr CO CO N 0

50 n W CO N r Co O P O N N Co Mco

U

M NW N N CO O g A Q Q Q N Q S V r n NNI 0 e O CO CO N O
1 VI M N O 0 0 h p N

0 O IN a P a a
0 0 1

V
M CO

O N u O O N N N c
n N COm N 0 COM COM COM COM COM coM COM COM COM COM

0

0 H H
Z Z Z

E

O
D U d a 0 E 2 2E U z Z F 0 0 0Z O
0 0 O O

m z
X 0 0

O 01i DD

w W

c X W J Z W W W WW W W W W w X X

000
a

O U O W Q Y Y a W O U mop

v as a z z O oO w 3 z z
U w Q 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 0 0

2 Z z z
w

z m

w

z r 1 m U 0000000000

QU a ce m R m rr a re m a K aea QeQ re QR a
Q N w rt rt K J z z 2 i i U Z F Z V 2 S S S 2 2 2 2 u3 us
0 3 3 w w 1 J W w z z 2 o m W a w W W w w W W W W w li
O F1 0Og 0ww0mg 0000000U001
Pt mm u mm 0 0000 01 QQQQQ

p N r ls CO CO CO O V V N N CO h M V CO w V V V V V V V V V V V V
N N 0 N N N m CO N O N N O N V V N N

V V 1 m n J N V 1

Z6

m Z
re w
w

F
a Z z Z z w w w w w w w w w

z

w
0

z
8000

g
00000000

I 0 w

c0
c0 C0 C 0 11111111

Z m m F F F mIF
LL

0 w a 0 LL LL LL O
Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z

LL 0 W W W W W O 0 00000000 0

0 F F F F 1 F 1 0 0 0 0 1 LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL F a K a a K re a a a K a K
E w W W W W J J J J LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL W W W W W w w W W w W W

22222 03030303 H F F F F F F H 11 F1

0 00000 aaaaa 111111 333333333333



2
a

ao

0
v

0
N

ci

O
N

O a

W

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 O O O O o
m 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 O o 0 0 0 0 O o 0 0 O O 0 o O o 0 0 0 0 0

a

C

0O

E
Q

OE O o o 0 N n h N W CO N 1 M M W 01 V O W tpp m cLC t0 0 CD W CO m M c O O co a 0 0

V N co M V W N m co c0 N co r m 4 co co c0 c0 co h o a N M co co co N P co 0 0 O o
co aD c0 1 N N O c0 N c0 c0 M P co O m a 7 c7 W aD W N h r r m a N N W a0 c0 La a

0 co
N c0 c0 N 0 N h c0 N a 0 N CO OD 0 CO N c0 0

C

V 0 N 0 C
0

01 N N N 41 c0 M r N V V CO c0 c0 co co c0 h V N O

to
Z

O V V V V V V V V sr V v v V V a v V v Cr V V V v v a V V V V v Sr V V V v V

000000000000000000000000000000000000000000
N N N N N N N N N N Q Q N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N Q N N N N Q N
M 1 CO CO v O M h CO CO CO CO CO CO CD a a a V M v V c0 c0 v3 ID a O N CO

00 v O N N n N N N N N N N 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 M N N O N N N N O O N N N N N N
a aaaaaaaa a a as

o

5
0 6 2

w
W

0 m
Dc w W LL

LU
Z m 0 co O Z H m W W J 5

0
1 muim

W Ce
F o M Z

O c Y 0
0

Or f Z C0 V 0 0
in m

c W O Y c n c w R w
gl

w Y z le alCIOCIIV r v LL I UJ u W 5
Ga W w

m
a Ly it w W t w W 0 0 0 0 U a o a Z a o a z C7I

w
Z

x
J n LLl

W
in

LLl
W

O m it m a m
m m m m m ua J O J 0 Q J

v co 5 x
z

W iR m Q a a Z
w

W W W W W W j Q a a m d y a W 11
LUill

In r
x Z 1 H x

CD W
z

m Q W a u w x w z 0 0 0 0 0 T o m Q

Ix a a a a a a a J Q
a F Z

0 z a
5

Q U w w w w w w

111

m J d U 0 O m w 1 F m W H H H F
QQ

0 w W d W m W WW

N V z
z

F F
m

m W Z
J a m z z t Z

U uj uj uj uj K J U U w w W W W W w w U F U U U
o z 6 co N0 CO

0 w w W W W Q g

in 0

Q N o J
w M x a p W x G o N M E N N n W w w W w w coI CLW WO m m a a a a Q a W x W W W

3 U U 3 x a 3 U s N m 00000 g m m p 3 3 3 3 3 0 ii m U
a

2

T
a r li

m
m Z O n W

0 cn DD c0 c0 M 0 c0 aD D n W 0
Z Z m 0 0 o v M c0 r Wp c0 cn N

M 9 it n N c cc c0 W W W N N N N c M 0 O c0
C co n n o 0 V c0 P

N N
v

M N O N M

M c0 co
0 c0 O

N M M M M M

O a aa N a co ci W O r r 0 com M g NNV N P N W O O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
m W 9 9 0 0

0 0
c f0 V co

04 c0 m WIDN f0 c0 c0 CO m N N N N N N N N N N 0 0 0 O O O O V t0 co co co c0 f 1

1 0 0 co co O O O O O O
co

O O O O O O O O O O O O O n r N N N N N co
co u 0 0

N N 04 01

o
000 600000

Z z Z z Z Z cid
d oodoodoodd
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m WW W W W w
W W W W W W W W W W W

J1
K x x

W
m m

0 0 0 U U U U U U
O

U U Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z Z
w W W W W W U U U Y Y

E w W W w W w w w w w w 3 3 iJ1 m m

m o Z Z o Q o 0 0 0 W w w W W W W W W
O O

0z w w o 0
w w 3 3 3 3 w

4

a

a
O

a
a

Q

a
J J m m m m CO m

MM

lo

c U y g Z Z z z z z z Z z z z m R U U U W F z z z z z z O W W
witrem w J O O m O o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 z z z z z z w w w W W J J J J J J Z z Q a m

w
U a a F F H F I H I I H H F W w w W W w 2 2 m

w r z z m m U 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 2 2 2 w w m oZ 00
2z 001 m m m m m m 0 0 0 m m 2 2 2 2 2 2 m J J z z
m J J w w w w w w w w w w w z z z z z z U c U 1 F O O O o Q o

a a

A s
o w

Ili z 7 7 U w w w w w w w cj w w w 2 2 2 2 2 2 Z Z Z Z Z W W W W W W Y
w LL

O
1 0 0 x 0 0 0 z0 0 0 0 0 0 0 00 X M X N cc ec ce ac ce cc r w o 0

co m co m 0 0 0 U 0 0 0 0 U 0 0 0 0 U U 0 0 0 0UU U cL U IL u U U x x x x

C aD O c0 V v Q aD 13 f 6 n W W W W W W f 011 N N N N N c0 0 aD aD W Wc0 W a0 m V c0 c0 N N
h
N O N

h
N N h

1
N m t0 c0 m m f0 O O O

0
r r u n t aD M M

C N N N N N

n

N N N N N N N N M M M M

0

1zw
re
m

z a
O w

0
o m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m

0 E w w w w w w w w W w w w w w w W W w w W W W W w w w W W w W W W W w w W W w W w w

g a a a a a a a s a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a
5

m 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3



CO

m

cp I
0

v

O
N

Csi
UCO

o a

030

v o 0 0 0 0 00000000000000000000000000000000
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

coa
E

00
E
a

O O 0 CO CO C v 0 0 0 N N V el CD O nO O f0 O O n to O t0 U CO CO to i 10 O 0
o 0

O O O O N co CO t0 0 0 CO W V Is t0 V N I V CO CO O CO CO CO O
V
V CO 1

N
0 O h O tO V CO CO I O

a 10 t
r

O O r O CO O O O a O m O V tri CD m a N O co O Lei 0I to 4 0 O O
m Co CD CO 1 CO 0 CO h 0 n CO V 01 t0 N

0

0 N CO C7 t N N N h N CO 0 COC

O
Z

O V V V V V V V V a V V V a V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o o o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o O
o Q Q Q N N N N N N N N Q Q N Q Q N N N N N Q Q N Q N N N N Q N N N N N Q Q N N N N
8 0 P CO 0 O CO V OD 10 V 0 0 O V V fs fs co Y V Y 5 V I0 0I 03 V 0 V CO O O CO

0 0 N N N 1

a
Q1 N N N a a 0 N N N

0
00 0 0 N N

a
0 0

C

wH Qa
LU

3e z

0 r 6 W
CO CO 0 y j CO W

i a

i he

0 0 n I W x to CO co y 0

n ult zz0 W g
CO OS

v
ai ai U

0

m

x C7 C7 J J U
0

8 1 w w d 0 W o s m co cO V a V 2 W W W
Z

0 w U U Z 0
se wIX

C Q a a W W W J Z
CO CO

A V V
O co

t0 tO m g 6 O H
F W LL LL O O w a

OOOw gg2o W mO Oxw2 C g002algglw w w z z z 3 x
wwI FF

w x z x w x w v w

To V U U U x J Z
n Cp W W W W W W W W

J o O O Z
O

to 2 J W J O
W W W W W

V W O
iii

e N W W W
J J J G n aD U U U U U U UI o m a t J W W W J J J W Q

a s
O O O N 0 0 2 H H H H H I H O LL F 2 2 w F cd E O 0 a C 0 0 0 0 3

a
3
a

re a0

a

C 4
m
W

CC V

0a r a

CC Z
c CO o

CO8 N

s

a

C O W O t0 to OE G
V

COO co O t0 t0 t0 to in t0
VIpII

COY N
N N CO COO M u N W CO N CO A co N sr r

0 el a
Vi

LO

N N Nat n O s m m sr N N N N N 0 N LO MD LC N N II 0 CO N CO LO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CO 0 0 N a
N N O h r V V V V V V V V n h n n n n n h h n r r n 1010 t0 N N t0 N t0 to

2
W

W
h

f co N CO CO Cn CO CO CO CO N C7 CO CO N
w I F F F I F F F F F F I F F
a Ia x x CG z x z CL CC CC x x x x Z

a a a a a a a a a a a a a W
E 6 Joda0000aaaaaaa aataaaa

m
01 2 2 x W 1 I I F 1 1 I 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

co co 0 W CO O N N m m rn m jj j j 7
13 3 3 3 5 2 2 0 W w w w w w w a a a a a a a a a a a a a
0 W 00 i re a re a at x x a a c a c a a a a a a a a Y Y Y Y Y Y Y Y

CC CC t

0

CO F F O x x x x x x as a a1 aaa 1 a a a a a at at as 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
a a a O g ga x a a a a a a a a 1 a 1 1 1 1 1 1 a 1 1 1 w 0 0 0 0 0 O O O oO 0 CJ w W 1 I Z Z Z Q CO CO m CO CO aO 00 CO Ce
Z Z Z CO CCI D 0 0 z a a 0 0 0 a a o o o o o o o o o o o c7 c9 w w W w W W W W a

U U x x g g 1 z z Z Z z Z z tre re Ce Ce a m m m ma m
Q

m
Q

m m
LL U U U o o W W W W W W W W I I 1 I I I I F I I 1 I I O C3 CO CCOO CO S 0 W

2 2 2 Z Z a at d 2 2 2 Ca x It aC CO CA co co co co m co n co co co co H n 7 7 7 m

co O O O N O OV V0 N CO CO CO CO CO CO CO O 00 CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO 0 0 CO 0 O GI 0I CO 0 CO
0 CO CO CO 0 0 10 t3I O CO CO e M en Co M N N N N N N N N N N N N N CO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 CO

C
f7 C C V N u t0 V 10 10 0 0 CO m 00 CO m r 1 1 1 1 1 N I r 1 r 3 t co co co co CO co CD CO Co

e

Zzw
ct
ct

z a
X w

0
0

3 e 2 O 2 2 cc 2 aC 2 C 2 CC ee CC CL 2 cc 2 2 2 re ce 0 re ce as Ca CC EY CL 2 K CC K CK 2 2 2 2 Ca 2 K
0 E w w w W w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w W w W W w w w w w w w

r r Q QQQQQQQQ Q QQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQQ ti Qti QQQQQ
F5

CO



mg
o0

a

0
N

N

8 a
0 0

030

o o 0 0 O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a

c
30
E
a

m 0N 0 0 N CO CO V 0 W N 1 0 CO N 0 0 p n CO 0 0 0 0 N O A r CO 01 N 0E in m 0 0 m co 0 N h CO n a m m m N a m O m N 0 0 0 0 co C a o a m l O

N 0
03 W 0

f 3
1 6 W C1 Ni Ni C7 n n of m m 1 m 1 O 01 m m m m C 0l C O

m n N M 1 1 co a h co o m
m 01 a O h m N 1 N CO

m N P N 0 C a N a co N

O 01
m a

Z

O a v a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a
M o 0 0 0 000000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N OI CV N N N

aaa n M n P v m u co O w aa m a a in m 0 n 0 0 a m
0 0 0

a w
O O O N 0 0 0 N N N N N co N N N N N 0 0 N 0 0 0 0 0

aaa a aaa a
N O

Za

w a

p u rnn n 0
X Y

J

m 0 w w Z
CO H H 4t

2 W S
1
7

U a Z z
a

U N

g co co co 2

ZV
7

r

O
p

0 li gy Y 2 d d 0 a i Z a 1 Z 2

O

W
a

o Zo w U0wc0CC rWZ WOU N Q ZQrn
r C4 a U2

CO

w3 gSmaaaaaaga 2 p waUo1 w

o
o mg OUwwwwwwU

o a N p r
w x

J a 0 1z 0 W 0 0 0 0 0 0 W O w 41
H

X Ce W S
X a U

Q
mmXmmX

z LL

m I v

To 4 w 0 z v p H z O a a a W O w w w w w w gJ y o111yyy i p a w o z m
0 Jm m

F JOm as z e333333a I w m W

c 0 3 0I w I li re 0
et

U 3 W
Ce

U co co 0 Z ti N CO CO y co Z O O O H n z re
Q
m N
E 12

a t 1

occ z n m m
db o

t r

m D I
CO

co

ik i ik N

N
5

aaC

O O O
2D O M

m a 0 0 m m 0
0

0 N N C1 r I
O

N
CO

O
m

C N W a O OM m O m N N m N f h a m m o Of
N N N

N M 7 M 0 N 0 CO 1n 0 N O O CO mm mm mm n r m 0
O

N C7 C7 c N N

N a N M M M 0 CO 0 M in n N
N 0 N N N N N N CO a 0 f f 0 a

0
z 0 0 0 0 U U U z
H V Z Z z z Z zZ a y rn CO n CO CO 0
d a F W W W w w W 0

w 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
E z O W Z
Z Q W W W W W W W

0 a J CO CO CO CO 0 CO 0 CO
Z

m O Z Z Z Z Z Z F 0 2 w w w w w Xm I re rt w ee re w w w a O re a a CL

0 0 00 z w 3 0 z Z0 1

m m m 0 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 a a U 2 a
m x a m 3 3 3 3 3 0

a a a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o a a y y 0 2 2 g 2 2 g w U 0 y 0 0 0 0 0
LL LL LL n a a S a S a S S 7 7 20000000203W w S K S S LL
CO CO CO

W S S 1 1 S T S T
Z Z H 2 Z

W W W W W W O
5 J F S CO I

1 J J
J W W W W W W W W Z 2 w w w w w w W

o U J Z W W W W W J ZW W W U U U U U U U U a D W X a CL re a a n p W W 0 0 0 O U J W
3 3 3 0 0 0 U 0 LL LL LL LL LL LL J 2 a 3 0 0

LO m CO m W a a a a a a a a aa aa N O N N N N N N CO M m a a a a a a N
M 0 O O O N CO 0 1 N 1 h h h P N co F N N

C m m m N N N N N N N Cr n Y CO 0 1 4

w

Z 1 1 F 1 I F F F I F 1 F F F F 1 F F F F F F I H 1
We z z z z z z z z z z z Z z z z z z z z z z z z z

w
C w

w
w

w w W w w WW W W WW

qw
W W

ww
w

SW
w W w W

1Sw
w

re W

r4 4
1

4 4 4a a4 4 4 4 4 4
W

1
4

W

1
4 4 4 4 4 4 4 14 4

a

O W W W 6 W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W

X 3 re K K re K ce re S S S rY S S S re S S S S S K S K K 11

0
0 1 F I I 1 F 1 I 1 I 1 I I 1 1 1 F 1 I 1 I 1 1 I

w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w w
LL o ce re re ct F 000000000000000000000000 1O E w w w w

3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 W w W w w W W
CCeCCCCLCLCGCL

U
N

3 3 3 3 N N y 00 CWn N Wn y CO y CO U W W W CO
W W ILO WWWW

CO LL LL LL U LL LL LL



m

Z

0
r
a

V

0
N

0
C

3 m

CO0

a 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

m
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

a

c

30
E

u o u O O O 0 0 N u 0 0 0 0 N u 0 0 0 u M 0 0 CO CO m f m 0 h 0 0 M N 0 N 0
E CO N CO o 0 0 0 o co N co o o N n co O o co co co N r co 0 V O m n 0 0 0 0 0 O V 0 V 0

N u n N m m m m n m m m m r C u a m C M n C u CD n M C7 u 0 u O 10 0 0
N N n M N N N

N r N
r M n

M
o M

10 CO m V m N 01 CD M V 0 V V N Vc r r r r r

m
r b1 O

z

CD V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V
M 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O O O 0000000000000
0 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

8 m
r

Vnmmo n Vinm maaaaaNN
N

010 ana am iniiAAAel
N O

r

N O r N M O O N N N N N N O O O O o O O O M r O O r N O N N N N N

c

ra aaaaaaaro aarararrrr

30
w

LLJ
J 0 a

1
a

0 n CC p
m y LT6 Q 7 Co

CO 0 y W a 0 W Q Z a
ox W gap CO o LL

0
c W

u 0
Y

U 0 y 0 Z ZO U W a w
o c z0 a z c0aaceaCCWCCOOZWO

re

rN
0

o0m WQ i
2 Cimuw oz Wazo2COJm

ogN O
0

ma 0 Z conW32ujIL
n r

m 2 3 3 3 0 0 0 c9
o

y N o w o z N O o z w
ON nf wwwwxzzzzz zCJ t9WKmm LL g 0ooazcc

v SI w a c v v v v 0 W W W W W 0 0 W Co J 4 O w O g p v a
W g Om a w Z t9 p C9 C9 O W w X J J c9 a

J
m 0 m m m J FO 0 a

LL x x x x 7 w o w o Q
a LL

QoQ 2 Q 0 QO m am
a s LL f w w g 0 0 0 O O 0 O 2 LL O w 3 j o ce K m o w J 4a 3 Z C9
Q

0 6
ET
a r

3
m Z o n m m m m CO CO M M M M

N 0 CO C CD CA CA CO n n n n
o u w a m 0 n 0 Co C C1 0

c N V n o v a o V m co
0 V V v V V V V a N 09 v Lo m v v v v

O O n 0 m M 0 n N P CO m N 0 0 0 0 0 O 0
r M n o wi

0 O O O O
m m CO m CO n N CO CO Q M CO o M n O r N n V

N W n 0 0 0 CA N O M t M to V N u
N N N N

m 0 W m V V 01 n N N Ns
r

CO O co N N N n n n n n a a a a a r M N 0
M V O NI r r r 0 O

u N N N N N r

W W Z Z
co N N

O O
7 Q 0000 Z o a GQ H H

cc cc
w j 7 N Q re Z Z

E
a

C c C c c Ya tw IX

cD

Z U y y y fA to fA m W W
O O

y
Z in

0 o zQ Q 0000000

y

m 12 o 0 0 0 2 p 6
Y3333c000000zz a yf W Q a

a Co Q Q Q Q w O 0 0 0 O w w C C 99 C c t C w 7 Q a Q ce a a a a
0 o w F o 0 0 o a a a a a a o 0 x a a x x rc a o z w w QF o

zr z m z z z z a Q Q Q x 14411D0F 2 0 0 0 0
cow win LL LL LL LL LL LL LL p w W 0 0 I ce a ce o
Q 0 W W

6 0 0 0 Q Q m o to m Cn c N LL Q J J O
o re y LL LL u LL Z 0 0 0 0 0 0 O J J J J J J J Y F a a a Z Z J W LL o H H F F
2 W 0 7 LL LL LL LL W 0 0 0 0 0 LL

W W W W W W W u a 1 2 2 0 0Q Q W co co VJ co

Cww 00000 J
m n m O W O O V V V V CO m m m m CO CO O n N N n n 0 O n M M M CO

o V O m M M M M M n 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 M M M M M M M n u u co O O r u CD m 0 0 0 0
73
C

N N M M M M h 10 an u1 u CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO r r

CD

zZW
CC
CC

w
0 a
0

W
LL

CC

0 O FO W W W W W W W W W W W W W
0 E 0000000000000

W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W W
F a a K K a 0 a a K a O Q 0 a K a K a a a 4 a 0000000000000
a LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL 0 0 0 0 a 0 a a a a a a a



m
a

V

0
N

of
a

0 m

a
0

00000000000000000000000000000000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

0 00000000000000000000000000000000 O 9 9 9 9 9 a
a

c

z0E
0 Of Y N 0 0 U 0 0 0 0 h N 0 cc 0 CO 0 0 0 N co O c4 co 0 in CO 0 O 0 a 0

QC
O CD 6 i0 h O O U0 O O O O N N M O O O O V O O CO O O CO h O CO p 0 W N O t O
W N M 6 O to N O O O 6 1 6 N co N N N O 0 Ol CO O 6 N Oi 6 O N
N t N r 0 p 0 n 0 N O N cc 1 CC1 N CO M 0 nt 0 CO CO Co 07 CO 0 z N n N 0

C N CONW
h N N V ClN 0 r

N
T

N
Z

O Sr V V a V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V v V V V V
m o 0 0 0 o D o 0 0 0 0 o D 0 0 0 0 0 0 o D 0 00000000a 0 0 0 0 0 00 N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N

nwao co co8La 8mmaa aaaaaaa V Oroot8ao
N N N N Q N O O N N N N0000000000000000

O O N N O O N
aoo aaaaaaaaaaaa 1

W O O w3 y t

LLO
m co o 0 w 0 M a O WWi W 02

g 0 2 Z

J co50
g a v v N LL

G o
OW

a
U to6

A U O w W c9 m Z z m
n U p t 2 N 0 Z Z

1
x W 0 06 Z U F 0 F

LL 0 O 0
CO g

o
IXc

u

V 0 wZnmaaa w2Wi 0sW 00 Cr U
0 0022 gw z LL Fm LL a

N J z0 O n J W
F W H O

2 O 1 0 to Z O t co u Y
L co

h
r W J

m a it it a w w C7 W z U
k

x p U 6 p p
U W CJ 0 1

m g A y x 0 0 0 FF0 r w
a vUi F w Z p y LL w m III ai g w o

cc w w W U 4a g 0 0 H o
Zz

a LL m i z z O z a m
o W LL LL W f H H Q F F O O

rN
O Q O Z m O JO m OJ cc W

o O LL LL d J a4 z z z 3 3 w ug w a Q J a w W O Q D y to p o
aN 0 0 W

0 0 0 0 O O O x o U w F U 0 0 0 2 w w Q J z m
m D U U tL 3 to U U U z F F U z to H CO 3 H C7 2 W O a c7 co LL to I

a

E m
ti c 1

a E
o

ce Z h t co co to O O O 0 0 O

8
0 0 N N N C 01 01 CO CO CO CO CO

0 CO0 pp p0p 1 IDp CCp I0pp p0p 4pp 0 ttpp 0pp p0 CO0
p

0

0 i it it it it it it W it it it it it it

C
o N n n n N CO CO N V O V V V V V V V V V V V V V V V 1 V

p O V V V
0 V in in co O N h 04 N I N N O 0 0 0N 0 0 0 N 0 W CD O O N co

0 0 0

2002066
0 0 0 0

Nc N 0 0 0 0 0 0 CO CD N N V
0

N N
O 0 0 0 N V C CO a CD V ee a NN cal fl N N n7 a a a

N N O010 0 f N
N CO CO CO V N N N 3 sr V CO 10 aD N M Ct N 1 1 N

w w
W wW W

I W W W Z
0 000 to
CO N W W 0

E 0 o o toE X W w w w
0

coZ Z Z Z Z J Z Z Z F
F

c O O O O g to to to F W
m p

c

a K Q C7 c7 C7 p ro

z z z z co w Fm W xLL

Z
w
Z z 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 U Y

0cc cc CO w m U
a 0 0 0 w w z Z Z Y Y W W O C7 O O O C7 C9 O C7 C7 C O C7 O C7 L m
0

0 0 0
0 J J J J

w Z Z 0 0 0 C4 CC CL CL rc cc d ce m tY cc re z cc cc 3 3 z U x

0000
O

JQ w
Ce re CC

W W
Q of 0 0 W 3 H 0
S S 2 LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL LL w x

w a co

J J J J tY Y
W W W It i Z 0 0 0

fn n u f N O 0 fA c0 CO N y J 2 2 O 3 0Z
m m m w n 7 z z z U w w C0 O 0 x

ovaorz 33333333333333332 aaa
00 0 0 0 01 D I 1 1 CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CD CO CO D CO CO CD CO CO V V CO V

0
N N N N S r r n 0co O O o C7 M M h CM M O n m 0 O N 0O 00 to Co CO CO to to to to to0Co to to co to 0Co Co to to 0to tD to to to to 0to 0to to to to N

cm

zZw
W

re U
J

n

x 0
0

0
LL

W W UJ W W W W W W W W LU W W W W W W W W UJ W W W W W W W UJ W W We W 1o et w ir w riO E 00000000000000000000000000000000
g g

00000000000000000000000000000000 m CO m m CO CO
U a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a a J J J J J J



0 2
f0

Si O

to0O v
E
N

L
0

01

O d

O to

as0

a 0 0000000000000000000000000000000 0 000000
W O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

c

00
E
a

N M d O N N In CO m
coots

W 0 M O c0 N 00 tb M 1n O c0 N 1 N W O N CO Y 01 0 0E W N W W n u O n t0 tD 419 Y N CO O W h W h n 39 1 W Y M r W O 7 V N M 10 M
03 n r CO CCI ch of of V m O Co n v v O N W Oi of h

s C0

O 6 n G r C c7 O N N of I 1 MV V V M N 0 NN N N n CO C0 4

n N
N c 0 M c0 CO M M CO V N N N 1

V V

Z

O V V v V V V V V v v V v a V v V V V v V V V v V v V V V v v a V v v v V V v
0
00000000000000000000000000000000 000000N N N QV N QV N N N QV N N QV Qc N V QV N N QV QV N QV QV N V N N N N QV N N N QV N N NV

N O V n n I n 7 a V W o V Y W 1n a 0 O c a a a a o v co co o v00 NNN

Va a as aaa NC

0
CO

W CO Y
Ce

CC
Y

0

0 Z
cc F

0 D

N a
O Q

w 3EE a m Q
C O O M CC co o U a g z z
n J N S

g5re
U w 7

m Q Y Y X
Z

0 a
m

w 2 7 x 0 9
v 0co CI

7 Y CO M CO CO 0 O u CO O CO CO Z j U M O O O O W O C Z U
O

0
m m CO CO m

J J r J J J J 0 H
W

W W f 0
m 7 W 1 J Z

r F 1 1 H F 2 J 2
0

O n 2 O 2 O O z Z
W w Z O 7 0

m

re ce Z a d aQ 0 W
W
he

a o
z z z z z

Z r Z
w J

0 z
J

z
J

z
J

z 0 0 Z 0 0 0 m o a 0 0 y K F o j
m

LA re a a a a w w w w w w F w c9 O O i O i i V v Z U J J 1 Om
F

m 1 F p m
1 m

1
m

1
m z z O 0 Y J

0 0 U W V O W 0 0 O
xto

V
W 0 0 0 0 0 0 J 0 O J z O J 0 J 0 J 0 g x

to W F 2 V 3
O 0 m m m m m J 7 J W 7 7 7 d 7 J 7 7 7

a W U fJ U m IL CO O U Qm d J
a W d N N N N 10 U Q U U Q O U Q U Q U Q U N d 2 1 Z Q m 0 0 0 O c0 2 an
as

E m
io

r m

a r S
8 E
0

zm

S o00G 00 LC LC 03 i vni
o W N W O 10 CO 10 m 10 N 1n CO O V V R V r W W W a M Z

V 0 o N 10 N N M M O t0 CO CO 1 1 CO CO V V CO N n n N cC n N CO V V O 0 CO CO n n m W V N f N V V V V V
C M O W I 0 0 0 W W n CO N M h W 8 8 1 0 0 fh 1
N

M N M M M M M M M g in O co tp
0

co N 3
O 1n ro 0 0 0 0 0

0 0 CO nt0 I I I I V V V V 1A 1A m to t0 m m m W
01

N
p

J N N N N N
n n 10 n 1n CO N

M to 1 C9 M N N a V v
a a a a a a n

0
h N 10 CO o 1n11 11Y N N M CO m CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO CO M M r n 0 O o M M M M O

O CO CO CO 0 CO 0 CO CO 0 CO CO CO
X

U 0 U U 0 W W W W W W W W W W W W W
co 0

0 Z Z Z Z Z 0 0 0 0 0 0 U 0 0 U U 0 U
W Y 0

E Y Z Z z 2 Z
0
i

O U

Z m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m Z Z Om
Q 4 Q g Q Q W W W W W W W W W W W W W g O

O O J W
p uw Iuul uull uuI1 LLLLJJ n n n A fA m co co co co in CO U 0 Z PP OR
c m J J J J J

y W 2 g g W W W WJ W W W W W m m m m m m m m m m m m m 2 V 2 col
v C7 o O C7 C7 O

w 0 0 0 0 O a a a
CC Ma Q C7 7oQQa0000000a 00 J occcc 0

m c 000Ommmmmmmmmmm a mmmmmmm 3333az
7 Z Z Z Z Z J J J J J J J J J J J J J P W J Z a a a a a 0 0 0 0 0 0 V
a W W W W W

S S q q5 g5Q S S S 5qS
Z Z O a ILL ILL IL W W U U m

g
m

g
m

g
m 2 J

Ll
O V Y F J J J J J

O O 2

w w w 0X 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
z

U 0 0 0 o F F U LL a F w W W W
W W 0 0 0 0 7 0ad o zzzzzzzzzzzzzYYZO00 xx aaaaam

v t c I I t W W W W W W W W W W W W W CO CO 1n 1n M M c0 CO CO to CO
CO S V V V V N 1nO I I I 1 N CO CO CO CO CO CO CD CO CO CO CO CO CO M M in n N N

0
M M M M f0 N CO

N N N N N N M M M M M 1h M M M M M t7 M yr V 1A 11 CO N CO CO CO CO CD CD CO
m

FZw
re

ma
X C m

o c r rr r r r o errr
m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m m wee 1 m m m m m m

g
co m co co 03 03 CO 01 M CL1 CO CO CO 03 CO CO CO CO CO CO CO 03 03 CO CO CO 01 CO co co co co 0a 0a 0 0

Z5
co

a a a a a a



7
f
a

CV

0
0

al 9 R e 9 g 9 9 9 R 9 g 9 g 4 @
0

0

E o
CO 0 0 0 0

COk 0
03 CO a

k 2 CV co

7
V V V

0
as

k G k k
s

m 0 f

o
u

0 0 k
0

o re 2 1 R A
a co0

z
O k k ko R

m al 2 0
0 ca k i A 3 E

0 I CO U J k7
k w

o
a

o 0 2 2 IT 1 l
co ID 0

g v K o m2

k

a
2 2 8

g C
kT s

k k 7
co m co co

W 5 3 E 0
ctrecerc

0 uJuIE
z w alwwu
A 2 0 0 0 0 M

C 0 7 I2 0

CI k k 0 cc Er z

a qg
Z w R co iD 3 3 W

0 0 0 0 0 0 2 u Z V

k 7 k
k

I g k 8
1 L co
re o 0 o

0z j 5

E I I I 74 2 2 7 eu

0 E o 0 0 Q 2
COW

2 2 2 2 2 1 0 k k 2
70070000 g

u a a 2 I F o I o o F 2



A
7

City of Dixon

December 15 2014

Topic Year to Date Financial Summary as of November 30 2014

Presented By Paula Meyer

Presentation

Items to note are indicated by a letter that corresponds to a letter and explanation below 58 of the

fiscal year has elapsed

A Council is 70 spent due to the cost of strategic planning

B Public Relations is 76 spent due to the transmittal of the entire annual Main Street

contribution at the beginning of the fiscal year

C Admin Finance is 87 spent due to the annual payment of the Property Liability

and Workers Comp insurance premiums

D Street is 72 spent due to the early delivery of the salt and the under budgeting of
fuel use

E Traffic Maintenance is 73 spent due to seasonal summer spending

F Band is 76 spent due to seasonal summer spending

G Capital Funds are 109 over spent due to
a FY14 ambulance purchase completed in FY15
b FY14 annex reroof completed in FY15

c the unbudgeted Bloody Gulch Bridge and Dutch Road washout
d the unbudgeted Library HVAC and roof expenses repairs

H Restricted Capital Funds for streets are 118 over spent due to spending the current

year and prior years accumulation of Motor Fuel Tax
I General Fund Benefits is 84 spent due to the Workers Comp insurance premiums

coming in at 150000 over budget We have had several injuries the last few years
J General Fund Supplies is 73 spent due to the delivery of the salt for this winter and

summer seasonal spending

K General Fund Other Expense is 71 spent due to the transmittal of the entire annual
Main Street contribution at the beginning of the fiscal year

L Utility Fund Supplies are 92 spent due to the high number of unanticipated
infrastructure failures this year

Also attached are the month end cash and investment balances

Recommendation

The administration recommends the Council accept the accompanying FY15 YTD Financial Activity and
Cash Investment reports



o en 0 0 C o C o m d x c 00 a O J Dni c 2 0 0 001 D r v T 1 tn 0 D 0 n m 1 0 1 Ln r y
Y D Q J J d N 7a CT O N 7 C 7 0 Q N N w w Q N C o 3

a Q C 13 w m s M O1 tOi MCD
y U r m 0 N 7 a a n 0 a n

y N N 0 3 7 A 0 N 1n N d A p 01

a0 Z j N C N
N y n 0 0 9 3 Z

c

l
7 y O

A n
A ry J 7 01i a C C 0f

7 w
N n N r O n 10 7 Fri J O J 01

N

n O N H 01 ir

m 3
01

A 0 y O A N
0 7 n 0 C N 3 co N

wn
01 r J Ti ID 3 N 1n DI 0oo

0
0 c 3 N n 11

N

T

00 A 00 W N N 00 N N lA W lN N A N U1 00 N N N N H 19 F In 01 NA N N V 0 CO 0 t I 0 A IO A 01 A V V V A V W 1 01 to A N N 0 W 0A C01 O ID N O 00 W O1 lD A A N N N 00 W N In O N O ID W A N A 01 N V1
nN N00 0 U1 pV L010 P4 A CO U1 O N LO i O O1 O In N O O inI 00 01 U1 o O OLID O O

W
O V 00

T O ID A O V A N ID 00 A M 00 0
0

A I0 0 0 0 0 0 Gl O00 In 0 V 00 0 In 01 In 0 01 O 0 01 00 11 0 0 0 0 N e

701
I y

U1 N 4 01 V V1 H In N F W N P DO F O1 01 00 01 O 00 1 0 W O V V 4 N1 01 F IO I1 W F W1 ID VanW A 00 U1 W A W 14 01 U1 10 01 VI W A W W V N V N F V 00 N 0 CO N V A N 01 0 CA CD r A00 h n A V 01 O 1D N 00 O OM W N A O O V F1 ID 00 A A O 01 Lc 1 F O A P A 0 OW ID In N 01 W A N 01 N 1 ID U1 01 f 01 1 V ID 0 V i A i co V i 4 O W Ol ID In N F V W A0 In W U1 A A F V 00 01 A 01 U1 01 01 0 A N 00 A F IO V W W 01 V N 00 V 0 N IO 00 V LO J
A 01 CO A 01 01 0 N CO W 1 ID O N jF LO A 01 V M A 05 N 01 tP N N V 0 V W N O 01 N V N

OND
T l A 1

w

X

I
1

e

01 1 V A 01 V 01 CO U1 O 01 A V In N V A V A A CO A V V 01 O I V In ID
e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ate

n

N N N N P 1 N Ln
N N

Q0
N N N N

N 01 P 0 N N N A O a
O A

mD
W N N Lo A CU

N N l0 O1 N N IO N J e O D TA W 1r co 00 N H 0 03 V A A V W 10 In CV 01 0 N N N N 10 N W V V W ID W A
JN N ID N V N N V U1 A N F V D 00 lD C n00 Co i 0 i i Ul 01 Vl N W M N CO 00 01 A N V N

01 N A A A ID 00 0 A N 01 01 W ID A Cr
N U1 V CO v A A A A N N CO 1 V CO

A

O O 01 V O O W 1 N e

ee a ee X eee

T

W N W N N U1 VI F

O N
p W N V N ID N 0 A U1 W W N

O ID CO W A IO CO ID IO ID V A W co
O A 00 00 O 01 A F 01 O IO e V 01 H c

IIpp 0
4
A 0 0 N VI ID 00 r ID 01 N n

O O 01 0 0 0 0 W 0 O O 0 ID O 0 0 oo

FO O N0 0 0 00 0 0 A 01 0 0 0 n T
O

C r U1N
I 1 w 1 O T 17

N V N N V N N W W VI

VN N N N N In O N W ID 00 O In V V 0 N N in n N ID 04 001 ID t11 LO CO A CO A 00 V 01 CO A N 01 01 0 ID 1 00 F c
0 3 7

SO N A A N Ol 00 W 01 11 N C 01 P4 4 A l0 D 1t Oo ID In W A y Q n O
01 V N I 1n ID N U1 A O V t N 1 A O 00 al N W A 00 01 r c7
w co 01 U1 w w 00 V1 N N r A CO A U1 N A w U1 00 00 w U1 V x
V LO V 01 ID 01 W N CO 10 N W A V N ID 00 V W W U1 N W 0 w

N 5
In N V A W ID W to In 01 V1 U1 01 01 W 01 a O
V N N ID N N 1D ID ID V V 1 W N A N A
e e X e e e e X e X e Ise a e e

n

1

V In N N V1
VI

IN11

I 14 I 00 00
C

U

0 0 0 0 0 o

g a
O r T0 0 O 0 O

Re

NO
A A A A y r1

W W W W W W W W V f Ol

A A al 01 01 A A A e 31
Cf

W W 1 W a V W W W h 2
W W V A w V W W W 0

C

e

ae a ee e e e

T

O1 T A 01 Sr N V
A Iy 01 A W I

VV
p
W W W

CO

O O O O
U1 ID

01 O O O W W O O
CO

O C D

O 0 0 O o I IO O 00 W O W 0 0
Oo 19

0 0 0 0
O 7 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

A
m

A A I N F W A a e N
L

A A V r i U1 V O A A 0 A V N A N D w
LO N 01 W ID H 00 W W ID In A 01 W V U1 ID

N W ID O l0 N co O O N O N N W U1 W 0 OC
In N CO 10 V O 0 ID N 0 N i In 40 OD N

m V A 01 O 01 OD A O 00 CO 0 00 0 0 A V1 0 V

IO ID N CO 00 Ln A e 00 4 0 O ID In O O1 W 01 In TC

aLot

I V1
0

1 e
01 V W NU1 01 01 01 00 O V N

e e e e X e at e e e e e e

T

N 1 N I N I v
W N 0 A In W N V1 W N N N 01 W

N V N W 01 01 A W 01 N In P4 1 01 V to NV V 01 1 CO

0 1 1A 01 O 0

F 1 A O A e 00 N A N 01 N O I 1n 01 A ID O 00 U1 C
In b 0 In O 1 co r ID In i i 0 V 0 V O 1 1 i 01 i In 0 O O

W 00
0 0 W IO N A in co U1 O N O F 1 O O 0 O

70fp0 0 0 00 N V1 U1 U O O O

N W W W r W D i
O A N N LC 1 00 ID W 0 N N In W ID W 01 nl

O N w A 01 A O
p 00 co O 00 00 In 0 00 W N A W 01 N A 01 N A W 0 n

A 00 N N A A 11 00 00 00 01 O 01 coO 00 l0 01 O C n

O W ID ID N CO U1 N U1 i W A 01 U1 N N I0 i n CO00 00 i i i i i i I i i W 00 A A 0 N W C

V N IO O ID IO 00 V 01 N N A 01 A V A 01 V A A h 00 01 01 N A h

N tr V W In 01 CO 00 0 00 W U1 O A N 01 N A V U1 lD lD A N IO O1 non

M N 1 e

A N N r A A A W
14

A to A A A A Cr 01 00 N
W V ID 01 1 N VI A N W N 01 IO O N F l0 1 Oo 00 0

X e e e e e eA e e e X X e e e e X e e X



n K K K 3 K K K K K 3 K N T N 3 N r
In Q d C Q Q C Q EL Q EL C c

N Z
CDm 0

W OJ 0 inOJ OJ OJ OJ OJ OJ OJ OJ OJ OJ 0 OJ

CU
CU

D3 M 7 7 7 7 7 0 7 M 7 C M
Z a Q CL CL Q Q a C a Q OJ 7 3 00 MI

CL Q T T
n n n n n n n n n n n m n 0 m n m 0 3

OQ

v 0000000000 v a v CL C 0
in
1 v w a MI c

A
CO3

n cu cu
CO

r

n
n n n0
Co vVI

5
00000000000000000000 w mCr C1 C1 Q1 P N N N in in W N W O O O
U1 U1 u1 L1 U1 111 U1 u i U1 0 O 10 U1 VIO 0 Ul I 0 1 1 D D
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 to O O O O O O V O I
o 0 0 000 0 0 000 0 0 0 000 000 00 0 0 0 0 0 0 00

K
I I I r

N I I I N 1 I I I I I I tD 00 V I N C
0 s

F N N N 1 N N N N 1 1 1 i 1 N 1 rt
W W W W N W W W W O O 1 A N tD W LID
N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N N v
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 flJ

rt1 I 1 1 1 1 1 I 1 1 1 1 1 I I I 1
DV V V V 01 01 01 01 01 U1 to VI VI VI N VI

Gl W N n D

tD 00 co o d
0o W Ol 00 0

al 1 1 W 1 1 I 01 oo d Z n

N O N 00 0 1Z
f d

n
o

5

F
d

D
1h W W N N o
t OO OO OO 0 0 3

W N Ql T

W 00 W 4N 01 j 0 r
4 CO

0
t0 0000 tW0 to 1

N

00 V U U 1 00
00 to O O 1 W 01 C1

F O O V tD lJ 01 r

A i N O O W O tD In
4
N fD

N 0 O O W to 00 V 10 I

F N 0 0 10 tD 01 0 U1

N 1 W

W O V 01
T

O in N R
cn N 1 N

N
1 1 N ID 1 1 1 1 1 1 N N

J1 1 tD
W tD N N

70

DVIrt
T

C ni
1 vi Q

O So 0

00
1 1 1 co

A WI
1 1 OJ

W I
W

T m
Co 01 11 01 F ul n C 0

J 0
LO 0 0 C1 NJ 171

0 0 O in 00 N
F

1 O 1 01 O 0 WID 01 VI

1 0 A 0 0 1 00 V
D

O 1 0 O N W 00
0

U1



4
Meeting Minutes of the Dixon Public Library Board of Trustees

Monday November 10 2014

In Attendance Director Lynn Roe Carol Linkowski Terry Dunphy Roberta
Vanderlin Carol Chandler Glen Hughes Steve Hill and Sharon Thompson

Absent With Notice David Badger and Tracey Lawton

Meeting Location Theresa A Devine Room on the lower level of the Dixon Public Library

President Carol Linkowski called the meeting to order at 535 pm

Citizens Comments There were no citizens present and there were no citizens comments

Trustees Comments There were no Trustees comments

Approval of Minutes Steve Hill made a motion to approve minutes of the October 14 2014 Board
Meeting Terry Dunphy seconded the motion and the motion was approved Sharon Thompson stated
that she had been absent with notice at the Board Meeting on October 20 2014 rather than absent
without notice as noted in the Meeting Minutes Glen Hughes made a motion to approve the minutes of
the October 20 2014 Dixon Public Library Board Meeting as presented subject to the above noted
change of Sharon Thompsonsstatus Carol Chandler seconded the motion and the motion passed

PresidentsReport There was no PresidentsReport

DirectorsReport In addition to her written report Director Lynn Roe informed the Board that she had
the 30 down payment check for GRP 409200 It needed to be signed by Lynn as well as a Board
Member Carol Linkowski signed on behalf of the Board Lynn also said that she has sent Mike
VanOfferen a letter giving him his 30 day notice of canceling the Librarys technical support contract with
Stateline Technologies She has not heard from him yet about scheduling his last visits and conferring
with Allen Philhower our new technical support A sink in one of the Youth Department restrooms came
loose from the wall recently Also a light switch in the Adult Department is not working however Paul Roe
is looking into it A writing workshop was held on November 10 2014 and it was well attended

TreasurersReport Terry Dunphy summarized the TreasurersReport for the Board The beginning
balance in the Checking Account as of October 9 2014 was5115895and the ending balance as of
November 6 2014 was 4844630 The total for trust funds in CDs was 48982969 With the Midland
States Bank checking account total the Trust Funds Total is 53827599 Glen Hughes made a motion
to approve the November 10 2014 TreasurersReport and Trust Fund Memorials Donations Special
Funds Report as presented Sharon Thompson seconded the motion and the motion was approved
After the Board reviewed the Invoices Expenditures Report for October 2014 Glen Hughes made a
motion to approve the October 2014 Invoices Expenditures Report as presented Steve Hill seconded
the motion and the motion passed

Committee Reports

Finance and Budget No report

Building and Grounds No report

Personnel and Salaries As reported in Director Lynn Roes DirectorsReport she asked some
area librarians to send her copies of their job descriptions Steve Hill has received one from the
Rock Falls Library Director and Lynn had her job description and some other Director job
descriptions for the Personnel and Salaries Committee Lynn will be resigning on April 30 2015
although she has said that she is willing and able to work with the new Library Director after that
date to help with the transition

1



Bylaws Policies and Procedures No report

Technology Technology Resources No report

Ad Hoc Capital Projects Committee Lynn Roe had some things to report on the progress of the
Capital Projects A meeting was held on November 5 2014 with GRP to discuss options for
windows and to discuss the roof repairs being done before the winter The new windows in the old
section of the building will not open while new windows in the new area of the building will be able
to be opened GRP hopes to pressure wash and seal the outside of the building yet this fall

Unfinished Business

Selection of an expert to certify GRPswork Roberta Vanderlin spoke with Architect Tom
Houck from the firm of Willett Hofmann Associates Inc to see if he would be interested in
certifying GRPswork He stated that he would be willing to discuss this with an Ad Hoc Committee
member Glen Hughes will call Mr Houck to set up a meeting to discuss the work If Mr Houck is
not able to do this work we will ask him for some other professionals he thinks would be qualified
and able to certify GRPswork

New Business

Youth Department Bathroom Improvements Mark Piper can begin to remodel the Youth
Department bathrooms in January of 2015 Lynn believes the cost will be similar to cost of the
Adult Department bathrooms which were remodeled in 2013 for1526508 The Board requested
that Lynn get a written estimate from Mr Piper for the work

Authorization of Holidays and Library Board Meeting dates for 2015 Director Lynn Roe
presented the Board with a proposed list of Holidays and Board Meetings Carol Linkowski made a
motion approve the Holidays for 2015 as presented Glen Hughes seconded the motion and the
motion was approved Sharon Thompson made a motion to approve the Board Meetings for 2015
as presented Terry Dunphy seconded the motion and the motion was approved

Authorization for the Library Staff Christmas Dinner Lynn proposed that a Library Staff
Christmas dinner be held on December 5 2014 at the Basil Tree Restaurant She reported that
she would like to invite 14 employees as well as Diane Kullerstrand the Librarysonline book
seller and Susan Swegle who recently resigned Glen Hughes made a motion to authorize Lynn
to spend up to 500 for the Staff Christmas dinner Steve Hill seconded the motion and the motion
was approved

Glen Hughes made a motion to adjourn the meeting Carol Chandler seconded the motion and the
motion was approved The meeting was adjourned at 625 pm

Respectfully submitted

Roberta Vanderlin Secretary

2



DIXON PUBLIC LIBRARY BOARD of TRUSTEES

TreasurersReport for December 8 2014 Meeting

Beginning Balance in Checking Acct November 6 2014 4844630

Expenditures November 10 2014 unless otherwise noted

Deduct from memorial fund Check payable to 1 Amount
Books Materials

various funds below Dixon Public Library I 15284
Dixon Public Library already pd Ingram invoices from regular budget

Donaldson Fund 1 book 1019

KSB Fund 1 book 1017

Warner Fund 8 books 13248

to reimburse regular budget line acct 154105431 Adult Library Mtls

Books Materials

Murphy Foundation Media Midwest Tape 73765

total of 35 items 23 dvds 4 cds 8 audiobooks

Books Materials

Murphy Foundation Media Recorded Books Inc 10675

Invoice 75034997 5 audiobk titles purchased

Books Materials

Serendipity Fund Dixon Public Library 28972

Dixon Public Library already pd from regular budget requis to City Hall 93014
from CDW Government invoice PL22882 Lexmark printer toner cartridge shipping

to reimburse regular budget line Misc Expense 154105890

Books Materials

Serendipity Fund ICordogan Clark Associates Inc 1 30000

Invoice 14752 Professional Services thru Sept 30 2014

Dixon Library GRP Contract Review

Youth Programs Projects

Summer Reading Program Fund Dixon Public Library 2890

Dixon Public Library already pd from regular budget requis to City Hall 103114
from Wells Fargo credit card bill Amazoncom150 Discount School Supply 2740

to reimburse regular budget line Misc Expense 154105890

Special Funds

Friends of the Library Lynn A Roe 1 4620 I
reimburse for payment of receipt 11614 Joes Pizza

food for youth volunteers help with removal of magazines

Total Expenditures II 166206 I
continued



TreasurersReport for December 8 2014 meeting continued

Deposits
November 10 2014 1327964
December 3 2014 8100

TOTAL 1336064

Apply to Fund Source I Amount I

Books Materials

IKullerstrand online book sales IKullerstrand Diane 1 48413

October sales received 11 10 48413

November sales not received yet

Adult Programs Projects

IIHC GROP Anonymous I 1000 I
cash purchase of Green River Ordnance book

Special Funds

Friends of the Library Icash collected from used book sales I 8100 I

Special Funds

Dale Roberta Reuter Trust Dale Roberta Reuter Revocable Trust 1 1278551
disbursement check from above trust account

Total Deposits II 1336064

Interest pd to checking account October 31 2014 128

November 30 2014 no statement received yet
TOTAL interest 128

Ending Balance in Checking Acct December 4 2014 1 6014616



TRUST FUNDS 120414

CD INFO checking account balance

MATURITY CURRENT BANK OPENING OPENING CURRENT

DATE RATE CONTACT DATE BALANCE BALANCE

Sterling Federal Bank
6262015 0800 2883327 7262013 6591993 6616073

Sterling Federal Bank
8132015 1045 2883327 952012 5373348 5447626

Community State Bank
932015 0745 2848500 932013 8354076 8354076

Sterling Federal Bank
5252016 1045 2883327 6252013 2245002 2257243

First National Bank

4192017 149 in Amboy 2880700 4192012 5206930 5206930

Sauk Valley Bank
342019 1605 6324490 342014 10564772 10564772

Community State Bank

6232019 1585 2848500 6232014 10494241 10536249
TOTAL BALANCE

OF CDS 48982969

Midland States Bank

2855155

NA APY003 checking account NA NA 6014616

Dixon Public Library TRUST FUND I 54997585



tiZB
City o Dixon

December 15 2014

Topic City of Dixon Employ Handbook Changes

Presented By Paula Meyer

Presentation

Aft the C oD Employee Handb w approved October 2014 became

immediately apparent that some of the language was not in tune with the past practi s ofce various

city departments

A newly revised Employee Handbook is attached that accommodates all those past practices A
summary of the previous policy language showing the language changes in red is also included

Recommendation

The administration recommends the Council approve the accompanying revised City of Dixon
Employee Handbook

1



CITY OF DIXON

EMPLOYEE HANDBOOK

Revised 12152014

2



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page Number
4I Introduction

11 AtWill Employment 4
III Equal Employment Opportunity 4
IV Employee Definitions 5
V Employment 5

5Probation

Job Openings

6

5
Official Personnel Files 5

VI Hours of Work 6

The Workday
Overtime and Compensatory Time 6
Rest Periods 6
Lunch Periods

7

6

Recordkeeping ofHours

9

6
Vacation 7

Holidays and Holiday Pay
VII Benefit Plans and Statutory Benefits 8
VIII Leaves of Absence

Personal 10

Jury Duty 10
Funeral 10

Military Leave

12

10
Sick Leave

12

10

Family Medical Leave

14

11
Victim Leave

IX Harassment Sexual Harassment

14

Harassment 12
Sexual Harassment

X Discipline 14

Discipline
Grounds for Disciplinary

17

Action

16

16

15
XI Health and Safety 16

On the Job Injuries
Restricted Duty Work Status
DrugFree Workplace
ADA Compliance Policy 17

XII Retirement and Resignation

18

17

17

Resignation 17

Extension ofHealth Insurance to Employees
XIII Miscellaneous 18

Outside Employment and Business

19

Interests

Payroll Periods 19

Employment oRelatives
Political Activity 19

3



Accepting of Gifts or Loans 19
Reimbursement for Loss of Personal Items 19
Use of City Telecommunications and Computer Equipment 19
Use of City Vehicles Equipment Supplies Tools and Uniforms 20

Employee DriversLicense Requirement 21

XIPrivacy Policy 21

Employee Acknowledgment Form 25

4



I INTRODUCTION

Welcome to the City of Dixon The primary purpose of this handbook is to introduce new
employees to the work rules policies procedure and benefit plans covering the City of Dixon
In addition it is intended to serve as a reference for employees currently employed

Whenever the provisions of this handbook are in conflict with state law federal law or a
collectively bargained agreement between the city and a certified bargaining unit the provisions
of the state law federal law or the collectively bargained agreement between the city and a
certified bargaining unit will prevail

II AT WILL EMPLOYMENT

This handbook is presented as a matter of information only it is not intended to form a contract
between City of Dixon and the employee City of Dixon reserves the right to change or eliminate
an or all of the policies procedures work rules or benefits herein at any time with or without
prior notice

Just as you retain the right to terminate your employment at any time for any reason the City otf
Dixon retains a similar right No policy or practice of the City of Dixon should be construed to
change this relationship Only the City Council has the right to modify or change this practice
and such action must be in writing

This handbook replaces all employee handbooks and amendments issued prior to the date of this
handbook Documents issued prior to this date should be discarded

III EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

It is the objective of the City of Dixon to encourage employment and advancement of all
individuals in a way that will utilize their talents to the maximum and develop their skills most
effectively in a work and community environment that is free from discrimination

The City of Dixon has a policy to provide equal opportunity for all where employment is based
upon personal capabilities and qualifications without discrimination because of race color
religion sex age national origin sexual orientation gender identity ancestry disability except
where physical or mental abilities are a bona fide occupational qualification domestic violence
victim status or any other protected characteristic as established by law

This policy of equal employment opportunity applies to all policies and procedures relating to
recruitment and hiring compensation benefits promotion termination and all other terms and
conditions of employment

IV EMPLOYEE DEFINITIONS

5



Full time Employee

An employee who is normally scheduled to work no less than 30 hours per week and is eligible
for all benefits

Parttime Employee

An employee who is normally scheduled to work less than 30 hours per week and is eligible for
some benefits Regular parttime employees must work their designated hours per week on a 12
month basis Regular parttime employees are eligible for City contributions toward IMRF
retirement benefits if they meet the 1000hour per year requirement They may also request
leaves of absence Parttime employees are only eligible for health insurance coverage if they
meet the eligibility requirement

The determination of hourly requirements for parttime sworn Police and Fire personnel shall be
governed by State statutes and administrative rules

Short Term or Seasonal Employee

An employee who has been hired to work for an established period of time of 999 hours or less
in duration on either a fulltime or parttime basis and is not eligible for benefits

V EMPLOYMENT

Probation

The probationary period is the first 90 days of an individualsemployment If the City of Dixon
determines that the probationary period does not allow sufficient time to thoroughly evaluate the
employeesperformance the probationary period may be extended for a specified period

Job Openings

Whenever a vacancy occurs within a department the opening may be posted on the City Hall
bulletin board for 10 days Current employees may indicate their interest in being considered for
the vacancy by submitting an application for the position in writing to the Department Head
within the stated posting period The Department Head will make the recommendation on who is
to fill the opening The City of Dixon reserves the right to use other recruiting sources at their
discretion

The hiring process for sworn police and fire personnel will be governed by Illinois State Statutes

Official Personnel Files

The City of Dixon maintains a personnel file on each employee The personnel file includes
such information as the employeesjob application resume records of training documentation
of performance appraisals and salary increases and other employment records

6



Personnel files are the property of the City and access to the information they contain is
restricted Generally only management personnel of the City of Dixon who have a legitimate
reason to review information in a file are allowed to do so

Employees who wish to review their own file should contact the Clerks Office or appropriate
department With reasonable advance written notice employees may review their own personnel
file in the appropriate office and in the presence of an individual appointed by the City to
maintain the files

VI HOURS OF WORK

City Hall office hours are generally 830am to 430pm

The Workday

In general the work schedule of employees will not change from week to week However
varying conditions in workload and demand of the public may necessitate a change in the work
schedule If it is necessary for the Department Head to change the normal work schedule every
effort will be made to give the employee as much notice as possible Nothing in this section
shall be constructed as a guarantee of the number of hours an employee will be scheduled to
work

Overtime and Compensatory Time

Non exempt eligible employees will be compensated at a rate of time and onehalf times for
hours worked beyond a 40hour workweek With Department Head approval non exempt
employees may elect to take compensatory time in lieu of overtime payment Accumulated
compensatory time in an employeesbank shall not exceed 40 hours Hours banked over 40 will
be paid out The use of compensatory time shall not be unreasonably denied

Rest Periods

Depending on varying conditions in workload and demand of the public employees may be
provided 2 rest periods during the day not to exceed 15 minutes per rest period

Lunch Periods

The scheduled lunch hours of employees may vary among departments because of operational
demands Every employee who works 5 hours or more will be provided at least a 30 minute
uninterrupted lunch period

Recordkeeping ofHours

It shall be the responsibility of each employee to assure proper recording of hours worked
Before records of time worked are submitted to Payroll they are to be reviewed approved and
signed by the Department Head or designee

Vacation

7



Full time employees shall be entitled to receive paid vacation Eligible employees shall accrue
vacation on a daily basis Annual vacation shall be accrued as follows

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS VACATION PERIOD MAX CARRYOVER
LIMIT

Less than 5 years 10 working days 15 working days
5 years through 14 years 15 working days 20 working days
15 years through 19 years 20 working days 25 working days
Over 20 years 25 working days 30 working days

Vacation days may be carried over from one anniversary year into the next anniversary year up
to the max carryover limit Any vacation days not utilized or eligible to be carried over into the
next anniversary year are lost

Vacations may be taken in hourly increments

Upon termination employees with unused accrued vacation allowances shall receive
compensation for that unused vacation at the employeescurrent rate of pay

In the event of the employeesdeath compensation for all unused vacation allowances shall be
paid to the employeesbeneficiary

An employee who is promoted from a union position to a nonunion position shall maintain the
higher vacation accrual amount until the next incremental step on the nonunion accrual scale
exceeds the union scale The employee will then follow the nonunion accrual rates based on
years of service

The City of Dixon reserves the right to negotiate vacation accruals with newly hired
administrative or department head employees

Holidays and Holiday Pay

Fulltime employees shall receive fourteen paid holidays during the course of a calendar year
The paid holidays will be designated as follows

New Years Eve Day
New YearsDay
Martin Luther KingsBirthday
PresidentsDay
Good Friday
Memorial Day
Fourth of July
Labor Day
Columbus Day
VeteransDay
Thanksgiving Day
Day after Thanksgiving

8



Christmas Eve Day
Christmas Day

For employees who normally work Monday through Friday a scheduled holiday that falls on a
Saturday shall be observed the preceding Friday A scheduled holiday that falls on a Sunday
shall be observed the following Monday For employees working a non standard workweek a
scheduled holiday shall be observed on the exact day that the holiday falls

VII BENEFIT PLANS AND STATUTORY BENEFITS

Fulltime employees are eligible to participate in benefit programs according to the following
schedule

A Upon the first day of employment

1 Federal Social Security and Medicare required by law and paid for by both the City and
employee

2 State Unemployment Insurance required by law and paid by the City

3 WorkersCompensation required by law and paid by the City

4 Pension Plans

A Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund governed by State Statute and paid for by the
employee and the City inapplicable to sworn police and fire personnel

B Police Pension Plan governed by State Statute and paid for by the employee and the
Cityapplicable to sworn police personnel

C Fire Pension Plan governed by State Statute and paid for by the employee and the
Cityapplicable to sworn fire personnel

5 Nationwide Retirement SolutionsDeferred Compensation employee contributions only

6 Health Insurance Employees shall pay a percent of the premium cost for coverage under
guidelines set by the Council

Employees shall have the option to enroll in one of 2 Plan Options
A Plan Option D PPO
B Plan Option E High Deductible Health Plan HDHP and Health Savings

Account HSA
The savings in premium costs resulting from employees selecting the high deductible HSA
option shall be shared between the employer and the employee The City will contribute 275
of the premium for single coverage of Plan E For those employees electing family coverage the
City will contribute 275 of the single premium plus 135 of the premium differential
between family coverage and single coverage of Plan E

9



Group Health Insurance Health Insurance Continuing Coverage Individuals who become
eligible for major medical insurance will be given upon being eligible general notice outlining
COBRA continuation coverage rights If an employee has a qualifying event as defined by law
they will receive the appropriate notice of qualifying event and election direction Questions
regarding such issues should be directed to the Administrative Office

7 Life Insurance 25000

8 Accidental Death and Dismemberment Insurance

The City may amend or terminate the life insurance accidental death and dismemberment
insurance and health insurance benefits at any time In addition the percentage of any premiums
paid by the employee shall be determined by the City Council and may be modified at any time
Ifmodified employees will be notified

9 Tuition Reimbursement Policy

An employee shall be eligible for reimbursement for the cost of tuition for instruction received
at an accredited college or university which is job related or for a position that an employee
could be reasonably promoted

Each request for reimbursement shall be applied for and approved by the Department Head prior
to the beginning of instruction Department Heads shall receive approval from the City
Administrator the City Administrator shall receive approval from the Mayor Approved
reimbursement shall be paid only after successful completion grade C or better pass if
passfail course of the class and submission ofproper documentation Reimbursements shall not
be made if an employee receives reimbursement from other sources Approved reimbursements
shall be for books and tuition and shall not exceed200000 dollars per fiscal year per employee

B After one year of continuously contributing to the IMRF

1 Disability Benefits

C Parttime employees who have worked 1000 or more hours in 1 year are eligible to
participate in

1 Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund paid for by the City and the employee

VIII LEAVE OF ABSENCE

Employees shall be eligible to be considered for an unpaid leave of absence for a maximum of
12 weeks after 1 year of service with the City

The City recognizes that there may be time when extenuating circumstances make it necessary
for employees to be absent from work Employees must contact their supervisor as far in
advance as possible so that arrangements can be made Final approval of any requested leave

10



shall be made by the City Council When an employee takes an unpaid leave of absence all
fringe benefits are suspended until such time that the employee returns Employees may arrange
to continue life insurance and health insurance coverage through the City at their own expense
when permitted by the Plan documents Vacation is not accrued during a leave of absence At no
time will employees who have been granted an unpaid absence other than FMLA be guaranteed
a position upon return

A Personal

When it becomes necessary for employees to be absent from work to attend to personal business
which cannot be handled outside of working hours employees should discuss in advance any
such needs with their supervisor to obtain approval Requests for personal leave must be given
to the Department Head with reasonable notice Each full time employee shall be entitled to 6
personal days of absence with full pay

Personal days may be taken only in such a manner as it will not disrupt City operations
Personal days must be taken within the fiscal year earned and employees will not be paid for
unused personal days

Personal time may be taken in hourly increments

B Jury Duty

for time lost when serving on a jury Any fees received byAn employee shall receive full pay
the employee for jury service must be turned over to the City Employees should inform their
supervisors when the initial notice of impending service is received Employees should advise
their supervisor upon their release from the courts

C Funeral

Eligible employees shall be granted 5 days of funeral leave in the event of death of hisher
spouse child or parent including step relatives Eligible employees shall be granted 3 days of
funeral leave in the event of death oef hisher grandparent sibling mother in law father in law
sister in law or brother in law including step relatives

D Military Leave

Employees with military obligations will be granted leaves of absence in accordance with
applicable federal and state laws

E Sick Leave

Employees will accrue sick time bimonthly up to a total of 12 days annually which may be used
for illness or injury of the employee or household family members unless the illness or injury is
due to a work related injury self employment or injury at another place of employment Sick
leave may be accumulated without limit Days remaining in the sick leave bank upon
employment termination will not be paid out

11



An employee who is injured on the job and is eligible for workmenscompensation will receive
full salary for a period of up to 4 months except that heshe shall remit to the City whatever
monies he shall receive under workmenscompensation In no instances shall he receive a total
pay in excess of earnings which would have been paid had he not been accessing workmens
compensation

If an employee exhausts the workmens compensation benefits provided hereunder he must
return to the active employment of the City for a period of not less than 4 consecutive months
before being eligible for further benefits the fiscal year provisions contained notwithstanding

An employee who does not use any sick leave from December 1 through November 30 will
receive compensation in the amount of 20000 An employee who uses not more than 1 day
sick leave from December 1 through November 30 will receive compensation in the amount of
10000

F Family Medical Leave

In accordance with the Family Medical Leave Act FMLA the City of Dixon will grant up to 12
weeks unpaid leave annually based on the previous rolling 12month period To be eligible for
this leave an employee must have worked for the City for one year and worked 1250 hours or
more in the 12 months preceding the beginning of the leave

FMLA leave will be granted for the following circumstances

1 Employeesserious medical condition
2 Birth adoption or placement of a child
3 Caring for a spouse child or parent with a serious health condition
4 Exigency arising out of the fact that the employeesspouse child or parent is a

covered military member on covered active duty
5 Covered service member

Employees shall be eligible for 26 weeks of leave to care for a covered service member with a
serious injury or illness in accordance with federal law

You must provide a written request for leave and sufficient medical certification to the Clerks
Office within 15 calendar days from the date of your absence The City of Dixon reserves the
right to request recertification at the citys discretion in accordance with federal law

The annual FMLA allowance will run concurrently with any Workers Compensation leave

Your insurance benefits will be maintained for up to 12 weeks during your leave under the same
conditions as if you continued to work You must continue to pay your portion of the insurance
premiums You must make arrangements for payment of these premiums in a timely manner If
your leave extends for more than 12 weeks you will become responsible for payment of the
entire health insurance premium to maintain coverage

12



When you return from FMLA leave you will be reinstated to the same or equivalent job with the
same pay benefits and terms and conditions of employment If you do not return to work
following FMLA leave you will be required to reimburse the City for your share of health
insurance premiums paid on your behalf

You will be required to present a certificate from your physician releasing you to full duty before
returning to work

If an employee fails to return to work on the agreed upon return date the City shall assume that
the employee has resigned

Employees will be required to use all sources of paid leave concurrently with Family Medical
Leave with the exception of 5 days of vacation

H Victim Leave

The City shall provide leave in accordance with the Illinois Victims Economic Security and
Safety Act of 2003 Victims Leave Act

An eligible employee is entitled to up to twelve work weeks of leave in a consecutive twelve
month period for one of the following reasons 1 seeking medical attention for or recovering
from physical or psychological injuries caused by domestic or sexual violence to the employee or
employees family or household member 2 obtaining services from a victim services
organization for the employee or employees family or household member arising out of
domestic or sexual violence to the employee or employees family or household member 3
obtaining psychological or other counseling for the employee or employeesfamily or household
member for conditions arising out of domestic or sexual violence to the employee or the
employees family or household member 4 participating in safety planning for or against
conditions arising out of domestic or sexual violence to the employee or the employeesfamily or
household member 5 temporarily or permanently relocating or taking other actions to increase
the safety of the employee or employees family or household member from future domestic or
sexual violence or unsure economic security or 6 seeking legal assistance or remedies to insure
the health and safety of the employee or employees family or household member including
preparing for or participating in any civil or criminal legal proceeding related to or derived from
domestic or sexual violence

IX HARASSMENT AND SEXUAL HARRASSMENT

Harassment

It is the policy of the City of Dixon that no employee be harassed by another employee customer
or supervisor on the basis of race color religion sex age national origin sexual orientation
gender identity ancestry disability domestic violence victim status or any other protected
characteristic as established by law

Illegal harassment whether verbal or physical will not be tolerated All members of

management have the explicit responsibility and duty to take corrective action to prevent any
illegal harassment of our employees

13



If any employee believes that he or illegal a empl
shall bring the matter directly to the

she has been subjected to

attention of a department head city attorney human
resources representative or a member the lints will be investigated
and appropriate disciplinary action

ta
ken up to

City
and

Council

including
All

termination
compa

There will be no
retaliation against anyone who submi ai good harassment complaint or participates in an
investigation relati to such a complaint Additionally there will be no retaliation against
anyone for utilizing the charge provisions of the Illinois Department of Human Rights The
Illinois Department of Human Rights investigates complaints of discrimination If charges are
found to have merit a com of discrimination may

hts C

be issued leading to

charge
a hearing before an

administrative law

under
judge

Illinois law must be

of the Illinois Human

Rigom180
mission A ii

to be ti filed filed within days of the event complained
of discrminat

ofmely

The Department of Human Rights can be contacted at the following addresses and phone
numbers

s Drtt

222

Illinoi

South College Room

of Human

101A
Rights

ingfield

Department

62

2177855100
Spr 704

Illinois Department ofHuman Rights
100 W Randolph Street Suite 5100
State of Illinois Building
Chicago
3128146200

IL 60601

The Illinois Human Rights Commission can be contacted at the following addresses and phone
numbers

Illinois Human Rights Commission
William G Stratton Office Bldg
Room 404A

ifi 62

2177855100
Spr ngeldIL 706

Illinois Human Rights Commission
W

go

Randolph Street Suite 5100
State of Illinois Building
Chica IL 606013128146269

Sexual Harassment

It is the policy of the City of Dixon that no employee be harassed by another employee or
supervisor on the basis of sex

14



The policy prohibits any demand for sexual favors that is accompanied by a promise of favorable
job treatment or a threat concerning the employees employment Also prohibited is subtle
pressures for sexual favors including implying that an applicantsor employeescooperation of
a sexual nature or refusal thereof will have any effect on the persons employment job
assignment wages promotion or any other condition of employment

In addition any behavior of a sexual nature not welcomed by the employee or found to be
personally offensive is expressly forbidden This includes but is not limited to

a Sexual flirtations advances or propositions

b Continued or repeated verbal abuse of a sexual nature sexually related comments and
joking graphic or degrading comments about the employeesappearance or the display
of sexually suggestive objects or pictures

c Any uninvited physical contact or touching such as patting pinching or other contact

d Acts of physical aggression intimidation hostility threats or unequal treatment based
on sex even if not sexual in nature

Sexual harassment whether verbal o physical will not be tolerated All members of

management have the explicit responsibility and duty to take corrective action to prevent any
sexual harassment of our employees

As with other forms of harassment any employee who believes that he or she has been subjected
to sexual harassment shall bring the matter directly to the attention of a department head city
attorney human resources representative or a member of the City Council All complaints or
reports of sexual harassment will be investigated and appropriate disciplinary action taken up to
and including termination There will be no retaliation against anyone who submits a good faith
sexual harassment complaint or participates in an investigation relating to such a complaint
Additionally there will be no retaliation against anyone for utilizing the charge provisions of the
Illinois Department ofHuman Rights as outlined above

X DISCIPLINE

Disciplinary Action

Formal disciplinary actions will include verbal warning written reprimand suspension andor
dismissal It shall be the policy of the City of Dixon to utilize a system of progressive discipline
in addressing an employeeswork deficiencies however any of the disciplinary measures cited
above may be initiated at the discretion of the City on the nature of the first offense

In most cases disciplinary action will be issued to the employee by hisher immediate
supervisor or by a higherlevel supervisor in the department to which the employee is assigned

All disciplinary actions may be noted as deemed appropriate to the infraction committed A
copy of any written disciplinary action will be given to the employee and a copy maintained in
the employeespersonnel file

15



It shall be the duty of all employees to maintain high standards of conduct cooperation
efficiency and effectiveness in their work Department heads and supervisors shall organize and
direct the work of their units in a manner calculated to achieve these objectives Whenever the
work habits attitude production or personal conduct of an employee falls below an acceptable
standard the employee is subject to corrective andor disciplinary action All such actions shall
be timely and consistently administered and shall not be on account of political considerations
personal bias or prejudice

Letters of clarification shall precede formal discipline whenever in the judgment of the
Department Head an infraction is readily correctable and is of lesser consequence

Grounds for Disciplinary Action

In determining the seriousness of an offense the circumstances existing at the time of occurrence
will be duly considered Aggravated and mitigating factors will be considered when determining
the appropriate action to take Each of the following work related infractions may be just cause
for disciplinary action up to and including dismissal The list presented herein is not intended to
be all inclusive

1 Unreasonable andor abusive treatment of a client citizen other city employee or
individual in the community including verbal or nonverbal sexual or racial
harassment

2 Violation of any lawful and reasonable city or departmental policy

3 Destruction or loss of city property including abuse of tools equipment andor
clothing allotments

4 Absence from duty without permission proper notice or satisfactory reason

5 Falsifying records knowingly giving inaccurate information or unnecessarily
withholding information

6 Obtaining materials or leave time based on fraudulent information
dishonesty stealing and other criminal acts

7 Being under the influence of narcotics alcohol or other physically impairing or
illegal substances on the job

8 Possession of any type of firearms explosives or concealed weapons without
specific authority

9 Conviction of a crime involving moral turpitude casting doubt on the individuals
ability to perform hisher city job effectively NOTE Dismissal or non

prosecution for criminal charges shall not in itself preclude the city from taking
disciplinary action

16



10 Incompetence ineffectiveness inefficiency or wastefulness in the performance of
assigned duties

11 Disregard for safety policies procedures reporting requirements andor proper
use of safety equipment

12 An attendance record which demonstrates a consistent or continual lack of
availability for work to the extent that ineffectiveness or inefficiency of services
results

The Department Head may elect to place an employee on investigative leave before
making any determination of corrective or disciplinary action

XL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The City of Dixon attempts to provide the safest possible working conditions for employees and
as a governmental unit to provide a safe environment for the public which benefits from those
services

On the Job Injuries

Employees injured onthejob must immediately report the injury to their supervisors unless the
injury is an emergency and the employee is not able to do so immediately then it should be
reported as soon as possible Necessary first aid medical and surgical services reasonably
required to cure or relieve the effects of an accidental injury are covered by workers
compensation

Restricted Duty Work Status

It is in the best interest of the City and its employees to have injured or ill employees to return to
work as soon as they are physically capable Therefore following the occurrence of a job
related injuryillness an employee who is medically determined to be capable of working at some
level and capacity other than normal capacity may be assigned such work and conditions as may
be beneficial to the City if such work exists in the department and if the employee is qualified to
perform such work

Drugfree Workplace

The City of Dixon is committed to the policy of maintaining a drugfree workplace Thus the
unlawful manufacture distribution dispensation possession or use of alcohol or any controlled
substance by any employee in the workplace is prohibited A controlled substance within the
meaning of this policy means any controlled substance as defined by state or federal law Any
violation of this prohibition will result in discipline up to and including discharge

The use of controlled substances either on or off the job is inconsistent with the behavior
expected of employees subjects all employees and the public to unacceptable safety risks and
undermines the citysability to operate effectively and efficiently

17



The DrugFree Workplace Act of 1988 requires you to report any conviction under a criminal
drug statute for violations occurring on the Employerspremises or off the Employerspremises
while conducting official business A report of a conviction must be made to your Department
Head within five working days after the conviction Failure to do so will result in immediate
dismissal from your position

ADA Compliance

The City stands committed to fulfilling the Americans with Disabilities Act and the Americans
with Disabilities Act Amendment Act It is the policy of the City to hire train promote
compensate and administer all employment practices without regard to disability unrelated to
the ability to perform a job with or without reasonable accommodation Discrimination against
job applicants or employees who are qualified individuals on the basis of disability is prohibited
and will not be tolerated

The City is committed to making reasonable accommodations in job duties the work
environment and the application process to enable a qualified person with a disability to enjoy
equal employment opportunities so long as such accommodations do not constitute an undue
hardship

XII RETIREMENT AND RESIGNATION

Resignation

Employees shall present a written resignation at least 2 weeks prior to the effective date of the
resignation The 2week period shall exclude vacation and holidays and any other paid time off

Extension of Health Insurance to Employees

In accordance with the Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act COBRA the
City will offer eligible employees the opportunity to continue their group medical coverage
under the Cityscurrent plan if coverage terminates

Retiring employees may be eligible to continue at their own expense single or family health
insurance coverage when they meet the qualifying conditions under 215 ILCS 5367j as may be
amended from time to time

Individuals who meet all of the statutory eligibility requirements will receive a credit against the
cost of the elected coverage in an amount not to exceed 12 of the cost of single coverage if they
also meet all of the following criteria
1 Are not eligible for other group health insurance by reason of their own employment
2 Are not eligible for Medicare
3 Had a period of continuous employment with the City of not less than 30 years of service if

hired prior to 1115 not less than 25 years if hired prior to112009 or not less than 20
yea if hired prior to111999 Employees hired after 1115 will not be eligible for city
contributions toward their retiree health insurance costs

18



4 Was last employed by the City not more than thirty 30 days prior to electing to continue
health insurance coverage

5 Has maintained continuous health insurance coverage with the City since retirement date
6 Retire from the City after reaching full eligibility for IMRF or the applicable Police or Fire

retirement plan

At no time will the City contribute to a retireesHealth Savings Account

XIII MISCELLANEOUS

Outside Employment and Business Interests

The primary work duty and responsibility of City employees is to the City of Dixon No full
time employee shall engage in other employment for salary wages or commissions or outside
business interests unless prior written approval is given by the Department Head Department
Heads need written approval from the City Manager

The City shall have the right to restrict an employee from engaging in outside employment or
business interests for any reason

The City will not allow outside employment or business interests if such employment or business
interest are determined by the City to cause any of the following circumstances

1 Interference with the employeeswork with the City

2 Creation of a conflict of interest or the appearance of a conflict of interes for the employee
between the employeesposition with the City and the outside employment or business interest

3 The creation of any extraordinary risk of injury in outside employment or business interests or
any reduction in the employees physical and mental ability to perform his duties as a City
employee to the fullest of his capabilities or

4 Creation of a reasonable expectation of loss or injury to the City or public

Employees who suffer an occupational sickness injury or disability compensable under the
workers compensation as a direct result of other employment or outside business interests shall
not be eligible for paid sick leave

Employees shall not engage in any outside employment during or after the use of sick leave with
the City until they complete a normal work day inr their City employment or until 24 hours have
elapsed since their last use of sick time whichever is less

Payroll Periods

Employees shall be paid biweekly on the Friday of the pay period Paychecks or remittance
advice can be obtained from the Department Head City Council members shall be paid on a
monthly basis

19



Employment of Relatives

The City of Dixon unless determined that the best interest of the City shall not consider an
applicant for full time employment if the applicant bears any apparent relationship to an elected
official appointed officer or Department Head At no time shall the City allow a direct reporting
relationship between family members

Political Activity

Employees may not engage in political activity which involves the use of their uniform
equipment or vehicles or the use of their official position to coerce or influence others and may
not engage in political activities while at work or on duty

Accepting of Gifts or Loans

City services are not to be extended by employees in exchange for special awards gifts or other
remuneration from outside individuals or organizations Employees of the City may not accept
loans or monetary gifts from other City employees or from any elected or appointed official of
the City Not including deminimus voluntary gifts for recognition or celebrating a special
event

Reimbursement for Loss of Personal Items

The City of Dixon will not reimburse in any manner or form for any personal objects
possessions or clothing which are lost or damaged either while on duty or off duty Personal
objects possessions and clothes are items purchased and maintained by the employee and not
purchased or maintained by the City ofDixon

In situations of extraordinary or unusual circumstances special requests for reimbursement for
loss or damage can be made

Use of City Telecommunications and Computer Equipment

The use of City telephones for personal reasons is a privilege Each employee should discourage
other persons from attempting to contact them for personal reasons during work hours including
by use of cellular telephone or text message Any personal long distance call made on City
phones shall be reimbursed by employee City issued cell phones can bie used for work and
personal use so long as it does not incur additional fees As city issued cell phones are municipal
property please understand that there is accordingly no expectation of privacy in the content
personal or city related of any such cell phone

Computers are owned and placed by the City for the purpose of assisting employees in
performance of functions and responsibilities of the City Minimal appropriate personal use
may be acceptable as determined by your Department Head The City reserves the right to
monitor employee email and computer use and employees are placed on notice that personal
email sent or received by use of City computers or any other type of personal use is subject to

20



review and reading Employees have no expectation of privacy in use of a City computer or
Internet access

Use of City Vehicles Equipment Supplies Tools and Uniforms

In using City vehicles or personal vehicles for City business employees must keep in mind the
fact that they are representatives of the City government and that their conduct in adhering to the
rules of safety and courtesy on the road is a reflection for good o bad on the City Any fines
incurred by an employee while operating a City vehicle due to traffic or parking violations shall
be the responsibility of the employee and all fines or monies shall be paid by the employee
Employees must adhere to all applicable traffic laws while operating City vehicles

City vehicles equipment supplies tools and uniforms shall not be used for private or
unauthorized purposes

Employees are expected to follow all applicable traffic laws

Employees shall be responsible for the proper care and use of City vehicles equipment supplies
tools and uniforms Accidents breakdowns or malfunctions of any equipment should be
reported to the employeesimmediate supervisor on the day of occurrence so that the repairs may
be made

City owned vehicles may be taken home overnight on an assigned regular basis or on or
occasional basis when authorized by the Department Head Such vehicles are to be used only for
City business or duties Passengers who are not employed by the City of Dixon are not typically
allowed in City vehicles Exceptions to this rule must be approved in advance by the Department
Head

Employees are responsible for the uniforms supplied by the City Uniforms provided for the
employees shall be worn only during working hours or for conducting official City business
outside working hours Uniforms may be worn to or from work unless department rules specify
otherwise but are not to be worn during any personal activity other than defined in this section
unless authorized by the Department Head

Employees must make every effort to take proper care of their uniforms Damaged andor lost
uniforms must be reported immediately to the employeesimmediate supervisor

If an employee violates this section the employee may be held liable to the City for any claims
costs or damages arising out of or resulting from the use operation or possession of City
equipment

Employee DriversLicense Requirement

If at any time operation of a motor vehicle is one of an employees required duties that
employee must possess a valid Illinois drivers license of the classification necessary for
fulfillment of all applicable job duties This shall be a condition of employment No employee
shall be allowed at any time to drive a motor vehicle whether on streets of city owned property
without a valid Illinois drivers license

21



Department Heads will require employees to furnish a photocopy of each employeesdrivers
license In the event an employee is charged with a traffic offense that employee must notify his
supervisor either immediately if the occurrence takes place during a working shift or prior to
the beginning of the next shift relating to the details of the surrender of the drivers license
Procedures to be followed will be determined at this meeting and will depend on the nature and
severity of the offense The City of Dixon reserves the right to exclude any employee from
operating a motor vehicle if it is in the best interest of the City

XIV PRIVACY POLICY

If you have any questions about this notice please contact the Administrative Office

WHO WILL FOLLOW THIS NOTICE

This notice describes the information privacy practices followed by our employees

YOUR HEALTH INFORMATION

This notice applies to the information and records we have about your health health status and
the health care services you received through our health insurance plan as processed by the City

We are required by law to give you this notice It will tell you about the ways in which we may
use and disclose health information about you and describes your rights and our obligations
regarding the use and disclosure of that information

HOW WE MAY USE AND DISCLOSE HEALTH INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

For Payment We may use and disclose health information about you so that the treatment and
services as necessary to process the benefits of the Health Plan

SPECIAL SITUATIONS

We may use or disclose health information about you when necessary to prevent a serious threat
to your health and safety or the health and safety of the public or another person

Required by Law

Wle will disclose health information about you when required to do so by
federal state or local law

Research We may use and disclose health information about you for research projects that are
subject to a special approval process We will ask for your permission if the researcher will have
access to your name address or other information that reveals who you are or will be involved
in your care at the office

22



Organ and Tissue Donation If you are an organ donor we may release health information to
organizations that handle organ procurement or organ eye or tissue transplantation or to an
organ donation bank as necessary to facilitate such donation and transplantation

Military Veterans National Security and Intelligence If you are or were a member of the armed
forces or part of the national security or intelligence communities we may be required by
military command or other government authorities to release health information about you We
may also release information about foreign military personnel to the appropriate military
authority

Workers Compensation We may release health information about you for workers
compensation or similar programs These programs provide benefits for work related injuries or
illness

Health Oversight Activities We may disclose health information to a health oversight agency for
audits investigations inspections or licensing purposes These disclosures may be necessary for
certain state and federal agencies to monitor the health care system government programs and
compliance with the civil rights laws

Lawsuits and Disputes If you are involved in a lawsuit or a dispute we may disclose health
information about you in response to a court or administrative order Subject to all applicable
legal requirements we may also disclose health information about you in response to a
subpoena

Law Enforcement We may release health information if asked to do so by a law enforcement
official in response to a court order subpoena warrant summons or similar process subject to
all applicable legal requirements

Coroners Medical Examiners and Funeral Directors We may release health information to a
coroner or medical examiner This may be necessary for example to identify a deceased person
or determine the cause of death

Information not Personally Identifiable We may use or disclose health information about you in a
way that does not personally identify you or reveal who you are

OTHER USES AND DISCLOSURES O HEALTH INFORMATION

We will not use or disclose your health information for any purpose other than those identified in
the previous sections without your specific written authorization We must obtain your
authorization separate from any consent we may have obtained from you If you give us
authorization to use or disclose health information about you you may revoke that information
in writing at any time If you revoke your authorization we will no longer use or disclose
information about you for the reasons covered by your written authorization but we can not take
back any uses or disclosures already made with your permission

If we have HIV or substance abuse information about you we cannot release that information
without a special signed written authorization from you In order to disclose these types of
records for purposes of treatment payment or health care operations we will have to have both

23



your signed consent and a special written authorization that complies with the law governing
HIV or substance abuse records

YOUR RIGHTS REGARDING HEALTH INFORMATION ABOUT YOU

You have the following rights regarding health information we maintain about you

Right to Inspect and Copy You have the right to inspect and copy your health information such
as medical and billing records that we may use to process the insurance deductible You must
submit a written request to the Clerks Office in order to inspect andor copy your health
information If you request a copy of the information we may charge a fee for the costs of
copying mailing or other associated supplies We may deny your request to inspect andor copy
in certain limited circumstances If you are denied access to your health information you may
ask that the denial b reviewed If such a review is required by law we will select a licensed
health care professional to review your request and our denial The person conducting the
review may not be the same person who denied your request and we will comply with the
outcome of the review

Right to Amend If you believe health information we have about you is incorrect or incomplete
you may ask to amend the information

To request an amendment complete and submit a Medical Record AmendmentCorrection Form
to the ClerksOffice We may deny your request for an amendment if it is not in writing or does
not include a reason to support the request In addition we may deny your request if you ask to
amend information that

a We did not create unless the person or the entity that created the information is no
longer available to make the amendment

b Is not part of the health information that we keep

c You would not be permitted to inspect or copy

d Is accurate and complete

Right to an Accounting of Disclosure You have the right to request an Accounting of
Disclosures This is the list of disclosures we made of medical information about you for
purposes other than treatment payment and health care operations To obtain this list you must
submit your request in writing to the ClerksOffice it must state a time period which may not
be longer than six years and may not include dates before April 14 2003 Your request should
indicate in what form you want the list for example on paper electronically We may charge
you for the costs of providing the list We will notify you of the cost involved and you may
choose to withdraw or modify your request at that time before any costs are incurred

Right to Request Restrictions You have the right to request restriction or limitation on the health
information we use or disclose about you for treatment payment or health care operations You
also have the right to request a limit on the health information we disclose about you to someone

24



who is involved in your care or the payment for it like a family member or friend For example
you could ask that we not use or disclose information about a surgery that you had

We are not Required to Agree to your Request If we do agree we will comply with your request
unless the information is needed to provide you emergency treatment

To request restrictions you may complete and submit the request for Restriction on
UseDisclosure of Medical Information to the ClerksOffice

Right to Request Confidential Communications You have the right to request that we
communicate with you about medical matters in a certain way or at a certain location For
example you can ask that we only contact you by mail

To request confidential communications you may complete and submit the Request for
Restriction on UseDisclosure of Medical Information andor Confidential Communications to

the Clerks Office We will not ask the reason for your request We will accommodate all
reasonable requests Your request must specify how or where you wish to be contacted

CHANGES TO THIS NOTICE

We reserve the right to change this notice and to make the revised or changed notice effective
for medical information we already have about you as well as any information we receive in the
future We will post a summary of the current notice in the office with its effective date in the
top right hand corner You are entitled to a copy of the notice currently in effect

25



EMPLOYEE ACKNOWLEDG

tMy signature below acknowledges that I have received a copy of the City of Dixon Employmen
Handbook I agree to read the handbook and agree to comply with the policies of the City I
understand that neither receipt of this handbook nor the policies contained therein are to be
construed as creating any contractual obligations or constitute a guarantee or contract of
employment

Policies and programs presented here in summary form are subject to management interpretation
and City practices I further understand that the City retains the unilateral right to change revoke
or modify the handbook or its policies at any time without prior notice to me

I understand that this handbook is intended to supersede and replace all previous employee
handbooks manuals and policy statements whether oral or written issued by the City of Dixon

Employees Signature Date

26



City of Dixon Employee Handbook
Summary ofLanguage Changes

12152014

II AT WILL EMPLOYMENT

This handbook is presented as ae matter of information only it is not intended to form a contract
between City of Dixon and the employee City of Dixon reserves the right to change or eliminate
any or all of the policies procedures work rules or benefits herein at any time with or without
prior notice

Just as you retain the right to terminate your employment at any time for any reason the City of
Dixon retains a similar right No policy or practice of the City of Dixon should be construed to

1 change this relationship Only the City Council has the right to modify or change thispractice
and such action must be in writing Paula 11262014 9 12 AM

Deleted the Mayor with the approval of

This handbook replaces all employee handbooks and amendments issued prior to the date of this
handbook Documents issued prior to this date should be discarded

IV EMPLOYEE DEFINITIONS

Parttime Employee

An employee who is normally scheduled to work less than 30 hours per week and is eligible for
some benefits Regular parttime employees must work their designated hours per week on a 12
month basis Regular parttime employees are eligible for City contributions toward IMRF
retirement benefits if they meet the 1000hour per year requirement They may also request
leaves of absence Parttime employees are only eligible for health insurance coverage if they
meet the eligibility requirement

The determination of hourly requirements for parttime sworn Police and Fire personnel shall be
governed by State statutes and administrative rules

V EMPLOYMENT

Job Openings

Whenever a vacancy occurs within a department the opening may be posted on the City Hall
bulletin board for 10 days Current employees may indicate their interest in being considered for
the vacancy by submitting an application for the position in writing to the Department Head
within the stated posting period The Department Head will make the recommendation on who is
to fill the opening The City of Dixon reserves the right to use other recruiting sources at their
discretion

The hiring process for sworn police and tire personnel will be governed by Illinois State Statutes

VI HOURS OF WORK

Overtime and Compensatory Time

27



Non exempt eligible employees will be compensated at a rate of time and onehalf times for
hours worked beyond a 40hour workweek With Dpartment Head approval non exempt
employees may elect to take compensato ry time in lieu of overtime payment Accumulated Paula 1212014 05 AM

compensatory ime in an em 1p ees hank shall not exceed 40 hour Hours banked over 40 will Deleted vacat holidays personal days andry sick leave shall not be considered as time worked for
be paid out The use of compensatory time shall not be unreasonably denied the computation of overtime

Paula 11262014 9 32 AM

Vacation Deleted for

Paula 11 262014 9 32 AM

Full time employees shall be entitled to receive paid vacation Eligible employees shall accrue Deleted in any calendar year

vacation on a daily basis Annual vacation shall be accrued as follows

SERVICE REQUIREMENTS VACATION PERIOD MAX CARRYOVER

LIMIT

Less than 5 years 10 working days 15 working days
5 years through 14 years 15 working days 20 working days
15 years through 19 years 20 working days 25 working days
Over 20 years 25 working days 30 working days

cation days may be carried over from one anniversary year into the next anniversary yearuT
to the max carryover limit Any vacation days not utilized or eligible to be carried over into the Paula 1211 2014 1 o 43 AM

next anniversary year are lost Deleted A maximum of 5

Paula 1212014 1044 AM

Vacations may be taken in hourly increments Deleted

Upon termination employees with unused accrued vacation allowances shall receive
compensation for that unused vacation at the employeescurrent rate of pay

In the event of the employeesdeath compensation for all unused vacation allowances shall be
paid to the employeesbeneficiary

An employee who is promoted from a union position to a nonunion position shall maintain the
higher vacation accrual amount until the next incremental step on the nonunion accrual scale
exceeds the union scale The employee will then follow the nonunion accrual rates based on
years ofservice Deleted Breached

The City of Dixon reserves the right to negotiate vacation accruals with newly hired
administrative or department head employees

VII BENEFIT PLANS AND STATUTORY BENEFITS

Full time employees are eligible to participate in benefit programs according to the following
schedule

A Upon the first day of employment

1 4 Pension Plans

28



D Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund governed by State Statute and paid for by the
employee and the Cityinapplicable to sworn police and fire personnel Paula 11262014 9 46

Formatted Numbered Level 1

Numbering Style A B C Start at 1
E Police Pension Plan governed by State Statute and paid for by the employee and t AlignmentLeft Aligned at 05 Indent

Cityapplicable to sworn police personnel gat 075
Paula 111262014 946 AM

F Fire Pension Plan governed by State Statute and paid for by the employee and the Formatted Numbered Level 1

City applicable to sworn fire personnel Numbering Style A B C Start at1

Alignment Left Aligned at 05 Indent
h at 075

Paula 1212014 10 47 AM

Formatted List Paragraph Left No
VIII LEAVE OF ABSENCE bullets or numbering

Paula 1212014 1047 A

A Personal Formatted Indent Left 075

When it becomes necessary for employees to be absent from work to attend to personal business
which cannot be handled outside of working hours employees should discuss in advance any
such needs with their supervisor to obtain approval Requests for personal leave must be given
to the Department Head with reasonable notice Each fulltime employee shall be entitled to 6
personal days of absence with full pay

Personal days may be taken only in such a manner as it will not disrupt City operations
Personal days must be taken within the fiscal year earned and employees will not be paid for
unused personal days

Personal time may be taken in hourly increments

C Funeral

Eligible employees shall be granted 5 days of funeral leave in the event of death of hisher
1 spouse child or parent including step relatives Eligible employees shall be granted 3 days of

funeral leave in the event of death of hisher grandparent sibling mother in law father in law
1 sister in law or brother in law including step relatives

E Sick Leave

Employees will accrue sick time bimonthly up to a total of 12 days annually which may be used
for illness or injury of the employee or household family members unless the illness or injury is
due to a work related injury self employment or injury at another place of employment Sick
leave may be accumulated without limit Days remaining in the sick leave bank upon
employment termination will not be paid out

An employee who is injured on the job and is eligible for workmenscompensation will receive
full salary for a period of up to 4 months except that heshe shall remit to the City whatever
monies he shall receive under workmenscompensation In no instances shall he receive a total
pay in excess of earnings which would have been paid had he not been accessing workmens
compensation

29



If an employee exhausts the workmens compensation benefits provided hereunder he must
return to the active employment of the City for a period of not less than 4 consecutive months
before being eligible for further benefits the fiscal year provisions contained notwithstanding

An employee who does not use any sick leave from December 1 through November 30 will P ul 11 2 2014 4 PM

receive compensation in the amount of 20000 An to h not more th 1 day All employees hired prior to May 1
2013 shall be credited a onetime additional 4 dayssick leave from December 1 through N

n em ee wo uses anp y
ovember 30 will receive compensation in the amount of

theCitleave for each completed year of service with
10000 the City This leave shall be placed in the employee

sick leave bank
a

Paula 11252014 3 44 PM

Deleted during the Citys fiscal Year
XII RETIREMENT AND RESIGNATION

Paula 11252014 3 44 PM

Extension of Health Insurance toEmployees daring the Citys fiscal year

In accordance with the Federal Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act COBRA the
City will offer eligible employees the opportunity to continue their group medical coverage
under the Citys current plan if coverage terminates

Retiring employees may be eligible to continue at their own expense single or family health Paula 11 252014 3 l PM

insurance coverage when they meet the qualifying conditions under 215 ILCS 5367 as may b For any eligible employee who retires

amended from time to time
after January 1 2014th City will pa onehalf the
cost of maintai single coverage on the Citys
plan for a retiree not family coverage prior to
reaching eligibility for Medicare Eligible employeeIndividuals who meet all of the statutory eligibility requirements will receive a credit against the is defined as an individual who I is not eligible for

cost of the elected coverage in an amount not to exceed 2 of the cost of single coverage If then other group health insurance or Medicare 2 had a

also meet all of the following criteria
period of continuous employment of not less than 30
years of servce or not Tess than 25 Stiffed prior to

7 Are not eligible for other group health insurance by reason of their own employment 11 2009 or not less than 20 years Stiffed prior to
111999 3 retired from the City on or after

8 Are not eligible for Medicare reaching 55 years of age

9 Had a period of continuous employent with the City of not less than 30 years of service if
hired prior to 1115 not less than 25

m

years if hired prior to112009 or not less than 20
Years if hired prior to111999 Employees hired after 1115 will not be eligible for city
contributions toward their retiree health insurance costs

10 Was last employed by the City not more than thirty 30 days prior to electing to continue
health insurance coverage

11 Has maintained continuous health insurance coverage with the City since retirement date
12 Retired from the City after reaching full eligibility for IMRF or the applicable Police or F

retirement plan

At no time will the City contribute to a retireesHealth Savings Account

XIII MISCELLANEOUS

Outside Employment and Business Interests

30



The primary work duty and responsibility
ment for sa

of City employees is to the City of Dixon No full
time employee shall engage in other employlary wages or commissions or outside
business interests unless prior written approval is given by the Department Head Department
Ileads need written approval from the City Manager

Use of City Telecommunications and ComputerEquipment

The use of City telephones for personal reasons is a privilege each e1 should discourage
other persons from attempting to contact them for personal reasons during work hours including Paula 1232ota 10 04 PM

by use of cellular telephone or text message Any personal long distance call made on City Pright sonlcaflryhould1 inphones shall be reimbursed by employee City issued cell phones can be used for work a
personal use so long as it does not incur additional fees As city issued cell phones are municipal

property please understand that there is accordingly no expectation of privacy in the content
personal or city related of any such cellphone

Computers are owned and placed by the City for the purpose o assisting employees in
performance of functions and responsibilities of the City Minimal appropriate personal use
may be acceptable as determined by your Department Head The City reserves the right to
monitor employee email and computer use and employees are placed on notice that personal
email sent or received by use of City computers or any other type of personal use is subject to
review and reading Employees have no expectation
Internet access

o privacy in use of a City computer or

31



Page 28 1 Deleted Paula i21tX4X05AM I
Vacation holidays personal days and sick leave shall not be considered as time worked
for the computation of overtime



Municipality L Name

Dixon

co
Illinois Department C Willett Hofmann 8 2
of Transportation o f

Township A Address

NA
Preliminary Engineering u 809 East 2n Stree

County
A Services Agreement L

City
G For T

Lee E Motor Fuel Tax Funds A Dixon

N N
Section C T State

NA Y Illinois

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into this day of 2014 between the above Local

Agency LA and Consultant ENGINEER and covers certain professional engineering services in connection with the
improvement of the above SECTION Motor Fuel Tax Funds allotted to the LA by the State of Illinois under the general
supervision of the State Department of Transportation hereinafter called the DEPARTMENT will be used entirely or in part
to finance ENGINEERING services as described under AGREEMENT PROVISIONS

Section Description
Name 2015 River Road Galena Avenue to IL RT 2 Reconstruction

Route River Road Length 066 Mi 3500 FT Structure No NA

Termini Galena AvenueWest to IL Route 2 East

Description Remove and reconstruct roadway Including aggregate base CG pavement sidewalks and multiuse path
Agreement Provisions

The Engineer Agrees
TO PERFORM OR BE RESPONSIBLE FOR THE ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE LA AS DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED
SPECIAL PROVISIONS WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN AS EXHIBIT A

1 To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following engineering services for the LA in connection with the
proposed improvements herein before described and checked below
a Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed roadway plans
b Make stream and flood plain hydraulic surveys and gather high water data and flood histories for the preparation

of detailed bridge plans

c Make or cause to be made such soil surveys or subsurface investigations including borings and soil profiles and
analyses thereof as may be required to furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed Improvement
Such Investigations are to be made in accordance with the current requirements of the DEPARTMENT

d Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and special intersection studies as may be required to
furnish sufficient data for the design of the proposed improvement

e Prepare Army Corps of Engineers Permit Department of Natural ResourcesOffice of Water Resources Permit
Bridge waterway sketch andor Channel Change sketch Utility plan and locations and Railroad Crossing work
agreements

f Prepare Preliminary Bridge design and Hydraulic Report including economic analysis of bridge or culvert types
and high water effects on roadway overflows and bridge approaches

g Make complete general and detailed plans special provisions proposals and estimates of cost and furnish the LA
with five 5 copies of the plans special provisions proposals and estimates Additional copies of any or all
documents if required shall be furnished to the LA by the ENGINEER at his actual cost for reproduction

h Furnish the LA with survey and drafts in quadruplicate of all necessary rightofway dedications construction
easement and borrow pit and channel change agreements including prints of the corresponding plats and staking
as required

Printed 1292014 Page 1 of 4 BLR 05510 Rev 1106



i El Assist the LA in the tabulation and Interpretation of the contractors proposals
j Prepare the necessary environmental documents In accordance with the procedures adopted by the

DEPARTMENTs Bureau of Local Roads Streets

k Prepare the Project Development Report when required by the DEPARTMENT

2 That all reports plans plats and special provisions to be furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to the AGREEMENT will
be in accordance with current standard specifications and policies of the DEPARTMENT It is being understood that all
such reports plats plans and drafts shall before being finally accepted be subject to approval by the LA and the
DEPARTMENT

3 To attend conferences at any reasonable time when requested to do so by representatives of the LA or the Department

4 In the event plans or surveys are found to be in error during construction of the SECTION and revisions of the plans or
survey corrections are necessary the ENGINEER agrees that he will perform such work without expense to the LA even
though final payment has been received by him He shall give Immediate attention to these changes so there will be a
minimum delay to the Contractor

5 That basic survey notes and sketches charts computations and other data prepared or obtained by the Engineer
pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be made available upon request to the LA or the DEPARTMENT without cost and
without restriction or limitations as to their use

6 That all plans and other documents furnished by the ENGINEER pursuant to this AGREEMENT will be endorsed by him
and will show his professional seal where such Is required by law

The LA Agrees
TO PAY THE ENGINEER AS COMPENSATION FOR ALL SERVICES DESCRIBED IN THE ATTACHED SPECIAL
PROVISIONS WHICH IS ATTACHED HERETO AND INCORPORATED HEREIN AS EXHIBIT A

0

Awordod Coot roroontago Foot
4kifief 607000 seemete

94

4

94

44

Printed 1292014 Page 2 of 4 BLR 05510 Rev 1106



faeFeeatleeovewefitoverheadsad

It is Mutually Agreed

1 That any difference between the ENGINEER and the LA concerning their interpretation of the provisions of this
Agreement shall be referred to a committee of disinterested parties consisting of one member appointed by the
ENGINEER one member appointed by the LA and a third member appointed by the two other members for disposition
and that the committeesdecision shall be final

2 This AGREEMENT may be terminated by the LA upon giving notice in writing to the ENGINEER at his last known post
office address Upon such termination the ENGINEER shall cause to be delivered to the LA all surveys permits
agreements preliminary bridge design hydraulic report drawings specifications partial and completed estimates and
data if any from traffic studies and soil survey and subsurface Investigations with the understanding that all such
material becomes the property of the LA The ENGINEER shall be paid for any services completed and any services
partially completed in accordance with Section 4 of THE LA AGREES

3 That if the contract for construction has not been awarded one year after the acceptance of the plans by the LA and their
approval by the DEPARTMENT the LA will pay the ENGINEER the balance of the engineering fee due to make 100
percent of the total fees due under this AGREEMENT based on the estimate of cost as prepared by the ENGINEER and
approved by the LA and the DEPARTMENT

4 That the ENGINEER warrants that heshe has not employed or retained any company or person other than a bona fide
employee working solely for the ENGINEER to solicit or secure this contract and that heshe has not paid or agreed to
pay any company or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for the ENGINEER any fee commission
percentage brokerage fee gifts or any other consideration contingent upon or resulting from the award or making of this
contract For Breach or violation of this warranty the LA shall have the right to annul this contract without liability

Printed 1292014 Page 3 of 4 BLR 05510 Rev 1106



IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties have caused the AGREEMENT to be executed in quadruplicate counterparts each of
which shall be considered as an original by their duly authorized officers

Executed by the LA

City of Dixon of the

MunicipalityTewnshipGeunty

ATTEST State of Illinois acting by and through Its

By

Clerk By

Seal Title

Executed by the ENGINEER Willett Hofmann Associates Inc

809 East 2nd Street

ATTEST Dixon IL 61021

By By

Title Thomas W Houck PEAIA LEED AP BDc Title Ronald J Steenken PE SE
Secretary President General Manaaer

Approved

Date

Department of Transportation

Regional Engineer

Printed 1292014 Page 4 of 4 BLR 05510 Rev 1106



City of Dixon
2015 River Road

Galena Ave to IL Rte 2

Reconstruction

EXHIBIT A

Special Provisions

The Engineer Agrees

Paragraph 1 of the agreement isare amended to include the following agreementsof the
parties

To perform or be responsible for the performance of the following engineering services for the LA
in connection with the described project

1 Make such detailed surveys as are necessary for the preparation of detailed roadway plans
Contact Julie for location of underground facilities and pick up all marked underground
facilities Currently Galena Ave to Crawford Ave needs topographic survey to be
completed

2 Utilize the following project assumptions for project design and development
a Limits if the project are Galena Avenue to the West and the intersection of IL Route

2 to the east of the project The future extension of the multiuse path to the east
of the project limits is not included within the scope of this agreement

b The funding for the engineering for this project is from local sources and no State
or Federal funds will be utilized

c The City of Dixon shall provide map locations of water and sewer mains to be
reconstructed with the project The City is to provide sizes and map locations of
existing water and sanitary sewer mains within the project limits

d The City under separate contract has had new sanitary and water lines installed
in this area This information will be added to plan development

e The tree types for new installations with the project and the relocation of existing
trees shall be determined by the Dixon Tree Commission

f The project plans for Willett Hofmann Associates services shall be incorporated
into two 2 plan sets and will be bid on separate lettings The current break point
is expected to be at Artesian Ave

g It is anticipated that Federal Funds will be utilized for the construction of Artesian
to IL Rte 2 To facilitate the use of Federal Funds a Project Development Report
will be produced and submitted to IDOT for approval

h ROW need will be determined during project development Additional work
required for plat preparation will be performed on a time and material basis

3 Make or cause to be made such traffic studies and counts and signal warrants and design
for the intersections of River Street and Ottawa and Artesian Avenues and IL Rte 2

4 Perform Public Involvement services which will include attending Working Session
meeting at City Council 2 Coordination with KSB and providing information for all
public partners

Page 1 of 4



City of Dixon
2015 River Road

Galena Ave to IL Rte 2

Reconstruction

EXHIBIT A

5 Perform planning and design services including reconstruction of the existing roadway
curb gutter storm sewer sidewalks street lighting and multiuse path Meet and
coordinate with City Staff for review and project input Make complete general and
detailed plans special provisions bidding proposals and estimates of time and cost and
furnish the LA with five 5 copies of the plans special provisions proposals and estimates
Additional copies of any or all documents if required shall be furnished to the LA by the
ENGINEER at his actual cost for reproduction

6 Utilize the services of Engle Electric who will be assisting in the preparation and design
plans and specifications for the electrical components of the construction including
electrical services roadway street lighting and controllers

7 Assist the City with project bidding and compilation of bids and award recommendations
8 Prepare the necessary environmental documents in accordance with the procedures

adopted by the DEPARTMENTsBureau of Local Roads and Streets

The LA Agrees

Paragraphs 1 2 3 4 5 of the agreement isare amended to include the following agreements
of the parties

The LA Agrees
1 a To pay the ENGINEER as compensation for all services performed as stipulated in
paragraphs la 1b lc ld le 1f lg lh li lj and ik as marked under the ENGINEER AGREES at
the hourly rates shown in Exhibit D for personnel assigned to this SECTION as payment in full to
the ENGINEER for the actual time spent in providing these services the hourly rates to include
profit overhead readiness to serve insurance social security and retirement deductions Outside
expenses shall include traveling and outofpocket expense Traveling and other outofpocket
expenses will be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost The personnel classification and
rates of pay for the various personnel that may be employed on this improvement shall be within
the limits shown in Exhibit D Subject to the approval of the LA the ENGINEER may sublet all or
part of the services provided under paragraphs la lb lc ld le 1f lg lh 11 11 and 1k of the
ENGINEER AGREES If the ENGINEER sublets all or part of this work the LA will pay the cost
to the ENGINEER plus five 5 percent to cover readiness to serve Cost to Engineer to be verified
by furnishing the LA and the DEPARTMENT copies of invoices from the party doing the work

The total cost of these services shall have a cost NOT TO EXCEED of 19894491
See Exhibits B Cl

The classification of the employees used in the work should be consistent with the employees
classifications for the services performed If the personnel of the firm including the Principal
Engineer perform routine services that should normally be performed by lessersalaried
personnel the wage rate billed for such services shall be commensurate with the work performed

Page 2 of 4



City of Dixon
2015 River Road

Galena Ave to IL Rte 2

Reconstruction

EXHIBIT A

b To pay the ENGINEER as compensation for all services performed as
stipulated in paragraphs lc 1h under the ENGINEER AGREES at the hourly rates stipulated in
Exhibit D for personnel assigned to this SECTION as payment in full to the ENGINEER for the
actual time spent in providing these services the hourly rates to include profit overhead readiness
to serve insurance social security and retirement deductions Outside expenses shall include
traveling and outofpocket expense Traveling and other outofpocket expenses will be
reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost The personnel classification and rates of pay for
the various personnel that may be employed on this improvement shall be within the limits shown
in Exhibit D Subject to the approval of the LA the ENGINEER may sublet all or part of the services
provided under paragraphs lc 1h of the ENGINEER AGREES If the ENGINEER sublets all or

a part of this work the LA will pay the cost to the ENGINEER plus five 5 per cent to cover
readiness to serve Cost to Engineer to be verified by furnishing the LA and the DEPARTMENT
copies of invoices from the party doing the work

The classification of the employees used in the work should be consistent with the employees
classifications for the services performed If the personnel of the firm including the Principal
Engineer perform routine services that should normally be performed by lesser salaried
personnel the wage rate billed for such services shall be commensurate with the work performed

2 That payments due the ENGINEER for services rendered pursuant to this AGREEMENT will
be made as soon as practicable after the services have been performed in accordance with the
following schedule

a Upon completion of the services stipulated In the Special Provisions Section under
ENGINEER AGREES the engineer will be paid the total amount due for these services in
accordance with paragraph 1 above

b Upon completion of all inspections and reports to the satisfaction of the LA and the
DEPARTMENT 100 percent of the fee based on the provisions of paragraph 1 above for
inspections and reports

3 That should the improvement be abandoned at any time after the ENGINEER has performed
any part of the services provided for in the Special Provisions Section under ENGINEER
AGREES and prior to the completion of such services the LA shall reimburse the ENGINEER
as compensation for all services performed up to the time he is notified in writing of such
abandonment at the hourly rates stipulated in Exhibit D for personnel assigned to this
SECTION as payment in full to the ENGINEER for the actual time spent in providing these
services the hourly rates to include profit overhead readiness to serve insurance social
security and retirement deductions Materials traveling and other outofpocket expense will
be reimbursed to the ENGINEER at his actual cost

Page 3 of 4



City of Dixon
2015 River Road

Galena Ave to IL Rte 2

Reconstruction

EXHIBIT A

4 That should the LA require changes in scope after they have been approved the LA will pay
the ENGINEER for such changes in accordance with paragraph 1 above It is understood that
changes as used in this paragraph shall in no way relieve the ENGINEER of his responsibility
to perform inspections and supply reports

5 To assist the ENGINEER by placing at his disposal all available information pertinent to the
site of the project including previous reports and any other data relative to the bridge

6 To guarantee access to and make all provisions for the ENGINEER to enter upon public and
private lands as required for the ENGINEER to perform his work under this AGREEMENT

7 To furnish the ENGINEER with a description of and the names of Owners and lien holders of
property adjacent to the proposed improvement where such data is needed for the
preparation of plans andor right of way or easement plats

Page 4 of 4



WILLETT HOFMANN
A S S O C I A T E S I N C

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING

809 E 2 Street

Dixon IL 61021

Wednesday December 10 2014

EXHIBIT B

Cost Estimate of Consultant Services

Page 1 of 1

Project 2015 River Road Galena Ave to IL Rte 2 Reconstruction

County Lee



ti 0 0 0 0 000
b

W 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
0

4 N m N m M m Y1 N O 4 m O M C
4h f o g I w

v

C

1 1t w

t del O 8 d m t 0 ON N N ct t m tv r m V1 m oo in N nA oo
0 1 Oo 0o tl mm rn o t 00 al

0 t 0ocroom cv 00
es H 696969597la 69 61 S9en 69 00

i

W

5 tj T 00 00 0

tr u 3 g U 8 eeiw 7 N

r ati
v

bl N
f

69 F19

5f

E O

L Q
Ofie

W

t
f

o

a 0O O 00 O 0000 0

t 0000ryocy0 N

in 0 O m
h

m 00 000 v N m
Q o

ONNs
w o 0 M 0 0 t m m O O N O h

4
0i

0
eel d fA eA Oft

7
V016mA6AAfA

fR

a p 69 69 69 9
be e

000 rnrn0ii Iel V1 m

y
N O

O
N N O 00 O m

1 Fs r a O O pd i O 030 O m T
m eA 69 69 59 ea9 69 69 69 ti ti GA

69 59 59 69

4

O 00 co e4 co 00 fir N O O 0 00 r b
O m

ton
N s0 00 t VI et NO V SO 0

I 0

Q

k

igo

tOti cd

6

l t

AQ i15t4
T 11Ca

4
Q

V

a
11



WILLETT HOFMANN
A S S O C I A T E S I N C

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING

809 E 2nd Street

Dixon IL 61021

Wednesday December 10 2014

EXHIBIT C

Average Hourly Project Rates
Pages 1 4 of 4

Project 2015 River Road Galena Ave to IL Rte 2 Reconstruction

County Lee



v V S T00000000 00000000 MWI 0000000
CD Om

d9 69 69 69 f1 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 to 69 69 69 O
4 1 N C g C h O C O O O O O O O O O C G C M

1
43 eee ee e o o e o o eee o e

t Q y 0 t S 8 S 8 8 0 8 0 8 S S S 8 S S 8 8 O S S ob S S
p p p n C o O O O G O O D C O C O N O O O o O o 6

Af A u
fV

CD

zLw o
L Sty

O
A O O O CD

tas E
if

o r 8 a o o o o 0
go o o 0 S 0 0 u

OD S S S S 0 n

O00 5g0O0000000 r000000
69 69 69 41 6 fA 69 69 61 69 69 69 69 69 69 M 69 69 69 69 69 69s 3 a PPP444 69 69 69

Y f1 01

iiki El e e e e e e e o e e e o e e e e e e e a e 4
A w 00000000 Goo 000 003 d q 4 n M o

rthT
4

o 0 0 0

A a N 1
pO O

O N N n

x

p dr 0Q000000OO000000O0o 4i 8 d

D 66 0 0
00 69696 0696

bf
00 C5

E a PP444
k

r

e ee eeeeeeee e e e o
2 CD CD CDDbobbVoMO boo

it10o 000000ryvl
00000 0

co S
1

w
a0000000000v100o00000 0 o

a o 0 0 0 0

a 0000000 0o000yrI
r

0000000000cj00000000N00 10

t
69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 069 69 69 69 69 9 69 MM cn 61 lfffiii 69

gAk
o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o e e o o e o 0 o e e o 0 0

pe 0
t U O O O O S SS S SSSO 0 O O O CDo00o0 Oo

1
O O O O CD v c

g
a00000000000 6000 o
O O O O O o

to C
N0 44 S

F O
x

0 0 0 O 0 O 0 O C O 0 0 0 C 0 0 O C 0 0 0 0
N M l 01 01 M O O O O N O M O 10 O I y 40f

fe 4O 0f 41 41 O M 4
01 01 00
41 0 4

e1
O0 00 Y1 M 00sli 1C Y1 V1 1 1 V115 00 I M O G

r i
wl M 4 01 00 Cs N O 00 h 10AV 6969Yl6969 96969 9 69 69 69 69ti

bt

il4
3 ti

4M
lJA IF

1 f1

WA
4 1

R7 E Es

g 8 in
4 aye Q IV IN

O

Y

II PIggggg

a

I F



et tj O N O O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O O N O O O 0 O O Q
f c o0o

N0000O O0o000o rio000 CD vv

N

a

a696VO6969 68PP44

R o

6969n y
0

pa g o S o S 0 0 o o o 0 0 0 411 O 0 O O O O O
dOaoaovlooddo0VI et

w

fi N p v
O 0

0
O

N N
se0

AfS 0
00000000000000gp 000 N00

C Cr C l o C 0 O C 0 0 0 0 O C 1 C O C 0 0 0 V1

a 64 48 69 69 69 69 69 64 44 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 cnvl 69ffW

CDM A 1
e

6900roo 0000 o o
vD pydrdgddoocoododdNOOOOC S

a1
j 0 0 0 0 0

rtet l 0o N d

4 ax
p ppSV1o 00 0 0 00000000 0

to a3 O M0 M O O 00 OO 0 0 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 l

C
69 64 69 6R 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 6a9

Y r Q
a PP44

5 w a u o e 0 0 0 e o 0 0 0 e e
2 a b00N0 0 0 0000000000 S

a wohoo000S00000oo V1000000 0

al
a 0fV 0 0000000 CC0000 0

Y 00 O

poO
0 0

t3k
9

N
O b n

O

vl Z

pp pp pp pp p
S O O n 0 S S 0 S S S S S S S ct O S 0 O O S

t 0 0 0 O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1G 0 0 0 0 0 0 Vl
o

1 a
69 69 69 l 64 69 69 69 69 64 69 48 44 69 6R 69 64 69 64 69 49 O

a
69 4 44

t

u o o

1 A Tt 0 0 0 0 0 00 O S S O 00 O S O S O S 0
y a 0 V1 O 0 0 0 O O 0 O C 0 0 O N G C O C C O d

egs
El
0

U 0 O 0 0
F i d 4 0690

g P4 O O o O o o O o o o 0

t Al r O 1 0 r1 O O O O O Cl O M 0 1 O O Al C
Y C 01 V1 41 O M V v1 O d 46 V1 M P o 00 m O G
ir4 41 M O 00 N O O 00 N co CO 0 00 o in 411 t h 41
f S by r 694969 69 69 69 r 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69

O 69 69 69 69 64 69

1 A

sr 4
u

o G E ES S
r rn i g 0 0 5 0 0

w b

44 v5vunv5v5
o

Su o

ds

b b o v o
w

I I
aka

i
v o o W A U

i hiv

M
1U

O

V

Z O O O O O S3 N u

a H w0cccacCcCraFHHHon cd5



I 8
et c7

000N0 0
a N

u C 0 Y1 O C C o 0 0 C C O C C O C C O O O O o Vo 6644 69696969gg696969fA g696r9gfA69b96969 to

x a bq 7
t

r o e o 0 0 0 0 e e e e e e e e e s

1 1
a888 00008008000 o

A a00000c00000000coc o o0000 0
y

4

al
0

oM
O

O

r x x
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8 8 0 0 0 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
o N 0 0 0 0 o O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 N

t a 00 0000000000000000000

a
69 m 69 A 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 64 69 69 en

w 61 6s

z gee e2
p
e o e e e o e

p0p 0 0p
ee o p p o e

t
G4 g O O O O O O O O O O O o 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8

4Z
V

x a O O O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 O

vpI x

o 0 0 0 0 o 0 00 00 00 00 o00 00 0 00o o 00 00 o OO 00o o

6 69 69 696966969696 6 69 6H69 aa

1 oo 000

a
e 0 000000000vO o o oo 0 0 o bog 0

p 0 o o o o o o o o o 0 0 o o o o o d o o o o o
o

id
E xi

kJ 0 01 O fl 08 O88888800 00 000800 O6E
PP44

4 oC D 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C 0C p 0 0 0 4 fV
S

69 b9 64 h 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 EA 69 69 64 64 69 A 69 69 69 69 CT

C 0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
o o

0
a

0
o o

g
a

0 0
o

0
o

0
0

0
0 0

91
0
0 003

a

0
c C000000000000000000000

9 0
0 0

g

ffu
000000050 0000000000

t 00
A 7

sEip oV

tit 5 va o 0 0 0 0

x m
O

en 4

1 w 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

i hM8 OOMNO
a v m ON 0000 N N O O 0000 N 0 0 N mbb 000 0p v in n N VL

696969 696969 1 69 69 69 69 69 69 fA 646969
It i O

69 V9 69 69 69 69

r

Qi 1
S

f

El
0000

0 En
b

3 3i 6i a hi

o

c cvU E aCwri60 4 4444HFEFac H



d d 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 p O p O 0 O p p
O O O O O

O p

O

o

O O O

o

O O O

o

O 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

N
J G N 60848444444448 6

s o iM133 W

c

VA p gYo LqLq
o o e e o og e o

8 O C 0 C 6 6 O ci 6 C C C O C 6 C O C 6 C O O C

A
4G

o

OF 0 O

s x

ff L
t

O VV O 000 O
O

O
p

O O O 0
0

0

0
0

0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 M

r W N 66fA6i96696cS 48686oosoos X 069Y 66899

L
69

o 0 0 0 o e e e e o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 0 0 0 e

A a AoMI4Doo000000000000 0
p a

O M O o o 0 0 C o 0 0 0 O C O C C C C 0 O C

WNy O O O

Gam
p

i 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 C
C Q4 C lV C o C C O O O 4

t t d 69 00 69 69 49 69 6A 69 69 69 69 69 64 69 69 69 69 69 69 69 O

e o 0 o e o 0

20
o e e o 0 o e o 0 0 0 o a o 0

0 O N 0 88 O888 O O O O
c000aadc00000000000c000000 00

z o o o

v

S z
falNn pp p pp pp
z y

w
O t O N 0

0
0 0 0 0

CD CD
0 o 0

0 CD
O O n 0 0 0

oOo o0 6

0 00
696oo6A669 6

69 6169696469 CA14 P4

111
o e e o 0 0 0 0 0 0 o e e o a o o e o 0 0 0 00A eeee egeg eee

a omoel6o6oSSoo6o6ry0006o006 0

a ocio o0
b

Q o 0 0 0

qi ai
4 d N 06

Al
p p p p04

VI 00 5 0 0600 O D00o t 0
CD 000 0000O M N 0

g O Q V V1 C M V1 O d e7t 01 G h M N p 00 d 0
1V1 M

i

O 00 h
N

T Q 00 O pp 00 l0 V1 V1
M

V
4 ay

6 64
a 69 69 69

4
69 6A 69

68
69 FA 64 69 69 N9 69 6A 6A 69

CO

t
6H fA fR 69 b9 69

u i

4
4

r3 11

ott i p td

id

G A v

EP

i u 0 0 0 0 0

8
e

x w

Aft

4 a a pa q
q O

iIJ11 U H O



7
WILLETT HOFIVIANN

A S S O C I A T E S I N C

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LAND SURVEYING

809 E 2nd Street

Dixon IL 61021

Wednesday December 10 2014

EXHIBIT D

General Rates for Engineering Services
Page 1 of 1

Project 2015 River Road Galena Ave to IL Rte 2 Reconstruction

County Lee



f A
WILLFTTHOFIVIANN

A S S O C I A T E S I N C

ENGINEERING ARCHITECTURE LANG SURVEYING

March 30 2014
EXHIBIT D

GENERAL RATES FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

FIELD AND OFFICE

CLASSIFICATION OF

I RATE

REGULAR HOURLY

I OVERTIME
EMPLOYEE RATE

From To

Principal Engineering Manager 13200 18000 Regular Rate
Engineering Manager 12000 16500 Regular Rate
Civil Engineer IV 9900 13800 Regular Rate
Civil Engineer III 8100 12000 Regular Rate
Civil Engineering Intern II 7500 10800 Regular Rate
Civil Engineering Intern I 6900 9600 Regular Rate
Architect IV 10800 14400 Regular Rate
Architect III 9300 12600 Regular Rate
Architectural Intern II 8400 10500 Regular Rate
Architectural Intern I 7500 9300 Regular Rate
Prof Land Surveyor Manager 9600 13500 Regular Rate
Prof Land Surveyor IV 8400 12000 Regular Rate
Prof Land Surveyor III 7200 9900 Regular Rate
Prof Land Surveyor SIT II 6300 8700 Regular Rate
Prof Land Surveyor SIT I 5400 7500 Regular Rate
Technician IV 6900 9600 13 x Regular Rate
Technician III 6000 8400 13 x Regular Rate
Technician II 5400 7200 13 x Regular Rate
Technician I 4500 6300 13 x Regular Rate
Survey Worker Foreman 6000 12000 13 x Regular Rate
Survey Worker 6000 12000 13 x Regular Rate
Administrative Assistant 3900 6900 13 x Regular Rate
Expenses and Materials At Cost

The hourly wages of these Classifications may be subject to the Illinois Prevailing Wage Act

The above hourly rates shall be applicable for a period of one year from the date hereon after which time
they shall be subject to adjustments to reflect payroll cost

Generally field crews work a ninehour day which involves an hour of overtime each day The rates for
field personnel apply office to office exclusive of the lunch period



I3C

ORDINANCE NO

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING TITLE X CHAPTER 6 SECTION 10613
TRUCKS PROHIBITED ON CERTAIN STREETS AND

TITLE X CHAPTER 6 SECTION 10614
LIMITED LOAD STREETS AND ESTABLISHING A NEW

TITLE X CHAPTER 16 GOVERNING THE WEIGHT AND DIMENSIONS
OF VEHICLES AND ESTABLISHING A PERMITTING SYSTEM

FOR OVERWEIGHT VEHICLES

WHEREAS Section 15102 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 515102
sets forth width limitations for vehicles operated on public highways and streets in the
State of Illinois and

WHEREAS Section 15 103 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 515103
sets forth height restrictions for vehicles operated on public highways and streets in the
State of Illinois and

WHEREAS Section 15 107 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 515107
sets forth length restrictions on vehicles operated on public highways and streets in the
State of Illinois and

WHEREAS Section 15111 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 515111
sets forth weight limitations for vehicles operated on public highways and streets in the
State of Illinois and

WHEREAS Section 15101 and 15 111 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS
515101 625 ILCS 515111 and Section 15 111 set forth certain exceptions for the
vehicle weight restrictions generally imposed under Section 15111 and

WHEREAS under Section 15301 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 515
301 the City is granted authority to issue special permits for the travel of overweight
vehicles over City streets and roadways and to collect a fee therefor and

WHEREAS the Dixon City Code presently contains no provision for the
issuance of overweight permits as authorized under Section 15 301 of the Illinois Vehicle
Code and

WHEREAS under Section 20204 of the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 520
204 the City is granted authority to adopt the Illinois Vehicle Code by reference thereto
and the City has previously adopted the Vehicle Code by reference pursuant to an
ordinance presently codified at Title X Chapter 4 Section 10422 of the City Code of
Dixon Illinois and

WHEREAS the City Council finds that the present regulation of the size and
weight of vehicles on City streets is inadequate to enforce the size and weight limitations



contained in the Illinois Vehicle Code and further that the lack of such enforcement has
a deleterious effect on roads and streets within the City and

WHEREAS the City Council fords it in the best interests of the City to repeal
Title X Chapter 6 Section 10613 trucks prohibited on certain streets and Title X
Chapter 6 Section 10614 limited load streets and to further amend Title X of the
Dixon City Code by the addition of a new Chapter 16 to provide for City enforcement of
vehicle size and weight restrictions established by the Illinois Vehicle Code to provide
for the designation of truck routes within the City and to establish a City permitting
system for the operation of overweight vehicles within the City of Dixon

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF DIXON LEE COUNTY ILLINOIS as follows

1 That Title X Chapter 6 Section 10613 trucks prohibited on certain
streets and Title X Chapter 6 Section 10614 limited load streets of the Dixon City
Code are hereby repealed

2 That Title X of the Dixon City Code as amended is hereby further
amended by the addition of a new Chapter 16 to be entitled Designated Truck Routes
Vehicle Size and Weight Limits and Overweight Vehicle Permits as set forth in full as
follows

CHAPTER 16 DESIGNATED TRUCK ROUTES VEHICLE WEIGHT LIMITS
AND OVERWEIGHT PERMITS

Section 10161 Designated truck routes and other designated routes Map

A The locations and designations of truck routes and other designated routes
are shown upon the City of Dixon 2014 Truck Route Map which is hereby incorporated
into this Chapter The City of Dixon 2014 Truck Route Map together with all notations
references and other information shown thereon and all amendments thereto shall be a
part of this chapter and shall have the same force and effect as if the City of Dixon 2014
truck route map together with all notations references and other information shown
thereon were fully set forth and described herein The City of Dixon 2014 Truck Route
Map shall be made available upon request at City Hall and shall also be posted on the
City website

B All routes so designated shall be posted with signage in accordance with
the Illinois Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices

Section 10162 Weight limitations on Designated Roads

The maximum weight limits of vehicles upon the roadways designated under
Section 10161 shall be as set forth in Section 15111 of the Illinois Vehicle Code and as
may be amended

2



Section 10163 Gross Weight Limits

A Designated Truck Routes It shall be unlawful for any personsto
operate or cause to be operated a motor vehicle having a gross weight including vehicle
and maximum load in excess of the weight limitations as set forth in Section 15111 of
the Illinois Vehicle Code on any designated truck route under Section 10161 within the
City of Dixon unless said vehicle constitutes an exempt vehicle within Section 10164 or
is otherwise permitted pursuant to Section 10164 or Section 10165

B Non Designated Routes It shall be unlawful for any personsto operate
or cause to be operated a vehicle having a gross weight including vehicle and minimum
load in excess of the weight limits set forth in Section 15111 of the Illinois Vehicle
Code on any non designated routes within the City unless said vehicle constitutes an
exempt vehicle within Section 10164 or is otherwise permitted pursuant to Section 10
164 or Section 10165 Where City streets are posted with signage designating a
different weight limitation it shall be unlawful for any person or persons to operate or
cause to be operated on any such street a vehicle in excess of the posted weight
limitation unless one of the exceptions provided in Section 10164 is applicable to said
vehiclesor as otherwise permitted pursuant to Section 10164 or Section 10165

Section 10164 Exempt Vehicles

The following vehicles are exempt from the weight restrictions described and set
forth in Section 1016 and Section 10163

A Vehicles specified as exempt under 625 ILCS 515101band c of the
Illinois Vehicle Code

B Vehicles which are excepted from the weight limits under 625 ILCS 515
111 including but not limited to vehicles for which the Department of Transportation
andor local authorities have issued overweight permits pursuant to 625 ILCS 515301 of
the Illinois Vehicle Code

C Vehicles which have been issued overweight permits by Lee County for
county or township highways in Lee County and vehicles which have been issued
overweight permits by South Dixon Township for South Dixon Township highways

Section 10165 Special Permits

A Special Permits for Overweight Vehicles Hauling International Shipping
Containers

1 Truck Route Permits The City Administrator Mayor or the
designee of either designee Permitting Authority upon application by a
person Permittee and good cause being shown may issue a special permit
authorizing a vehicle or combination of vehicles not in conformity with the

3



weight limitations of Sec 10162 or Section 10163 that is hauling sealed
International Shipping Containers the contents of which are considered by the
Illinois Department of Transportation to be indivisible to be operated or moved
upon any street or highway under the jurisdiction of the City which has been
designated a Truck Route under Sec 10161 provided however no permit shall
be issued for any vehicle hauling International Shipping Containers that weighs
100000 pounds or more

2 Other Route Permits The Permitting Authority upon application
by a Permittee and good cause being shown may issue a special permit
authorizing a vehicle hauling sealed International Shipping Containers the
contents of which are considered by the Illinois Department of Transportation to
be indivisible not in conformity with the weight limitations of Sec10162 or
Section 10163 to be operated or moved upon any non designated street or
highway under the jurisdiction of the City provided however no permit shall be
issued for any vehicle hauling International Shipping Containers that weighs
100000 pounds or more

3 Fees The fees for special permits for overweight trucks hauling
sealed International Shipping Containers under this section are as follows

Permit Type Weight Class OneDay Permit Annual Permit
Truck Route 80000 99999 pounds 2500 35000
Permit
NonTruck 80000 99999 pounds 2500 35000
Route Permit

All special permit forms for Overweight Vehicles hauling International Shipping
Containers shall be on file at the Permitting Authoritysoffice

4 Application Requirements The application for any such permit
shall

a specifically describe the vehicle to be operated or moved

b state if the applicant is an authorized carrier under the Illinois
Motor Carrier of Property Law Motor Carrier Law and if so the
certificate registration or permit number issued by the Illinois Commerce
Commission to the applicant

c include any request for routing to the nearest certified scale in
accordance with the Illinois Department of Transportation and

d state if the vehicle or load is being transported for hire

B Special Permits for All Other Overweight Vehicles

4



1 Truck Route Permits The Permitting Authority upon application
by a person Permittee and good cause being shown may issue a special
permit authorizing a vehicle or combination of vehicles other than vehicles
hauling sealed International Shipping Containers not in conformity with the
weight regulations of Section 10162 or Section 10163 to be operated or moved
upon any street or highway under the jurisdiction of the City which has been
designated a Truck Route under Section 10161

2 Other Route Permits The Permitting Authority upon application
by a Permittee and good cause shown may issue a special permit authorizing a
vehicle not in conformity with the weight limitations of Section 10162 or
Section 10163 to be operated or moved upon any street or highway under the
jurisdiction of the City

3 Fees The fees for special permits for vehicles other than vehicles
hauling sealed International Shipping Containers under this section are as follows

Permit Type Weight Class OneDay Permit
Truck Route Permits 80000 99999 2500

on streets and pounds
highways designated
as Truck Routes

100000 4000

119999 pounds
120000 8000

149999 pounds
150000 pounds 12000

or greater

Permits on any roads 80000 99999 2000
within the City for pounds
vehicles

100000 4000

119999 pounds
120000 8000

149999 pounds
150000 pounds 12000

or greater

Fees listed above are per vehicle All special permit forms shall be on file at the
Permitting Authoritysoffice

4 Application Requirements The application for any such permit
shall

5



a specifically describe the vehicle and load to be operated or
moved and the particular streets or highways for which the permit to
operate is requested

b state if the applicant is an authorized carrier under the Illinois
Motor Carrier of Property Law Motor Carrier Law and if so the
certificate registration or permit number issued by the Illinois Commerce
Commission to the applicant

c state the routing requested including the points of origin and
destination and may identify and include a request for routing to the
nearest certified scale in accordance with the Illinois Department of
Transportation and

d state if the vehicle or load is being transported for hire

C Needfor Multiple Permits For those trucks intended to be operated upon
both a designated truck route and a non designated truck route both forms of permitting
shall be necessary

D Permits to be Available Online Permit applications shall be available
online Applications shall be in a form that may be submitted online and permits may be
issued through electronic communication that the applicant must then print and carry
within the vehicle

E Fees To Be Deposited in Special Account All fee payments under this
section less any costs of administering the permitting process shall be deposited in an
account to be used solely for maintenance repair and improvement of Truck Routes as
designated in 10161 within the jurisdiction of the City

F Permits for Vehicles for Hire No permits for the movement of a vehicle or
load for hire shall be issued to any applicant who is required under the Motor Carrier Law
to have a certificate registration or permit who does not have such certificate
registration or permit

G Special Conditions to Permits The Permitting Authority is authorized to
withhold any permit at its discretion when such permit would be inconsistent with traffic
safety or if such permit is issued to limit the number of trips to establish seasonal or
other time limitations within which the vehicle described may be operated on the streets
or highways indicated to require appropriate escort vehicles for the vehicle subject to the
permit or otherwise to prescribe conditions of operation of such vehicle when such
action in the judgment of the Permitting Authority is necessary to protect against undue
damage to the road foundations surfaces or structures

H Permits Required to be Carried Every permit shall be in written form and
carried in the vehicle to which it refers and shall be open to inspection by any police

6



officer or authorized agent of the Permitting Authority No person shall violate any of
the terms or conditions of such permit Violation of the terms and conditions of a permit
shall not be deemed a revocation of the permit provided however any vehicle found to
be off the route prescribed in the permit shall be deemed to be operating without a permit
Any off route vehicle shall be required to obtain a new permit or permits as necessary to
authorize the movement back onto the original permit routing Nothing herein shall be
construed to authorize any police officer court or authorized agent of the Permitting
Authority to remove the permit from the possession of the Permittee unless the Permittee
is charged with a fraudulent permit violation

I Violation ofPermits Does Not Void Permit OffRoute Offenses

1 Violation of any rule limitation condition or provision of any
permit issued in accordance with the provisions of this Section shall not render
the entire permit null and void but the violator shall be subject to prosecution for
both a violation ofpermit under Sec 10 165I and a violation of any weight or
load limitations under Section 10162 or Section 10163

2 The prescribed route or routes constitute the sole extent of the
authorization granted by the permit If a vehicle andor load is found to be off the
route or routes prescribed by any permit authorizing movement the vehicle andor
load shall be deemed to be operating without a permit

J Violation ofPermits Fines and Penalties Whenever any vehicle is
operated or movement made in violation of a permit issued in accordance with this
Section the person to whom such permit was granted or the driver of such vehicle is
guilty of such violation and either but not both persons may be prosecuted for such
violations as stated herein Any person firm or corporation convicted of such violation
shall be guilty of a petty offense and shall be subject to the penalties set forth in 625
ILCS 515301j and as may be amended in addition to any fine imposed under Sec 10
1613

K Violationfor Lack ofRequired Permit If a vehicle is required to obtain a
permit under this Section it shall be unlawful for any person or any employee or agent
of such person to operate such vehicle without obtaining such permit Any person
charged with a violation of this section may be prosecuted for such violation Any person
convicted of violating this shall be subject to in addition to any fine imposed under
Section 10 1613 a fine of not less than 50000 nor more than 75000

Section 10167 Enforcement

A The City Administrator shall keep and maintain an accurate map showing
the location of all Truck Routes as specified in Sec 10161 which shall be made
available to the public

7



B No person shall be charged with violating the provisions of Section 1016
2 or Section 10163 hereof upon any streets where the posting of signs is required under
this Chapter or otherwise under law unless such signs are currently posted thereon

Section 10168 Weighing of Vehicles and Removal of Excess Loads

A Any police officer having reason to believe that the gross weight of a
vehicle and load is unlawful shall require the driver to stop and submit to a weighing
process by means of a portable or stationary scale that has been tested and approved at a
frequency prescribed by the Illinois Department of Agriculture If such scale is not
available at the place where such vehicle is stopped the police officer shall require that
such vehicle be driven to the nearest available scale that has been tested and approved by
the Illinois Department of Agriculture Notwithstanding any provisions of the Weights
and Measures Act or the United States Department of Commerce NIST Handbook 44
either multi draft weighing or single draft weighing is an acceptable method of weighing
by law enforcement for determining a violation of this Article City law enforcement
vehicles are exempt from the requirements of commercial weighing established in NIST
Handbook 44 as amended from time to time

B Whenever any police officer upon weighing a vehicle and load
determines that said weight is unlawful and in violation of this Chapter such officer shall
require that the driver stop his vehicle in a suitable place and remain standing until such
portion of the load is removed as may be necessary to reduce the weight of the vehicle to
the limit permitted by this Chapter All material so unloaded shall be cared for by the
owner or operator of the vehicle at his or her sole risk and such owner or operator shall
indemnify and hold harmless the City its officers employees and affiliates from any
claims or damages incurred therewith

C Any driver of a vehicle who refuses to stop and submit his vehicle and
load to a weighing process after being directed to do so by an officer or removes or
causes the removal of the load or part of it prior to completion of the weighing process
may be charged with a business offense and shall be subject to a fine in accordance with
Section 15 112gof the Illinois Vehicle Code and as may be amended in addition to
any other fees or fines provided for this Chapter or under law

D The Permitting Authority may authorize police officers to set up and
establish safety or enforcement check points Any police officer at such check points is
authorized to require a vehicle to stop and submit to a weighing without reason to believe
the vehicle is overweight and require the driver to present any City permits being carried
The Permitting Authority and all police officers shall comply with applicable Federal and
Illinois law governing roadside check points

Section 101610 Liability for Damages to Street or Roadway Improvements

A Any person driving any vehicle upon any street within the Citys corporate
limits and the owner of such vehicle shall be jointly and severally liable for any damage

8



which said street or appurtenant roadway improvements may sustain as a result of the
operation driving or moving of said vehicle exceeding the maximum weight or
dimensions specified in this Chapter regardless of whether or not a special permit is
obtained in accordance with Sec 10165

B The measure of liability shall be either a the cost of repairing the
damaged street or roadway improvements if the street or roadway improvements are
partially damaged or b the depreciated replacement cost of said street or roadway
improvement if the street or roadway improvements are damaged beyond repair The
measure of liability shall also include all other expenses incurred by the authorities in
control of said street or roadway improvements in providing a temporary detour
including without limitation a temporary structure to serve the needs of traffic during the
period of repair or replacement of the damaged street or roadway improvements

Section 101611 Fees for Police Escort

When City of Dixon Police Department escorts are required for the safety of the
motoring public pursuant to Sec 10 1650 the following fees shall be paid to the
Permitting Authority by the applicant 4000 per hour per escort vehicle based upon pre
estimated time of movement to be agreed upon between the Permitting Authority and
applicant provided however that a minimum fee of8000 shall be imposed per escort
vehicle

Section 101612 Overdimension Vehicles

A It shall be unlawful for any person to be in control of to drive park or
move on or upon or across or for the owner to cause or knowingly permit to be parked
driven or moved upon or across any street or highway under the jurisdiction of the City
of Dixon any vehicle or combination of vehicles exceeding the size limitations set forth
in Section 15102 of the Illinois Vehicle Code width Section 15 103 of the Illinois
Vehicle Code height or Section 15107 of the Illinois Vehicle Code length

B The dimension limitations contained in this Section shall not apply to
those vehicles excepted under Section 15101band c of the Illinois Vehicle Code or
as excepted under the respective sections of the Illinois Vehicle Code set forth above
governing width height and length respectively or any vehicles otherwise not subject to
such limitations under law

Section 101613 Penalty

A Unless a penalty is provided elsewhere in this Chapter any person firm
or corporation violating or failing to comply with any provisions of this Chapter or any
section of the Illinois Vehicle Code relating to overweight or overdimension vehicles as
incorporated in this Chapter shall be subject to any and all applicable fines and penalties
under the Illinois Vehicle Code 625 ILCS 51100 et seq

9



B In the absence of a penalty provision set forth in this Chapter or a
provision of the Illinois Vehicle Code governing penalties for such violation any person
firm or corporation violating or failing to comply with the provisions of this Chapter
shall be fined not less than one hundred and no100 dollars 10000and no more than
seven hundred fifty and no100 dollars 75000 for each offense A separate offense
shall be deemed committed on each separate incident during which a violation occurs

C In addition to seeking applicable fines as herein provided the City may
authorize its attorney or hisher designee to institute any proper action in the name of the
City of Dixon to enjoin any continuing violations of any provision of this Chapter

SECTION 2 All prior ordinances and conflict herewith are hereby repealed

SECTION 3 If any section paragraph sentence clause or other portion of this
Ordinance is held or deemed to be unconstitutional or valid then such holding or finding
of unconstitutionality or invalidity shall not affect the validity of the remaining provisions
of this Ordinance

SECTION 4 This Ordinance shall become effective ten 10 days after passage
and publication as required by law

Passed by the Council of the City of Dixon Illinois on the day of
2015

Mayor James Burke

ATTEST

City Clerk

AYE NAY

10



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AT ILLINOIS AIRPORTS
FOR ARCHITECTURALENGINEERING AE PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

Authorized for use by
The Illinois Department of Transportation

Division of Aeronautics
Effective June 2012

X Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Construction Phase Services

I I
Design Phase Services I Planning and Special Services

THIS AGREEMENT made at Dixon Illinois this day of
in the year 20 by and between the City of Dixon

hereinafter referred to as the Sponsor and Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc

hereinafter referred to as the Consultant This Agreement expires 5 years from the date of execution

WITNESSETH

The Sponsor intends to undertake the accomplishment of a project pursuant to the development of a public
air navigation facility known as the Dixon Municipal Airport C73 in

Lee County state of Illinois and the project shall be identified as the
Illinois Project No C73tbd AIP Project No 317SBGPtbd The

following is the detailed project title and description from the Illinois Department of TransportationsOffice
of Planning and Programming OPP program letter which shall be carried through the development of
the project attach supplemental information as necessary in Section IG Detailed Scope of Services

Install Perimeter Fence Along North Property Line

A detailed sketch of the proposed work labeled ATTACHMENT P shall be attached

In consideration of the benefits which will accrue to the parties hereto by virtue of the Agreement and the
respective covenants herein contained IT IS MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED as follows

The Consultant agrees to furnish executed Certification of Engineer and certain professional engineering
services enumerated hereinafter in connection with the implementation and development of the aforesaid
project

IDOT Division of Aeronautics
September 26 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201
Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 1



The Department of Transportation Division of Aeronautics within the state of Illinois shall act as Agent of

the OwnerSponsor for all matters involving the development of any public air navigation facility by virtue of

the Illinois Aeronautics Act The Illinois Aeronautics Act requires and directs the Illinois Department of

Transportation Division of Aeronautics hereinafter referred to as the Department to regulate and

supervise aeronautics within this state with aeronautics defined as the design establishment

construction extension operation improvement repair or maintenance of airports The Department

shall not expend any funds appropriated or made availableforany work upon any such project that is not

contracted for and constructed or developed under the supervision or direction of the Department Financial

assistance may include reimbursement to eligible airport Sponsors for engineering costs directly related

to projects financed in whole or in part by federalstate monies provided such engineering costs were

approved by the Department prior to the payment of these costs by the airport Sponsor The approval of

engineering costs prior to payment shall qualify those costs for federalstate reimbursement but shall not

constitute an obligation of federalstate funds

Since the services contemplated under this Agreement are professional in nature it is understood that the

Consultant acting as an individual partnership firm or other legal entity is of professional status and will

be governed by professional ethics in their relationship to the Department and the Sponsor The Department

acknowledges the professional and ethical status of the Consultant by approving this Agreement and the

associated fees for federalstate eligibility either in whole or part on the basis of their qualifications and

experience and determining their compensation by mutually satisfactory negotiations

Any additionsdeletions revisionsmodifications to this Agreement without the expressed written consent of

the Department shall void this Agreement as it relates to state and federal funding participation eligibility

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 2



I ARCHITECTURALENGINEERING AE PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

The Consultant agrees to perform various professional engineering and planning services and
provide necessary and required information pursuant to the accomplishment of the above
referenced project

It is understood that meetings will be common to all phases The Consultant will coordinate project
kickoff pre design and preconstruction meetings and project status update meetings as required
in order to resolve project issues with the Department Sponsor andor other regulatory and review
agencies The Department shall be notified of scheduled agency meetings and given the
opportunity to participate Meetings for which effort will be billed shall be thoroughly documented
by minutes with copies distributed to the Sponsor and the Department within 10 days of the
meeting Failure to properly document meeting discussions could result in the Toss of part or all of
the professional services compensation eligibility associated with this activity

A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN

This phase includes activities required for agency coordination and permit development non
routine surveys testing and architecturalengineering preliminary design considerations of a
project Elements of this phase may include development of architectural schematic building
designs and reports non routine geological and field investigations soil borings and pavement
cores DCP testing FWD testing when used to evaluate pavement as part of a strengthening
project coordination of FAA reimbursable agreements coordination of utility relocation
agreements coordination of force account activity must be preapproved by the Department
in writing

The Consultant shall furnish andor perform engineering reconnaissance necessary for the
preparation and development of an engineering report bidding documents design plans and
specifications including topographic field surveys crack surveys and sampling and testing for
routine soils investigations in accordance with ATTACHMENT J Testing Schedule
ATTACHMENT K Testing Rates Cost Summary

This phase will culminate in the submittal of a detailed engineering report with project
alternatives and design recommendations and project completion timeline assessment

The Consultant shall furnish an engineering report in accordance with standard practices and
the provisions of ATTACHMENT E Engineering Report The report will include an analysis of
preliminary surveys geotechnical testing and alternative designs and include final project
design recommendations

The project completion timeline assessment will identify necessary effort required to complete
the final project design complete construction plans and specifications This phase of project
development will represent approximately 35 of the project design timeline Project
formulation should be consistent with the TIP submittal and the program letter project
description ATTACHMENT R If not identify components that have changed as a result of
the preliminary assessment and schematic design analysis

A detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated
in ATTACHMENTS A Al

B DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

This phase shall include activities required to accomplish a project design in accordance with
the established Aeronautics letting schedule project design timeline and approved letting date
determined at the pre design meeting Requests for time extensions beyond the previously
agreedto submittal deadline dates as established in the Departments Letting Schedule
ATTACHMENT Q and this Agreement must be made to the Department in writing not less

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 3



than 5 days prior to the due date of the submittal The request for extension must be signed by
a principalofficer of the Consultants firm Incomplete submittals will not be accepted
Milestone submittals include the engineering report at 35 design timeline plan spec review
at 80 design timeline and final submittal of all deliverables at 100 design timeline A
detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated
in ATTACHMENTS B B1 Elements of this phase may include
1 CONSTRUCTION PLANS SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND ESTIMATES

The Consultant shall prepare and furnish for Department review and comment construction
plans special provisions and construction Safety Plan per guidance explained in FAA AC
15053702F or current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction at the 80
project design timeline with detailed estimate of costs estimated DBE participation goal
and workingcalendar day flow chart for the particular design authorized in this Agreement

2 CLARIFICATION OF PLANS

The Consultant shall render clarification of the construction plans and specifications when
and if such clarification is deemed necessary

3 BIDDING ASSISTANCE

The Consultant shall assist the Sponsor andor Department in the bidding process analyze
and summarize bid results

C CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES NOT INCLUDED THIS AGREEMENT

This phase shall include all basic services after the award A detailed scope of services shall
be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated in ATTACHMENTS C C1

1 OFFICE ENGINEERING

a SHOP DRAWINGS

Review the detailed construction shop and erection drawings submitted by the
contractorsfor compliance with design concepts

b SUPPLEMENTARY SKETCHES

Preparation of elementary and supplementary sketches plus estimates required to
resolve actual field conditions

c RECORD DRAWINGS

The Consultant shall prepare Record Drawings within thirty 30 days after the official
Notification from the Department of the Official Acceptance of the Construction Work
and after approval by the Department fumish said Department with one 1 set of such
record drawings The submittal format shall be in accordance with the current policies
of the Department

d MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

Prior to reporting a pay item quantity for payment the materials used and incorporated
in or associated with the pay item shall be verified for specification compliance by the
Consultant The Consultant shall obtain and review all certifications andor test results
required by the policies of the Department and the Departments Manual for
Documentation of Airport Materials At the completion of or any time prior to the
completion of the final quantity of a pay item the Consultant shall submit the
aforementioned material certifications andor test results that were utilized for
acceptance of material to the Department for review and final approval Prior to final

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 4



payment of engineering services under this agreement the Consultant shall have
submitted required certifications and test results to the Department and the Consultant
shall have signed the DepartmentsMATERIALS CERTIFICATION FORM

2 FIELD ENGINEERING

a RESIDENT ENGINEER APPROVAL

The Consultant agrees to furnish the name and qualifications of the Resident Engineer
in writing for approval of the participating agencies prior to the preconstruction
conference that shall attend said preconstruction conference and shall perform the
various professional engineering services required of the Resident Engineer in 2b
thru 2f below and inspection of construction

b DAILY DIARY

The Resident Engineer shall maintain a daily diary Copies shall be forwarded to the
Department ATTACHMENT F

c DUTIES OF RESIDENT ENGINEER

Furnish full time unless part time is approved by the Sponsor andor Department
Resident Engineering of construction including project inspection field testing and
furnish surveying at the site of the work whose duties shall include all reasonable
proper and customary duties as are usually and customarily furnished in connection
with the general engineering of construction of such improvements including but not
limited to the following

i Performance of acceptance and quality assurance tests when required by
Department policy andor contract specification Examples of these tests
include but are not limited to Testing concrete for slump and air content
testing concrete for strength testing bituminous concrete pavement for density
using the nuclear method and using the Bulk Specific Gravity Method
Obtaining representative samples of miscellaneous materials such as paint
geotextile fabric joint sealer epoxy polyester resin etc for testing as
necessary andoras directed by the Department performance of field density
tests of earthwork embankments backfills and subgrade field density tests of
subbase and base courses and moisture content tests on materials where
applicable and laboratory proctor tests where applicable Test Reports shall
be submitted to the Department within three 3 working days of the date the
test was conducted

ii InspectionMeasurementOversight of construction to determine that the work
was completed in substantial conformance with the approved plans and
specifications and in compliance with the requirements set forth in the contract
documents All stop or start work orders shall be issued by the Department
the Resident Engineer shall recommend the orders Document pay item
quantities reported for pay in accordance with the latest revision of the
DepartmentsAirport Construction Documentation Manual

iii Preparation and forwarding to the Department of periodic project reports
required by the Department Biweekly construction reports will be submitted
to the Department within three 3 calendar days of the end of the contractors
work week

iv To obtain and review for specification compliance material certifications
andor test results for all materials prior to their use in the construction

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 5



v To reject for inclusion in the project any materials that are delivered without
certification andor test results or materials delivered with certification that has
been found to be in noncompliance or any defect found through visual
inspection which renders the material unsuitable for inclusion in the project
The Department shall be notified when any rejections are made Materials
that are delivered without certification andor test results may be stockpiled or
stored in a manner acceptable to the Resident Engineer until such time as the
certification andor test result arrive and are reviewed and accepted by the
Resident Engineer

vi Preparation of Reports required per the Sponsors NPDES permit while
providing onsite services retaining all support documentation

vii Participate in audits performed to determine that the project is proceeding
accordingly per the plans and specifications and adhering to AIP grant
requirements

d FINAL INSPECTION

Initiate a request upon substantial completion of all construction work for a final
inspection by the Department When necessary a punch list of uncompleted items
and electrical checklist if applicable on the project shall be established at the final
inspection Submit a final acceptance letter punch list complete which shall certify to
the Department and the Sponsor that to the best of the Consultants knowledge
information and belief the work involved has been done in substantial conformance
with the plans specifications and Contract Document as the same shall have been
modified or supplemented by change order supplementary contract or otherwise and
that such work is acceptable

e SAFEGUARD THE SPONSOR

Endeavor to safeguard the Sponsor against any defects and deficiencies on the part
of the Contractor The Resident Engineer does not guarantee the performance of the
contract by the Contractor except that the Resident Engineer shall ensure that to the
best of the Resident Engineersknowledge information and belief the work has been
done in substantial conformance with the approved plans and specifications and
advise the Sponsor andor the Department in writing of any known noncompliance set
forth in the contract This does not in any wav mean that the Resident Engineer is a

guarantor of the Contractorswork The Resident Engineer assumes no responsibility
for safety in on or about the job site nor shall the Resident Engineer have any
responsibility for the safety or adequacy of any equipment building component
scaffolding forms or other work aids provided by the contractor nor is the Resident
Engineer responsible for the superintendence of the contractorswork or any acts of
the contractor

f OTHER ENGINEERING SERVICES

Furnish other Engineering Services which may be required by the Sponsor including
surveys sub surface investigations sampling testing and analysis of soils offsite
inspection of materials laboratory testing and inspection and control at central mixing
plants Where tests must be conducted by commercial laboratories only those
laboratories approved by the Department will be utilized If any of these services are
conducted by outside firms the Resident Engineer shall submit copies of the executed
contract for such services as specified in Section IIIB of this Agreement The charges
for such services shall be specified in the contract and will remain in effect until
completion of the services and acceptance by the Consultant Certified copies of the
results of all tests required by the Department under this paragraph are to be mailed
to the Department within five 5 calendar days after the tests are completed

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 6



g FINAL QUANTITIES

Final quantities associated with the accepted construction work shall be submitted to
the Department within thirty 30 days after final acceptance of the construction work

D PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED THIS AGREEMENT

This phase may involve activities or studies unrelated to or outside of the scope of basic design
and construction phase engineering services routinely performed by the Consultant Those
activities may include master plan and airport layout plan development environmental studies
and assessments PCI surveys FWD testing when used to evaluate pavement as part of a
publication revision firstorder NGS monument surveys boundary surveys aeronautical
surveys photogrammetric surveys and topographic mapping preparation of property
ownership plats and easements appraisal and land acquisition services benefit cost analysis
studies RSA determination studies drainage studies and analyses FEMAFIRM map
revisions and GIS updates A detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor
effort and costs delineated in ATTACHMENTS D D1

E ENDORSEMENT OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant will endorse and seal all final draft reports contract plans maps right of way
plats and special provisions for construction contract documents Such endorsements must
be made by a person duly licensed or registered in the appropriate category by the Department
of Financial and Professional Regulation of the state of Illinois being employed by the
Consultant and responsible for the portion of the services for which license registration is
required These sealed documents will serve as the record documents for the services covered
by the terms of the Agreement

F DELIVERABLES

At a minimum the Consultant shall provide the Department copy Sponsor upon request the
following deliverables

1 Final project estimate of costs complete w professional services fees and sponsor
reimbursement estimates

2 DBE participation goal and breakout of DBE work
3 QA verification of ELM Engineers Estimate for Schedule of Prices
4 Calendar day estimate of construction and detailed breakout of critical work items and

associated production rates
5 One set of final construction plans halfsize and special provisions sealed by the

Consultant and executed by the Sponsor
6 One copy of the construction Safety Plan per guidance explained in FAA AC 15053702F

or current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction
7 Original executed Consultant Project Certification ATTACHMENT N
8 Executed DBE Final Documentation ATTACHMENT 0
9 Electronic copyaccess of all information via CD electronic submittal or ftp site

G NOTICETOPROCEED NTP
The Consultant shall not commence any phase of the work until the official noticetoproceed
NTP has been issued in writing either by the Sponsor or Department via Office of Planning
and Programming

Services to be performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall become eligible for
funding participation consideration as of the date of the written NTP The dated project program
notification letter ie Program Letter from the Departments Office of Planning and
Programming indicating the projects inclusion in the state program and the estimated funding
participation sourceslevels shall constitute the NTP The Consultant shall schedule a project

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 7



phase kickoff meeting predesign preconstruction etc with the Sponsor and the Department
at the earliest possible convenience upon the Sponsorsreceipt of this letter

For projects not covered by a program letter or with program letter pending the Sponsor may
issue the written NTP with concurrence from the Department In such cases the Sponsor is
fully liable for all costs incurred as a result of such authorization pending future reimbursement
once the project is programmed and a program letter is issued The SponsorConsultant is
required to schedule a project phase kickoff meeting predesign preconstruction etc with
the Sponsor and the Department at the earliest possible convenience

A copy of the program letter shall be included as ATTACHMENT R of this Agreement

In the absence of a written dated noticetoproceed the execution date of this Agreement shall
be used to determine the eligibility of service dates

The Sponsor and the Department are not liable and shall not authorize payment to the
Consultant for any services performed prior to the date of notice to proceed or the execution
of this Agreement whichever takes precedent All effort regardless of the noticetoproceed
authorization is subject to review and eligibility funding determination

H DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES Attach insert here

Install Perimeter Fence Along North Property Line Including new 6 fence electric

vehicular gates manual vehicular gates and fence removal

II CONSULTANT COMPENSATION

The Sponsor agrees to pay the Consultant as compensation for rendering the professional services
hereinabove described and submitted using the standard Department invoice forms

ATTACHMENTS G H Burden and overhead rates entered into this Agreement shall be in
effect for the length of the agreement and will not be adjusted except as may be determined under
an audit of costs by the Auditor General or the Department The rates used in this Agreement shall
be the latest audited or provisional approved rates by IDOT as of the date of execution of this
Agreement approval letter must be attached Should the rate change in the time between the final
approval notification of fees and the execution of this Agreement hours will be adjusted accordingly
so that there is no increase in the final approved nottoexceed amount

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 8



Any professional services effort performed beyond the nottoexceed limits expressed below and
for which a future amendment will be sought will be performed under all Agreement provisions as
the original contracted work The dollar value of such effort is not considered approved for payment
until review and approval by the Department

A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN
For services outlined in Section IA Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design and
further detailed in Section IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a lump sum payment of 930000
representing approximately 35 of the total estimated professional services
compensation for design phase services as determined from the TIP request The fee
shall be paid as a lump sum when the preliminary assessment and schematic design phase
deliverables outlined in Section IA are approved and accepted by the Department

B DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

For services outlined in Section IB Design Phase Services and further detailed in Section
IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a cost plus a fixed payment of 180000

total amount not to exceed 1420000 unless

a major change or addition to the scope of services is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The payment of this fee shall be made in
monthly installments submitted by the Consultant and approved by the Department The
final charges shall be submitted after the Design Phase Services have been performed
approved and all deliverables accepted by the Department in accordance with the guidance
outlined in Section IF This period of time expires 30 days after award of the construction
contract Any submittal after this time shall not be considered eligible for payment
reimbursement by the Department unless extended by the Department

2 a lump sum payment of na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when
the design phase deliverables outlined in Section IF are approved and accepted by the
Department

C CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

For services outlined in Section IC Construction Phase Services and further detailed in
Section IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a cost plus a fixed payment of na

total amount not to exceed na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The payment of this fee shall be made in

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 9



monthly installments submitted to and approved by the Sponsor andor Department if
applicable The final charges shall be as soon as possible after official notification from
the Consultant of the acceptance of the construction work A time line will be submitted at
each billing cycle after 50 which will indicate a projection of the completed engineering
fee vs the contractorsprogress

If more than one contract exists for the project the monthly invoices submitted by the
Consultant shall detail the amounts of work accomplished under each separate contract
The invoices shall also indicate the dates that the services were performed If these

services are furnished by the Consultant by obtaining such services outside the
Consultants organization the Consultant shall be reimbursed at his actual cost for
obtaining these services However the total payment to the Consultant shall be within the
not to exceed amount as previously stated unless an amendment to this agreement is
approved by the Sponsor andor Department if applicable

D PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

For services outlined in Section ID Planning and Special Services and further detailed in
Section IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a cost plus a fixed payment of na

total amount not to exceed na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The payment of this fee shall be made in
monthly installments submitted to and approved by the Sponsor The final charges for the
Special Services Phase shall be submitted within fortyfive 45 days after official
notification from the Consultant of the acceptance of the construction work or within 45
days after official notification from the Department of acceptance of other non construction
projects unless extended by the Department

2 a lump sum payment of na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when
the deliverables are approved and accepted by the Department

III SPECIAL CONDITIONS

The Consultant shall render the services in accordance with generally accepted Professional
Standards

A TERMINATION

Reference 49 CFR Part1836i2FAA Order 510038

The Sponsor by written seven 7 day notice may terminate this agreement in whole or in part
at any time because of the failure of the other party to fulfill his agreement obligations Upon
receipt of such notice the Consultant shall 1 immediately discontinue all services affected
unless the notice directs otherwise and 2 deliver to the Sponsor all data drawings
specifications reports estimates summaries and such other information and materials as may

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AIE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 10



have been accumulated by the Consultant in performing this agreement whether completed or
in process

1 If the termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill his agreement obligations
the Sponsor may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement
or otherwise In such case the Consultant shall be liable to the Sponsor for any additional
cost occasioned to the Sponsor thereby

2 If after notice of termination for failure to fulfill agreement obligations it is determined that
the Consultant had not so failed the termination shall be deemed to have been effected
for the convenience of the Sponsor

3 It is hereby understood and agreed that should the agreement be terminated the
Consultant shall be entitled to and shall receive a fee based on the amount of work
accomplished and approved by the Department up to the day of notification of termination
The fee shall be equal to the sum of the actual number of manhours of each category of
work applied at a negotiated hourly rate plus any outside services approved by the
participating agencies and accomplished prior to the notification If terminated under

Section IIIHH Breach of Contract Terms the Consultant will not be entitled to profit on
the work accomplished

B CHANGE IN CONSTRUCTION PLANS

It is hereby understood and agreed that if the construction plans are completed in accordance
with criteria andor decisions made by the Sponsor andor the Department if applicable and
approved by the Department and said construction plans are substantially changed or revised
for any reason other than the fault of the Consultant in preparing same then the Consultant
shall be entitled to compensation for rendering the services necessary to complete the
changes The amount of this fee shall be negotiated between the Sponsor Consultant and the
Department and approved by the Department and an amendment to the agreement should
be accomplished prior to authorizing the Consultant to proceed with the changes The fee shall
be due and payable when the revisions are approved by the Sponsor and the Department

It is the Consultants responsibility to notify the Department as soon as possible when
changesrevisions are identified that are beyond the scope of services contemplated under this
Agreement

C HOLD HARMLESS

The Consultant shall be responsible to pay for all labor material and equipment costs incurred
and for any and all damages to property or persons to the proportionate extent arising out of
the negligent performance of services under this agreement and shall indemnify and save
harmless the Sponsor andor the Department if applicable their officers agents and
employees from all third party suits claims actions or damages of any nature whatsoever to
the proportionate extent resulting there from These indemnities shall not be limited by the
listing of any insurance coverage If any errors negligent acts andor omissions are made by
the Consultant in any phase of the work under this agreement the correction of which may
require additional field or office work the Consultant will be promptly notified and will be
required to perform such additional services as may be necessary to correct these errors
negligent acts andor omissions without undue delay and without additional cost to the Sponsor
andor the Department if applicable The Consultant shall be responsible for any damages
incurred as a result of his errors negligent acts andor omissions and for any losses or cost to
repair or remedy construction as a result of his errors omission andor negligent acts to the
extent such error omission or negligent act breeches the Professional Standard of care The
Consultant shall not be responsible for any consequential damages of the Sponsor or the

DOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 11



Department Neither the Consultant nor the Sponsor nor the Department shall be obligated
for the other parties negligence or for the negligence of others

D DRAWING OWNERSHIP

It is further mutually agreed by the parties hereto that reproducible copies of the drawings
computer disks tracings construction plans specifications and maps prepared or obtained
under the terms of the contract shall be delivered to and become the property of the Sponsor
and basic survey notes and sketches charts computations and other data shall be made
available upon request of the Sponsor If any information is used by the Sponsor or another
Consultant such use or reuse by the Sponsor or others shall be at the sole risk and without
liability or legal exposure to the Consultant

E CONTRACT FOR OUTSIDE SERVICES

If any of the services outlined in Section I are fumished by the Consultant by obtaining such
services outside the Consultants organization the Consultant shall provide an executed
contract between the persons or firm and the Consultant outlining the services to be
performed and the charges for the same Two 2 copies of the executed contract shall be
submitted to the participating agencies for approval prior to the services being performed all
covenants and Special Conditions shall be included and binding on all subcontracts

F FORMERLY NOTICE TO PROCEED See Section IG

G SUBLET AGREEMENT

Each party binds himself his partners successors executors administrators and assigns to
the other part of this agreement and to the partners successors executors administrators and
assigns for such other party at all covenants of this Agreement

Except as above neither the Sponsor nor the Consultant shall assign sublet or transfer his
interest in this agreement without the written consent of the other party hereto

H AGREEMENT EXPIRES

This agreement expires upon final approval and acceptance of the completed projectsby the
Sponsor andor Department as applicable and after all final engineering charges have been
paid to the Consultant as of the date of project closeout or after five years from the date of
execution whichever comes first Payment liability by the State is as outlined above see
Section IG Notice to Proceed and Section II Consultant Compensation

I EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Reference 49 CFR Part 21 FAA AC 150510015A or latest revision

The Consultant agrees to conduct the services in compliance with all the requirements imposed
by or pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 Part 21 of the Regulations of the
Secretary of Transportation and Executive Order No 11246 Equal Employment Opportunity
as amended

During the performance of this contract the Consultant for itself its assigns and successors
in interest hereinafter referred to as the Consultant agrees as follows

1 Compliance with Regulations The Consultant shall comply with the Regulations relative
to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation
hereinafter DOT Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 21 as they may be

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 12



w
r

amended from time to time hereinafter referred to as the Regulations which are herein
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract

2 Nondiscrimination The Consultant with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract shall not discriminate on the grounds of race color or national origin in the
selection and retention of subconsultants including procurements of materials and leases
of equipment The Consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by Section 215 of the Regulations including employment
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations

3 Solicitations for Subcontracts Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Consultant for work
to be performed under a subcontract including procurements of materials or leases of
equipment each potential subconsultant or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of
the Consultants obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race color or national origin

4 Information and Reports The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required
by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its
books records accounts other sources of information and its facilities as may be
determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration FAA to be pertinent to
ascertain compliance with such Regulations orders and instructions Where any
information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or
refuses to furnish this information the Consultant shall so certify to the sponsor or the FAA
as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information

5 Sanctions for Noncompliance In the event the Consultants noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract the sponsor shall impose such contract
sanctions as may determine to be appropriate including but not limited to

a withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant
complies andor

b cancellation termination or suspension of the contract in whole or in part

Incorporation of Provisions The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1
through 5 above in every subcontract including procurement of materials and leases of
equipment unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto The
Consultant shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the
sponsor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance Provided however that in the event an Consultant becomes involved in or is
threatened with litigation with a subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction the
Consultant may request the sponsor andor Department to enter into such litigation to protect
the interests of the sponsor and in addition the Consultant

DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE DBE ASSURANCES

1 Policy It is the policy of the Department of Transportation DOT that disadvantaged
business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 23 shall have the maximum opportunity to
participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds
under this agreement Consequently the DBE requirements of 49 CFR Part 23 applies to
this agreement

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 13



2 DBE Obligation The Consultant agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business
enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 23 have the maximum opportunity to participate in
the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal
funds provided under this agreement In this regard all Consultants shall take all
necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 23 to ensure that
disadvantaged business enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and
perform contracts Consultants shall not discriminate on the basis of race color national
origin or sex in the award and performance of DOT assisted contracts

J OPEN ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836iFAA Order 510038
Public Act 900572 Section 2065 Public Act 87991

The Consultant shall maintain for a minimum of 5 years after the completion of the contract
adequate books records and supporting documents to verify the amounts recipients and
uses of all disbursements of funds passing in conjunction with the contract the contract and all
books records and supporting documents related to the contract shall be available for review
and audit by the Auditor General and the Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with any audit
conducted by the Auditor General and to provide full access to all relevant materials Failure
to maintain the books records and supporting documents required by this Section shall
establish a presumption in favor of the State for the recovery of any funds paid by the State
under the contract for which adequate books records and supporting documentation are not
available to support their purported disbursement

K CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 Section 5013

It is unlawful for any person holding an elective office in this State holding a seat in the General
Assembly or appointed to or employed in any of the offices of State government or who is an
officer or employee of the Illinois Building Authority or the Illinois Toll Highway Authority or who
is the wife husband or minor child of any such person to have or acquire any contract or any
direct pecuniary interest in any contract therein whether for stationery printing paper or for
any services materials or supplies which will be wholly or partially satisfied by the payment of
funds appropriated by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois or in any contract of the
Illinois Building Authority or the Illinois Toll Highway Authority Payments made for a public aid
recipient are not payments pursuant to a contract with the State within the meaning of this
Section

It is unlawful for any firm partnership association or corporation in which any such person is
entitled to receive more than 7 12 of the total distributable income to have or acquire any
such contract or direct pecuniary interest therein

It is unlawful for any firm partnership association or corporation in which any such person
together with his spouse or minor children is entitled to receive more than 15 in the

aggregate of the total distributable income to have or acquire any such contract or direct
pecuniary interest therein

Nothing in this Section invalidates the provisions of any bond or other security hereto or
hereafter offered for sale or sold by or for the State of Illinois

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 14



r

This Section does not affect the validity of any contract made between the State and an officer
or employee of the State or member of the General Assembly his spouse minor child or any
combination of such persons if that contract was in existence before his election or
employment as such officer member or employee Such a contract is void however if it
cannot be completed within 6 months after such officer member or employee takes office or
is employed

This Section does not apply to 1 a contract for personal services as a teacher or school
administrator between a member of the General Assembly or his spouse or a State officer or
employee or his or her spouse and any school district public community college district the
University of Illinois Southern Illinois University or any institution under the control of the Board
of Governors of State Colleges and Universities or under the control of the Board of Regents
or 2 a contract for personal service of a wholly ministerial character including but not limited
to services as a laborer clerk typist stenographer page bookkeeper receptionist or
telephone switchboard operator made by a spouse or minor child of an elective or appointive
State officer or employee or of a member of the General Assembly or 3 payments made to a
member of the General Assembly a State officer or employee his or her spouse or minor child
acting as a foster parent homemaker advocate or volunteer for or in behalf of a child or family
served by the Department of Children and Family Services

Any person convicted of a violation of this Section shall be guilty of a business offense and
shall be fined not less than1000 nor more than5000

The appropriate Certification of Capacity to Contract will be executed in Section IIIX of this
agreement

L THE CONSULTANT SELECTION

Reference 49 CFR Part 18 FAA AC 510014D or latest revision
30 ILCS 535 IDOTAeronautics Administrative Bulletin 201002

The Dixon Municipal Airport hereby certifies that it
Sponsor

has completed the prescribed qualifications based consultant selection procedures

The firm of Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc of Springfield IL has

Consultant Location
been selected to provide the engineering services required for the project on

September 2 2014

Date
A copy of the executed Retainer Agreement identifying the project covered by this Agreement
is included as ATTACHMENT U

M AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT

All effort recorded to document a claim for additional compensation must be delineated
separately from the original scope of services with personnel classifications dates worked
rates hours and services thoroughly detailed and clearly identified

The Department shall be notified of potential amendment requests at the earliest possible
opportunity once it has been determined that any of the following three circumstances may
exist Any amendments to the Agreement which increases the fee or the time of performance
must contain one of the following written determinations with support documentation
depending upon the circumstances of the change

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 15



1 The undersigned determine that the circumstances which necessitate this change were not
reasonably foreseeable at the time the contract was signed

2 The undersigned determine that the circumstances which necessitate this change were not
within the contemplation of the contract as signed

3 The undersigned determine that this change is in the best interest of the state of Illinois
and is authorized by law

Date Sign Name

Print Name

Title

Any professional services effort performed beyond the nottoexceed limits expressed in
Section II Consultant Compensation and for which a future amendment will be sought will be
performed under all Agreement provisions as the original contracted work The dollar value of
such effort is not considered approved for payment until review and approval by the
Department

N CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT

Public Act 900572 Section 505

I hereby certify that I am the Vice President title and duly

authorized representative of the firm Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc

whose address is 2750 West Washington Street Springfield IL 62702 and

that neither I nor the above firm I here represent has

1 employed or retained for a commission percentage brokerage contingent fee or other
consideration any firm or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for me
or the above Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement

2 agreed as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract to employ or retain
the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the Agreement or

3 paid or agreed to pay to any firm organization or person other than a bona fide employee
working solely for me or the above Consultant any fee contribution donation or
consideration of any kind for or in connection with procuring or carrying out the contract
except as here expressly stated if any

The firm certifies by execution

1 it has not been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the
State of Illinois nor has the firm made an admission of guilt of such conduct which is a
matter of record nor has an official agent or employee of the firm committed bribery or
attempted bribery on behalf of the firm and pursuant to the direction or authorization of a
responsible official of the firm nor has the firm been barred from being awarded a contract
or subcontract

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 16



2 it has not been barred from contracting with a unit of state or local government as a result
of a violation of the Criminal Code of 1961

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnished to the Federal Aviation Administration
of the United States Department of Transportation in connection with this contract involving
participation of Airport Improvement Program AIP fu s and is subject to a plicable state
and Federal laws both criminal and civil

177 id I 1 Ai
Date Sig a

Brian R Welker PE
Print Name

Vice President Aviation Group Manager
Title

O FEDERAL TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

The following statement is made under penalty of perjury

The Firms correct Federal Taxpayer Identification Number is 370844662
4a This firm is doing business as a please check one

Individual Partnership X Corporation

P DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE DBE PARTICIPATION
Reference 49 CFR Part 26

Contract Assurance 02613 The Consultant or subconsultant shall not discriminate on the
basis of race color national origin or sex in the performance of this contract The Consultant
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of
DOT assisted contracts Failure by the Consultant to carry out these requirements is a material
breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or such other
remedy as the recipient deems appropriate

In keeping with the DBE plan adopted by the Sponsor the Consultant shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps to attain DBE participation in this contract

The work for each subconsultant should be listed separately If the subconsultant is being
utilized to meet the project DBE goal they must be prequalified in that category and certified
as a DBE in that category Please indicate that they are certified in that category The
certification list is available on the Departmentswebsite on the Doing Business menu under
Small Business Enterprises and IL UCP directory http wwwdotilgovucpucphtmlDBE
Directory The percent of work is computed based on the individual subconsultantswork effort
in each category

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 17



Firm Name

Subcontract Amount

Prequalification Category of Work DBE Certification

If more than one subconsultant is being used attach additional sheets

NOTE All final payment requests shall include a completed ATTACHMENT 0 DBE Final
Documentation or the complete information on the Consultantsformat

Q DISCRIMINATION

Reference 49 CFR Part 21 FAA AC 150510015A or latest revision
Executive Order 11246 of September 24 1965 41 CFR Part 60

The Consultant agrees not to commit unlawful discrimination in employment in Illinois and
further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that no unlawful discrimination is committed

R DUESFEES TO CLUBS WHICH DISCRIMINATE
775 ILCS 252 Source PA 85909

The Consultant of the business entity certifies that it is not prohibited from selling goods or
services to the State of Illinois because it pays dues or fees on behalf of its employees or
agent or subsidizes or otherwise reimburses them for payment of their dues or fees to any
club which unlawfully discriminates

S CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Public Act 900572 Section 5013

The Consultant agrees to comply with the provision of the Illinois Public Act prohibiting conflict
of interest and all the terms conditions and provisions of those Sections apply to this contract
and are made a part of this contract the same as though they were incorporated and included
herein

T FELONY CONVICTION

Public Act 905072 Section 5010

The Consultant certifies that if heshe or the business entity has been convicted of a felony at
least five years has passed since the completion of the sentence as of the contract date

U ILLINOIS HUMAN RIGHTS NUMBER

The Consultant must have an Illinois Department of Human Rights prequalification number or
have an application on file with the Illinois Department of Human Rights office at the State of
Illinois Center Suite 10100 100 West Randolph Chicago Illinois 60601 refer to Department
of Human Rights form

IDHR PC1 IL 442 0010 IDHR 01876004

DOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 18



V EDUCATIONAL LOAN DEFAULT
5 ILCS 385

The Consultant certifies that if this agreement is with an individual or individuals that heshe
is not in default on an educational loan

W DRUG FREE WORKPLACE
30 ILCS 580

If the Consultant has 25 or more employees the following certification shall apply and by
signing this document the Consultant certifies as follows

1 The Consultant certifies that he will provide a drug free workplace in compliance with the
Drug Free Workplace Act Act Specifically Consultant certifies he will do the following
a Publish a statement

i Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture distribution dispensation
possession or use of a controlled substance including cannabis is prohibited
in the Consultants workplace

ii Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of
such prohibition

iii Notifying the employee that as a condition of employment on this agreement
the employee will
1 abide by the terms of the statement and
2 notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation

occurring in the workplace no later than 5 days after such conviction
b Establish a drug free awareness program to inform employees about

i the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace
ii the Consultant policy of maintaining a drug free workplace
iii any available drug counseling rehabilitation and employee assistance

programs and

iv the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations
c Give a copy of the statement described above to each employee engaged in the

performance of the contract and post the statement in a prominent place in the
workplace

d Notify the State within 10 days after receiving notice under parta3Babove from
an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction

e Impose a sanction on or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so convicted as required
by 5 of the Act

f Assist employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling
treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicate that a trained referral team is in
place

g Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through
implementation of 3 of the Act

If an individual the Consultant further certifies that he will not engage in the unlawful
manufacture distribution dispensation possession or use of a controlled substance in the
performance of the agreement

X CAPACITY TO CONTRACT
Public Act 900572

The Consultant certifies that the Corporationscertificate of Authority to do business in
Illinois is in good standing with the Secretary of StatesOffice

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 19



CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract
with the State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any
contract with the State of Illinois whether for materials services supplies printing or stationery
This prohibition does not extend to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature
as provided for in the Act

Corporation

The undersigned being a duly elected Vice President and Associate of

Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc a corporation hereby certify
that they have read Public Act 900572 Section 5013 and that they have checked the records
of the corporation and that no person who is entitled to receive individually more than 7 12
of the total distributable income of the corporation or together with their spouse or minor child
more than 15 of the total distributable income of the corporation is i an elected State official
a member of the General Assembly an appointed State officer a State employee ii an officer
or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway Authority or of the Illinois Building Authority or iii a
spou or minor child of any such enuterated person

Z IdayoftD 20 i 1
Cor x

11 i IFj
BY 1 i BY

Bernard D Held PE Sr Vice President Brian R Welker PE Vice President
Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 20



CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract
with the State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any
contract with the State of Illinois whether for materials services supplies printing or stationery
This prohibition does not extend to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature
as provided for in the Act

Partnerships and Non Corporate Firms and Associations

The undersigned being each and every one of the partnersmembersassociatesother of

NA hereby
certify on behalf of themselves individually that they have read Public Act 900572 Section 50
13 and that i they are not an elected State official a member of the General Assembly an
appointed State officer a State employee an officer or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway
Authority or of the Illinois Building Authority nor a spouse or minor child of any such
enumerated person or ii that they are such an enumerated person but that they are not
entitled to receive individually more than 7 12 of the total distributable income of the
partnershipfirmassociation or together with their spouse or a minor child more than 15 of
the total distributable income of the partnershipfirmassociation

day of AD 20

BY BY

Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

dba

Name

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 21



CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract
with the State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any
contract with the State of Illinois whether for materials services supplies printing or stationery
This prohibition does not extend to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature
as provided for in the Act

Individual Consultants

1 NA

Name

hereby certify that I have read Public Act 900572 Section 5013 and I further certify i that I
am not an elected State official a member of the General Assembly an appointed State officer
a State employee ii that I am not an officer or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway Authority
or of the Illinois Building Authority and iii that I am not a spouse or a minor child of any such
official member officer or employee

day of AD 20

BY

Printed Name Title

dba

Name

DOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 22



Y CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
Reference 49 CFR Part 20 Appendix A

Certification for Contracts Grants Loans and Cooperative Agreements

The Consultant certifies compliance with Section 319 of Public Law 101 102 and to the best of
his or her knowledge and belief that

1 No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the
undersigned to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency a Member of Congress an Officer or employee of Congress or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract the making of any Federal grant the making of any Federal loan the entering into
of any cooperative agreement and the extension continuation renewal amendment or
modification of any Federal contract grant loan or cooperative agreement

2 If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency a
Member of Congress an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract grant loan or cooperative agreement
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard FormLLL Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying in accordance with its instructions

3 The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub awards at all tiers including subcontracts sub grants and
contracts under grants loans and cooperative agreements and that all sub recipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was made or entered into Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352 Title 31 US Code
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than 10000 and not more than 100000 for each such failure

Z INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT

Applicable to contracts in excess of10000

The Consultant certifies that neither it nor any substantially owned affiliated company is
participating or shall participate in an international boycott in violation of the provisions of the
US Export Administration Act of 1979 or the regulations of the US Department of Commerce
promulgated under that Act The Consultant makes the certification set forth in Section 5 of
the International Anti Boycott Certification Act

AANONAPPROPRIATION CLAUSE

Obligations of the State will cease immediately without penalty or further payment being
required in any fiscal year the Illinois General Assembly fails to appropriate or otherwise
make available sufficient funds for payment of this Agreement

BBDEBT CERTIFICATION

The Consultant certifies that it or any affiliate is not barred from being awarded a contract
under 30 ILCS 5005011 and 5012 The Consultant further acknowledges that the contracting
State agency may declare the contract void if the preceding certification is false or if the
contractor or any affiliate is determined to be delinquent in the payment of any debt to the

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201

Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 23



State during the term of the contract

CCGOODS FROM CHILD LABOR ACT

The Consultant certifies in accordance with Public Act 940264 thal no foreign made
equipment materials or supplies furnished to the State under the contract have been produced
in whole or in part by the labor of any child under the age of 12

DDQUALIFICATION BASED SELECTION ACT

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836 FAA Order 510038 FAA AC 150510014 latest

The parties hereby certify that there was compliance with the provisions of the State of Illinois
Architectural Engineering and Land Surveying Qualifications Based Selection Act Chapter 30
ILCS 535 in the procurement of the services covered by this Agreement

EE CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT SUSPENSION INELIGIBILITY AND
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

Reference 49 CFR Part 29 FAA Order 510038

The Consultant certifies by submission of this proposal or acceptance of this contract that
neither it nor its principals is presently debarred suspended proposed for debarment declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency It further agrees by submitting this Agreement that it will include this
clause without modification in all lower tier transactions solicitations proposals contracts and
subcontracts Where the Consultant or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this
statement it shall attach an explanation to this solicitationproposal

FF RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836i8FAA Order 510038

All rights to inventions and materials generated under this contract are subject to regulations
issued by the FAA and the Sponsor of the Federal grant under which this contract is executed

GG TRADE RESTRICTION CLAUSE

Reference 49 CFR Part 3013 FAA Order 510038

The Consultant or subconsultant by submission of an offer andor execution of a contract
certifies that it

1 is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list
of countries that discriminate against US firms published by the Office of the United States
Trade Representative USTR

2 has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person
that is a citizen or national of a foreign country on said list or is owned or controlled directly
or indirectly by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on said list

3 has not procured any product nor subcontracted for the supply of any product for use on
the project that is produced in a foreign country on said list

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in
accordance with 49 CFR 3017 no contract shall be awarded to a Consultant or subconsultant
who is unable to certify to the above If the Consultant knowingly procures or subcontracts for
the supply of any product or service of a foreign country on said list for use on the project the
Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the Sponsor cancellation of the contract at
no cost to the Government

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 24



Further the Consultant agrees that if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation it will
incorporate this provision for certification without modification in each contract and in all lower
tier subcontracts The Consultant may rely on the certification of a prospective subconsultant
unless it has knowledge that the certification is erroneous

The Consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the sponsor if the Consultant learns
that its certification or that of a subconsultant was erroneous when submitted or has become
erroneous by reason of changed circumstances The subconsultant agrees to provide written
notice to the contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of
changed circumstances

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
making the award If it is later determined that the Consultant or subconsultant knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the
Sponsor cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the Government

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this provision The
knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of
America and the making of a false fictitious or fraudulent certification may render the maker
subject to prosecution under Title 18 United States Code Section 1001

HHBREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS
Reference 49 CFR Part 1836

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Consultant or their
subconsultants may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action
that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement The duties and
obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available
thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties obligations rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 25



Policies and procedures for procurement of professional services are established in Federal Regulation
Title 49 CFR Part 18 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements The
Airport and Airway Improvement Act AAIA of 1982 as amended serves as the enabling legislation The
parties agree that these policies and procedures have been followed

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have affixed their hand and seals at

Dixon Illinois this 2014
city date year

ATTEST

SEAL

City of Dixon

Sponsor Name

Federal EmployeesIdentification Number

BY BY

Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

ATTEST

SEAL

Consultant Name

7c84462

Federaiii yde
br

BY 2Y

Bernard D Held PE Sr Vice President Brian R Welker PE Vice President
Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 26



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT A Al PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE
SERVICES

ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT B BI DESIGN PHASE SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT C Cl CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT D DI PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT E ENGINEERING REPORT General Guidance

ATTACHMENT F RESIDENT ENGINEERSDIARY Standard Format

ATTACHMENT G COST PLUS FIXED PAYMENT INVOICE Standard Format

ATTACHMENT H LUMP SUM INVOICE Standard Format

ATTACHMENT I EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN Standard Format

ATTACHMENT J TESTING SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT K TESTING RATES COST SUMMARY

ATTACHMENT L SUMMARY OF PAYROLL BURDEN AND FRINGE COSTS

ATTACHMENT M SUMMARY OF OVERHEAD AND INDIRECT COSTS

ATTACHMENT N PROJECT CERTIFICATION

ATTACHMENT O DBE FINAL DOCUMENTATION

ATTACHMENT P PROJECT SKETCH

ATTACHMENT Q PROJECT LETTING SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT R OPP PROGRAM LETTER

ATTACHMENT S CURRENT IDOT PROVISIONAL PAYROLL BURDEN FRINGE EXPENSE
AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATE LETTER

ATTACHMENT T CONSULTANTSPRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE
CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ATTACHMENT U RETAINER AGREEMENT

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201

Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 27



Dixon Municipal Airport
Install North Perimeter Fence

Attachment A

Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Services
ESTIMATE OF COSTS

CATEGORY AMOUNT

1 Direct Salary Costs 330121

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead 5681 187542

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses 7988 263701

Lodging23

MealsPer Diem23

Transportation 24000

Materials Supplies 2500

Printing 1500

CADD time

Other Costs Excluding outside Services 2500

4 Fixed Payment 120000

5 Outside ServicesSubconsultants

none anticipated

Estimate of Total Costs 931864

Lump Sum Total Amount Not to Exceed Use 930000

Estimated Construction Cost

FederalStateLocal 125000

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 28



ATTACHMENT A1

Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Services

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSE

TIME REQUIRED HOURLY SALARY

CLASSIFICATION HOURS WAGE EXPENSE

PRINCIPAL 0 6833 000

SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER 2 5651 11302

PROJECT ENGINEER 8 4394 35152

SENIOR ENGINEER 18 3398 61164

ENGINEER 23 2755 63365

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR 2 3923 7846

SENIOR TECHNICIAN 31 3355 104005

ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 18 2520 45360

CLERKTYPIST 1 1927 1927

AVERAGE

TOTAL 103 3205 330121

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 29



Dixon Municipal Airport
Install North Perimeter Fence

Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Services

Attachment A2

Cost Estimate of Consultant Services By Task

1 Field InvestigationsSurveys 40 2994 119749 3627

2 User Coordination 2 3398 6796 206

3 Preliminary Design 35 Design Report subtotal 49 3149 154310 4674

General Scope DevelopmentOverall Limits 8 3167 25337 768

Preliminary sequence of construction 5 3331 16657 505

Existing ConditionsRemovals 5 3124 15618 473

SitePlanHorizontalNertical Alignment 4 3066 12263 371

Layout and Details 13 2989 38858 1177

Electrical Gate System 7 3167 22167 671

Preliminary opinion of probable costquantity
evaluation and funding review 7 3344 23410 709

4 Design conferences with C73IDA 6 3730 22380 678

5 Agency CoordinationPermitting 1 5651 5651 171

6 ProgressReview Meetings 1 3398 3398 103

7 Quality Control and Constructability Review 2 3896 7792 236

8 Project Management 2 5023 10045 304I

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 30



Dixon Municipal Airport
Install North Perimeter Fence

Attachment B

Design Phase Services
ESTIMATE OF COSTS

CATEGORY AMOUNT

1 Direct Salary Costs 510906

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead 5681 290246

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses 7988 408112

Lodging23

MealsPer Diem23

Transportation 16500

Materials Supplies 3000

Printing 12000

CADD time

Other Costs Excluding outside Services 2500

4 Fixed Payment 180000

5 Outside SenAcesSubconsultants

none anticipated

Estimate of Total Costs 1423264

Cost Pius Fixed Fee Total Amount Not to Exceed Use 1420000

Estimated Construction Cost

FederalStateLocal 125000

Attach a sketch labeled ATTACHMENT P in sufficient detail to clearly delineate the proposed areas of
work

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 31



ATTACHMENT B1

Design Phase Services

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSE

TIME REQUIRED HOURLY SALARY

CLASSIFICATION HOURS WAGE EXPENSE

PRINCIPAL 0 6833 000

SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER 7 5651 39557

PROJECT ENGINEER 14 4394 61516

SENIOR ENGINEER 34 3398 115532

ENGINEER 49 2755 134995

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR 0 3923 000

SENIOR TECHNICIAN 39 3355 130845

ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 9 2520 22680

CLERKTYPIST 3 1927 5781

AVERAGE

TOTAL 155 3296 510906

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 32



IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AIE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 33



Dixon Municipal Airport
Install North Perimeter Fence

Design Phase Services

Attachment B2

Cost Estimate of Consultant Services By Task

F77F771 7577

1 j
Agpe I Q I

1 Pref Design FollowupDesign Report 35 Addendum 3 3716 11147 218

2 Design conferences with C73IDA 4 3896 15584 305

3 Plan Development Detailed Design 80 Level subtotal 85 3174 269784 5281

CoyerSummary of QuantitiesGeneralComps 18 3165 56971 1115

Preliminary sequence of construction 7 3219 22532 441

Existing ConditionsRemovals 9 3093 27838 545

SitePlanHorizontalNertical Alignment 5 2875 14375 281

Fencing Layout and Details 19 3074 58400 1143

Electrical Gate System 15 3276 49136 962

Specifications Bid Documents Opinion of Probable Cost
Detailed Design 80 Level 12 3378 40532 793

4 Plan Development Final Design 80 100 Level subtotal 44 3295 144993 2838

CoverSummary of QuantitiesGeneralComps 11 3275 36028 705

Preliminary sequence of construction 3 3155 9465 185

Existing ConditionsRemovals 3 3155 9465 185

Site PlanHorizontalNertical Alignment 3 3155 9465 185

Fencing Layout and Details 9 3353 30177 591

Electrical Gate System 8 3241 25930 508

Specifications Bid Documents Opinion of Probable Cost
Detailed Design 100 Level 7 3495 24463 479

5 Agency CoordinationPermitting 2 3077 6153 120

6 ProgressReview Meetings 2 3077 6153 120

7 Quality Control and Constructability Review 4 4210 16841 330

8 Project Management 4 4210 16841 330

9 Miscellaneous bid admininistration addenda respond to
questions during bidding analysis of bids etc

7 3344 23410 458

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 34



ATTACHMENT C

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF COSTS

Category Amount

1 Direct Salary Costs

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Lodging

MealsPer Diem

Transportation

Materials Supplies

Printing

CADD time

Other Costs excluding outside services

4 Fixed Pavment

5 Outside Services

Cost Plus Fixed Payment
Total Amount Not to Exceed

Estimated Number of Calendar Days

Estimated Days of OnSite Resident Engineer Services

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 35



ATTACHMENT C1

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSES

Classification Hours RateHour Cost

Principal

Vice Principal

Project Manager

Senior Project Engineer

Senior Project Architect

Project Engineer

Resident Engineer

Senior Engineer

Senior Architect

Engineer

Planner

Registered Land Surveyor

Land Surveyor

Senior Engineering Technician

Engineering Technician

Engineering Assistant

CADDDraftsmanTechn ician

Clerical

Total

hours average total direct salary costs
ATTACHMENT C

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 36



ATTACHMENT D

PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF COSTS

Category Amount

1 Direct Salary Costs ATTACHMENT D1

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Lodging

MealsPer Diem

Transportation

Materials Supplies

Printing

CADD time

Other Costs excluding outside services

4 Fixed Payments

5 Outside Services

Cost Plus Fixed Payment
Total Amount Not to Exceed

OR

Lump Sum
Total Amount Not to Exceed

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 37



ATTACHMENT 01

PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSES

Classification Hours RateHour Cost

Principal

Vice Principal

Project Manager

Senior Project Engineer

Senior Project Architect

Project Engineer

Project Architect

Senior Engineer

Senior Architect

Engineer

Planner

Registered Land Surveyor

Land Surveyor

Senior Engineering Technician

Engineering Technician

Engineering Assistant

CADDDraftsmanTechnician

Clerical

Total

hours average total direct salary costs
ATTACHMENT D

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AIE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 38



ATTACHMENT E

ENGINEERING REPORT General Guidance

The Engineering Report is to be prepared by the Consultant and submitted to the Sponsor andor
Department if possible prior to starting Plans and Specifications The Report shall include at a minimum
a discussion of the following elements which are applicable and any other elements deemed necessary by
the Department

1 Introduction project overview and consistency with approved ALP justification scope
authorization funding required environmental actions and schedule

2 Investigations and evaluations including pavement history PCI information topographic survey
data soil sampling and testing boring logs CBR test results subgrade stabilization considerations
and seasonal frost issues

3 Pavement design considerations including pavement types andor altemates any unusual design
and reasons therefore selection of design CBR value traffic distribution and reported pavement
strength

4 Rehabilitation strengthening andor overlay work shall be detailed as to the type of work required
including existing pavement conditions material selection considerations thickness design and
economic analysis

5 Construction features which vary from FAA criteria should be identified including the problems
facts alternative solutions and or desired solution Is the desired solution the most economical

6 Items such as materials sources soils drainage water for construction cost of land vs
development contractor resources available finances and stage development The report should
say how these factors affected the decisions made by the Consultant in the design

7 Explanation of drainage design criteria including explanation of drainage districts data INPUT and
offsite drainage impact on design Include drainage calculations and modeling

8 Special considerations for local circumstances such as available material equipment contractors
and airport sponsored events

9 Consultantschoice of options for the lighting design similar explanation of choices made for the
drainage fencing turfing and marking including decisions regarding cover crop seeding

10 Approach conditions which will result from proposed work and comparison with FAA criteria

11 Analysis of potential RSA determination if applicable

12 Development of PCN for runway strengthening and rehabilitation projects

13 Description of nonAIP work and quantity separation from AIP eligible items

14 Identify work to be done by others such as utility companies and airports sponsor forces

15 The Consultantspreliminary estimate of construction costs fees and expenses shall be included

16 A discussion of project safety concerns per guidance explained in FAA AC 15053702F or
current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction shall be included

17 A discussion of project phasing sequencing and estimate of construction calendar days shall be
included

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 39



ATTACHMENT F

Illinois Departrnent
of Transportation Resident EngineersDiary

Airport Date

Contractor IL Project No AIP Project

Temperature F Wind Weather Conditions

Status Active Suspended Jobsite Conditions Workable Non workable

Controlling Item

Workforce

Consultant of people hours

Contractor of people equipment hours

Daily Work
Pay items General Location

Instructions to Contractor Unusual Events

Verbal Approvals official item

Additional Work change order etc

Official Visitors

Materials Deliveries material quantity quality Testing test location corrective action

Other

Calendar Days Awarded DBE Onsite yes or no
Charged Own forces used yes or no
Remaining Own equipment used yes or no

Submitted Firm Date

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 40



ATTACHMENT G

COST PLUS FIXED PAYMENT INVOICE Standard Format

To Chief Engineer From Firm
Illinois Department of Transportation Address
Division of Aeronautics Telephone No
Abraham Lincoln Capital Airport Invoice Date
1 Langhorne Bond Drive Partial Final

Springfield IL 627078415

Attn Section Chief

Airport Municipality IL

Illinois Project No Federal Project No
Notice to Proceed Date OPP Program Letter or Sponsor Authorization
Per AEAgreementAmendment dated

Services Check only those services pertaining to invoice
Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Planning and Special Services
Design Phase Other
Construction Phase Amendments

Service Dates For Services Rendered From date To date

To Date Billing
Period

1 Direct Salaries
Include all information per ATTACHMENT I EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead
3 Direct NonSalary Expenses OT Premium

Support documentation must accompany all payment requests of direct nonsalary expenses
4 Profit Fixed Payment x Complete
5 SUBTOTAL 1 4
6 Outside Services

TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED TO DATE 5 6
Maximum Payable per Engineering Agreement
Estimated total cost to complete project for billings after 50
Less Total AmountsPreviously Invoiced
PAYMENT DUE THIS INVOICE

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the percent of work shown as complete on this Invoice is correct

By
Printed Name and Title

Department Approval
By

Printed Name and Title

NOTE This format is for general information The Consultantsformat containing essential data may be
acceptable

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 41



ATTACHMENT H

LUMP SUM INVOICE Standard Format

To Chief Engineer From Firm
Illinois Department of Transportation Address

Division of Aeronautics Telephone No
Abraham Lincoln Capital Airport Invoice Date

1 Langhorne Bond Drive Partial Final

Springfield IL 627078415

Attn Section Chief

Airport Municipality IL

Illinois Project No Federal Project No
Notice to Proceed Date OPP Program Letter or Sponsor Authorization
Per AEAgreementAmendment dated

Services Check only those services pertaining to invoice
Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Planning and Special Services
Design Phase Other

Construction Phase Amendments

Service Dates

For Services Rendered From date To date

1 Lump Sum LS Fee or Maximum Payable per Engineering Agreement

2 Percent of Work Complete

3 Fee Earned to Date LS x Complete

4 Less Total AmountsPreviously Invoiced

5 PAYMENT DUE THIS INVOICE

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the percent of work shown as complete on this Invoice is correct

By
Printed Name and Title

Department Approval

By
Printed Name and Title

NOTE This format is for general information The Consultantsformat containing essential data may be
acceptable

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 42



ATTACHMENTI

EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN Standard Format

Page of Pages

Airport
Illinois Project No
Federal Project No

Invoice No
Date

ENGINEERING COSTS BREAKDOWN

Agreement
Paragraph Service Date Employees

Governing Performed Performed
Name and Hours Rate Amount

Services Classification

Total

ENGINEERING FIRM

Name

Address

Prepared By

Date

NOTE

This format is for general information however the consultantsformat containing the essential data may
be acceptable

IDOT Division of Aeronautics
September 26 2014Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 43



ATTACHMENT J

TESTING SCHEDULE

Testing Schedule anticipated for the Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Design and
Construction phases of the project

Description Approximate Number
ASTM D 421 Particle Size Analysis
ASTM D 2217

ASTM C 422

ASTM D 698 Moisture Density Relations of Soil
ASTM D 1557

ASTM D 427 Shrinkage Factors of Soil
ASTM D 2434 Permeability of Granular Soils
AASHTO T 194 Determination of Organic Materials in Soils by Wet
Combustion

ASTM D 1883 Bearing Ratio of Laboratory Compacted Soil
AASHTO T 222 Modulus of Soil Reaction
ASTM D 2487 Soil Classification Unified System
ASTM D 2113 Soil Borings
ASTM C 207 Hydrated Lime
ASTM C 131 Abrasion
ASTM C 88 Soundness
ASTM D 946 Penetration
ASTM D 3381 Viscosity
ASTM D 1559 Marshall Method
ASTM C 136 Gradation
ASTM D 2172 Extraction and Gradation
ASTM D 2726 Bulk Specific Gravity
ASTM D 2041 Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity
ASTM D 2950 Nuclear Density
ASTM C 117 Washed Aggregate Sample
ASTM D 4318 Liquid Limit Plastic Limit Plasticity Index
ASTM C 127 Absorption and Specific Gravity
ASTM C 128

ASTM C 566 Moisture Content
ASTM C 31 PCC Test Cylinders
ASTM C 141 Slump
ASTM C 231 Air Content
ASTM C 78 Flexural Strength
ASTM C 138 Yield Cement Content
ASTM D 412 Rubber in Tension
ASTM D 1664 Striping Test

The testing form shall be adjusted to the specific project The consultant shall not assume IDOT will
provide any testing and inspections Payment for these services shall be at the rates established in
ATTACHMENT K TESTING RATES COST SUMMARY

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 44



ATTACHMENT K

TESTING RATES COST SUMMARY

DESCRIPTION OF TEST
ESTIMATED COST PER NUMBER

TOTALTEST REQUIRED

IDOT Division of Aeronautics
September 26 2014Standard NE Agreement 201201

Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 45



ATTACHMENT L Optional

SUMMARY OF PAYROLL BURDEN AND FIXED COSTS

of Direct

Productive

Payroll

Federal Insurance Contributions Act

State Unemployment Compensation

Federal Unemployment Compensation

WorkmensCompensation Insurance

Paid Holidays Vacation Sick Leave

Bonus

Pension

Group Insurance

TOTAL PAYROLL BURDEN FRINGE COSTS

NOTE

A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 46



ATTACHMENT M Required

SUMMARY OF OVERHEAD AND INDIRECT COSTS

of Direct

Productive

Payroll

Taxes except Federal Income

Business Insurance except keyman insurance insurance including accident
liability and valuable papers

Depreciation and authorization

Administrative unassignable staff time recruiting training and education
severance negotiating new business and office accounting clerical and secretarial
wages and salaries

Reproduction and printing costs

Office Supplies

Computer Costs

Professional services including specialists legal auditing etc

Employees travel expenses not assigned to clients and excluding costs outside
Illinois

Telephone Telegraph and Postage

Recruiting and relocating expense

Training and educational nonsalary expenses

Fees licenses dues publications technical and professional

Utilities and maintenance

Business space rent

Rental of Equipment

Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL OVERHEAD

NOTE A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AIE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 47



t

ATTACHMENT N

PROJECT CERTIFICATION

Airport Letting Date
IL Project No
Federal Project No
Contract No

Project Description

Pursuant to Federal Aviation Regulations Part 152 as amended and as a condition to receiving any
Federal andor State financial assistance through a Grant Offer from the FAA andor the State of Illinois
Department of Transportation for the proposed airport development project it is hereby represented to the
best of our knowledge information and belief that

1 The Consultant has been selected to provide the necessary professional services for the project
described herein and identified in the Professional Services Request For Qualifications RFQ
Selection Date Required Copy of Retainer attached ATTACHMENT U

2 Project is clearly delineated on the currently approved Airport Layout Plan
Approval Date Required

3 Project is environmentally cleared CatEx EA EIS FONSI

Approval Date Required
4 All CorpsEPA permits and other regulatory agency reviewsapprovalsmitigation have been

satisfied and there are no known encumbrances to the completion of the project
Yes No

5 Plans were prepared in accordance with FAA approved standards and advisory circulars and the
specifications were prepared in accordance with the FAA approved Illinois Standard Specifications
For Construction Of Airports along with the Division of Aeronautics most current Policy
Memorandums and Handout Specifications except as noted by attached Modification of
Standards MOS which has been addressed and justified in the engineering report and submitted
to and approved by the FAA and Engineer of Design Yes No

Approval Date of MOS If applicable
6 The design conforms to the approved project scope Yes No

7 Provisions have been included for safety during construction per guidance explained in FAA AC
15053702F or current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction Yes No

8 The plans special provisions and quantities have been thoroughly checked in accordance with
best management practices by the Consultant for accuracy and consistency and are in
conformance with AC 150530013 latest edition All contract deliverables referenced in Section
IF DELIVERABLES have been submitted received and determined acceptable

Yes No

Date By
Design Engineer Consultant

Date By PE

Project Engineer Consultant

Date By PE

Department Design Engineer

Date By PE

Engineer of Design

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 48



ATTACHMENT 0

DBE FINAL DOCUMENTATION

Illinois Department
of Transportation

Prime Consultant DBE Subconsultant

Name Name
Address Address

Telephone Telephone

Subject Contract Amounts

Airport Consultant Contract Amount
Illinois Project No DBE Contract Amount
Federal Project No DBE Participation

This documentation verifies the services provided and the amount paid to the DBE Subconsultant on the above
captioned contract The undersigned certifies that the services reported herein were executed by the DBE that
the DBE actually provided the services and that the services reported herein conform to the services reported in
the approved Professional Services Agreement together with any amendments approved by the Sponsor andor
Division as applicable

Description of Service Provided Contract Amount Amount Paid Difference
1

2

3

4

5

6

Totals

DBE Contract amount has been met or exceeded j Yes 1 No check one

DBE Contract amount not met Shortfall documentation explaining shortfall attached

Prime Consultant DBE Subconsultant

Print Name Print Name

Title Title

Signature Signature

Date Date

IDOT Division of Aeronautics
September 26 2014

Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 49



r

ATTACHMENT P

PROJECT SKETCH

O
11

I

I11
I

II
I t

III
I11xX
I

f

I
MINI

1
i

JOf

I

1
LA 1

s Y
5 IDV

1

7
11

iIJ1
I

1

f

1

7 44

I

c
I

Ipc
L I I

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 50



ATTACHMENT Q

PROJECT LETTING SCHEDULE

PRELIMINARY PROJECT SCHEDULE
The proposed project schedule is shown below

Schedule Item Due Date

Project Pre design October 8 2014
Engineering Report 35 November 21 2014
AgencyOwner Review Comments December 5 2014
Preliminary Plans 80 January 30 2015
AgencyOwner Review Comments February 13 2015
Final Plans 100 February 27 2015
Service Bulletin March 20 2015
IDOT Letting April 24 2015
Anticipated Start of Work July 5 2015

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 51



ATTACHMENT R

OPP PROGRAM LETTER
EXCERPTS FROM IDOT PROGRAMMING LETTER

Illinois Department of Transportation
Office of Planning and Programming
2300 South Dirksen Parkway Springfield Illinois 162764

May 31 2013

Mr Dave Flenner

Airport Board Secretary
Dixon Municipal Airport
PO Box 386
Dixon Illinois 61021 9032

Dear Mr Flenner

For Fiscal Year 2014 the Illinois Department of TransportationsProposed Airport
Improvement Program includes projects at airports throughout the state to ensure
continued safe and efficient operations at these facilities as well as maximizing
opportunities for economic development in Illinois

The FFY 2013 and prior program contains the following federal projects for your
airport

Install fence on north property Entitlement 150000
line State Apportionment 0

Discretionary 0
State Match 8332
Local Match 8332

Total 166664

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 52



ATTACHMENT S

CURRENT IDOT PROVISIONAL PAYROLL BURDEN FRINGE EXPENSE AND GENERAL
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATE LETTER

CALENDAR YEAR 2013

PROVISIONAL 2014 62015

CMT ACCOUNT OF DIRECT
NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME LABOR COSTS

PAYROLL BURDEN AND FRINGE BENNEFITS

6151 FICA Tax 1146

6102 6103 6170 Paid Time Off Vacation Holidays and Sick Leave 1799

6154 6156 6158 Group Medical Life Workers Comp Disability and Unemployment Insurance 1276

6159 6160 Employee Retirement Plan Contributions 1460 5681

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD EXPENSE

61046119 Indirect Salaries Not Allocable to Projects 3923

6222 6264 Miscellaneous Taxes 90

6231 Professional Fees 168

6251 Rent 906

6252 Utilities 107

6271 Telephone Data 359

62536254 Maintenance Repairs 186

6261 6265 Office Supplies Shipping Reproduction 159

6281 6284 Seminars Registration Education 229

62919295632123 Travel Vehicle Expense 256

6331 6332 Business Insurance 313

635152616269 Equipment Expense Repairs Maintenance 95

6366 6367 6368 Computer Expense Supplies 536

6371637263816382 Maps Reference Books Engineering Survey Supplies 58

6401 COFC Depreciation Cost of Facilities Capital 27 603 7988

TOTAL OVERHEAD 13669

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 53



ATTACHMENT T

CONSULTANTSPRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

PRELIMINARY ENGINEERS OPINION OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COST

DIXON MUNICIPAL AIRPORT

DIXON IL

Install Perimeter Fence Along North Perimeter

October 28 2013

ITEM FAA SPEC DESCRIPTION UNIT
ESTIMATED ESTIMATED ESTIMATED
QUANTITY UNIT COST COST

BASE BID

1 AR108X0 ELECTRICAL LS 1 1500000 1500000
2 AR150520 MOBLIZATION LS 1 81000000 81000000
3 AR151450 CLEARING AND GRUBBING ACRE 1 8750000 8750000
4 AR152410 UNCLASSIFIED EXCAVATION LS 1 500000 8500000
5 AR156531 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET SY 2000 224 448000
6 AR182506 CLASS E FENCE 6 LF 1200 2500 3000000
7 AR162724 ELECTRIC GATE24 EACH 1 82400000 82400000
8 AR16200X CLASS E FENCE 8 IN PAVEMENT LF 70 5000 350000
9 AR162908 REMOVE GATE EACH 2 80000 8160000

10 AR162900 REMOVE CLASS E FENCE LF 1000 900 800000
11 AR162616 CLASS E GATE 18 EACH 2 400000 5800000
12 AR901510 SEEDING PC 10 330000 330000
13 AR908510 MULCHING AC 10 330000 8330000

TOTAL ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST BASE BID 12468000
ESTIMATED ENGINEERING SERVICES DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION 3952500

IDA ADMINISTRATION 15 8187020
CONTINGENCY 10 81246800

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT COST BASE BID 17854000

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 54



ATTACHMENT U

RETAINER AGREEMENT

see project no 2

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made at Dixon Illinois this6111 day ofst grin the year 2014 by and
between the City of Dixon hereinafter referred to as the Owner as Party of the First Part and Crawford
Murphy Tilly Inc hereinafter referred to as the Engineer as Party of the Second Part

W ITN ESSETH

WHEREAS the Owner intends to sponsor the accomplishment of a development program in stages
of the public air navigation facilities known as the Dixon Municipal Airport Charles R Walgreen Field
located in Latitude 41 5002N Longitude 89 2677 W in Lee County State of Illinois and

WHEREAS the development program shall include projects described as

1 Acquire Avigation Easement 95 Acres for Runway Protection Zone and Obstruction Removal on
Runway 8 Approach

2 Install Perimeter Fence along North Property Line Phase 1

3 Rehabilitate Runway 826 and 1230 Lighting Circuits

4 Acquire Land for Runway Proection Zone RPZ and object removal for Runway 12

5 Construct Replacement THangar

6 Rehabilitate the airport entrance road and diagonal parking pavements

7 Install perimeter fencing along north property line Phase 2

8 Prepare an Environmental Assessment for the construct of a new primary runway and related
development

9 Acquire Burkett lands 75 acres in fee simple for the development of new Runway 826

10 Acquire Hill lands 76 acres in fee simple and provide relocation assistance for the development of
new Runway826

11 Install perimeter fencing along east property line Phase 3

12 Relocate Township Road Burkett Road4650 linear feet with a 20foot paved section Relocate
natural gas power and telephone lines

13 Construct grading and drainage for new Runway 826

14 Pave Light and mark new Runway 8265000 feet long 100 feet wide and with a pavement strength
of 60000 pounds dual wheel gear

15 Consultation on FAA requirements regarding airport development issues including grant assurance
compliance

16 Preparation of or updaterevision of the Exhibit A Property Line Map Airport Layout Plan Part 150
study Master Drainage Study and Environmental Assessments as necessary

17 Land acquisitionland acquisition reimbursement including various plat preparation such as appraisal
plats easements plats of survey etc clear zone obstructions surveys technical advising and
environmental site assessments

18 Preparation of project pre applicationsapplications and Transportation Improvement Program TIP
sheets

1

IDOT Division of Aeronautics September 26 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Install Perimeter Fence N Property Line

Page 55



STANDARD AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES AT ILLINOIS AIRPORTS 46E
FOR ARCHITECTURALENGINEERINGAE PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

Authorized for use by
The Illinois Department of Transportation

Division of Aeronautics
Effective June 2012

X Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Construction Phase Services

X Design Phase Services Planning and Special Services

THIS AGREEMENT made at Dixon Illinois this day of
in the year 20 by and between the City of Dixon

hereinafter referred to as the Sponsor and Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc

hereinafter referred to as the Consultant This Agreement expires 5 years from the date of execution

WITNESSETH

The Sponsor intends to undertake the accomplishment of a project pursuant to the development of a public
air navigation facility known as the Dixon Municipal Airport C73 in

Lee County state of Illinois and the project shall be identified as the
Illinois Project No C73tbd AIP Project No 317SBGPtbd The

following is the detailed project title and description from the Illinois Department of TransportationsOffice

of Planning and Programming OPP program letter which shall be carried through the development of

the project attach supplemental information as necessary in Section IG Detailed Scope of Services
Rehabilitate Runways 826 and 1230 Lighting Systems

A detailed sketch of the proposed work labeled ATTACHMENT P shall be attached

In consideration of the benefits which will accrue to the parties hereto by virtue of the Agreement and the
respective covenants herein contained IT IS MUTUALLY COVENANTED AND AGREED as follows

The Consultant agrees to furnish executed Certification of Engineer and certain professional engineering
services enumerated hereinafter in connection with the implementation and development of the aforesaid

project

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 1



The Department of Transportation Division of Aeronautics within the state of Illinois shall act as Agent of

the OwnerSponsor for all matters involving the development of any public air navigation facility by virtue of

the Illinois Aeronautics Act The Illinois Aeronautics Act requires and directs the Illinois Department of

Transportation Division of Aeronautics hereinafter referred to as the Department to regulate and

supervise aeronautics within this state with aeronautics defined as the design establishment

construction extension operation improvement repair or maintenance of airports The Department

shall not expend any funds appropriated or made availableforany work upon any such project that is not

contracted for and constructed or developed under the supervision or direction of the Department Financial

assistance may include reimbursement to eligible airport Sponsors forengineering costs directly related

to projects financed in whole or in part by federalstate monies provided such engineering costs were

approved by the Department prior to the payment of these costs by the airport Sponsor The approval of

engineering costs prior to payment shall qualify those costs for federalstate reimbursement but shall not

constitute an obligation of federalstate funds

Since the services contemplated under this Agreement are professional in nature it is understood that the

Consultant acting as an individual partnership firm or other legal entity is of professional status and will

be governed by professional ethics in their relationship to the Department and the Sponsor The Department

acknowledges the professional and ethical status of the Consultant by approving this Agreement and the

associated fees for federalstate eligibility either in whole or part on the basis of their qualifications and

experience and determining their compensation by mutually satisfactory negotiations

Any additionsdeletions revisionsmodifications to this Agreement without the expressed written consent of

the Department shall void this Agreement as it relates to state and federal funding participation eligibility

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 2



I ARCHITECTURALENGINEERINGAE PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

The Consultant agrees to perform various professional engineering and planning services and
provide necessary and required information pursuant to the accomplishment of the above
referenced project

It is understood that meetings will be common to all phases The Consultant will coordinate project
kickoff predesign and preconstruction meetings and project status update meetings as required
in order to resolve project issues with the Department Sponsor andor other regulatory and review
agencies The Department shall be notified of scheduled agency meetings and given the
opportunity to participate Meetings for which effort will be billed shall be thoroughly documented
by minutes with copies distributed to the Sponsor and the Department within 10 days of the
meeting Failure to properly document meeting discussions could result in the Toss of part or all of
the professional services compensation eligibility associated with this activity

A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN

This phase includes activities required for agency coordination and permit development non
routine surveys testing and architecturalengineering preliminary design considerations of a
project Elements of this phase may include development of architectural schematic building
designs and reports non routine geological and field investigations soil borings and pavement
cores DCP testing FWD testing when used to evaluate pavement as part of a strengthening
project coordination of FAA reimbursable agreements coordination of utility relocation
agreements coordination of force account activity must be preapproved by the Department
in writing

The Consultant shall furnish andor perform engineering reconnaissance necessary for the
preparation and development of an engineering report bidding documents design plans and
specifications including topographic field surveys crack surveys and sampling and testing for
routine soils investigations in accordance with ATTACHMENT J Testing Schedule
ATTACHMENT K Testing Rates Cost Summary

This phase will culminate in the submittal of a detailed engineering report with project
alternatives and design recommendations and project completion timeline assessment

The Consultant shall furnish an engineering report in accordance with standard practices and
the provisions of ATTACHMENT E Engineering Report The report will include an analysis of
preliminary surveys geotechnical testing and alternative designs and include final project
design recommendations

The project completion timeline assessment will identify necessary effort required to complete
the final project design complete construction plans and specifications This phase of project
development will represent approximately 35 of the project design timeline Project
formulation should be consistent with the TIP submittal and the program letter project
description ATTACHMENT R If not identify components that have changed as a result of
the preliminary assessment and schematic design analysis

A detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated
in ATTACHMENTS A Al

B DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

This phase shall include activities required to accomplish a project design in accordance with
the established Aeronautics letting schedule project design timeline and approved letting date
determined at the predesign meeting Requests for time extensions beyond the previously
agreedto submittal deadline dates as established in the Departments Letting Schedule
ATTACHMENT Q and this Agreement must be made to the Department in writing not less

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 3



than 5 days prior to the due date of the submittal The request for extension must be signed by
a principalofficer of the Consultants firm Incomplete submittals will not be accepted
Milestone submittals include the engineering report at 35 design timeline plan spec review
at 80 design timeline and final submittal of all deliverables at 100 design timeline A
detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated
in ATTACHMENTS B B1 Elements of this phase may include

1 CONSTRUCTION PLANS SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND ESTIMATES

The Consultant shall prepare and furnish for Department review and comment construction
plans special provisions and construction Safety Plan per guidance explained in FAA AC
15053702F or current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction at the 80
project design timeline with detailed estimate of costs estimated DBE participation goal
and workingcalendar day flow chart for the particular design authorized in this Agreement

2 CLARIFICATION OF PLANS

The Consultant shall render clarification of the construction plans and specifications when
and if such clarification is deemed necessary

3 BIDDING ASSISTANCE

The Consultant shall assist the Sponsor andor Department in the bidding process analyze
and summarize bid results

C CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES NOT INCLUDED THIS AGREEMENT

This phase shall include all basic services after the award A detailed scope of services shall
be attached with anticipated labor effort and costs delineated in ATTACHMENTS C C1

1 OFFICE ENGINEERING

a SHOP DRAWINGS

Review the detailed construction shop and erection drawings submitted by the
contractorsfor compliance with design concepts

b SUPPLEMENTARY SKETCHES

Preparation of elementary and supplementary sketches plus estimates required to
resolve actual field conditions

c RECORD DRAWINGS

The Consultant shall prepare Record Drawings within thirty 30 days after the official
Notification from the Department of the Official Acceptance of the Construction Work
and after approval by the Department furnish said Department with one 1 set of such
record drawings The submittal format shall be in accordance with the current policies
of the Department

d MATERIALS CERTIFICATION

Prior to reporting a pay item quantity for payment the materials used and incorporated
in or associated with the pay item shall be verified for specification compliance by the
Consultant The Consultant shall obtain and review all certifications andor test results

required by the policies of the Department and the Departments Manual for
Documentation of Airport Materials At the completion of or any time prior to the
completion of the final quantity of a pay item the Consultant shall submit the
aforementioned material certifications andor test results that were utilized for
acceptance of material to the Department for review and final approval Prior to final

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 4



payment of engineering services under this agreement the Consultant shall have
submitted required certifications and test results to the Department and the Consultant
shall have signed the DepartmentsMATERIALS CERTIFICATION FORM

2 FIELD ENGINEERING

a RESIDENT ENGINEER APPROVAL

The Consultant agrees to furnish the name and qualifications of the Resident Engineer
in writing for approval of the participating agencies prior to the preconstruction
conference that shall attend said preconstruction conference and shall perform the
various professional engineering services required of the Resident Engineer in 2b
thru 2f below and inspection of construction

b DAILY DIARY

The Resident Engineer shall maintain a daily diary Copies shall be forwarded to the
Department ATTACHMENT F

c DUTIES OF RESIDENT ENGINEER

Furnish full time unless part time is approved by the Sponsor andor Department
Resident Engineering of construction including project inspection field testing and
furnish surveying at the site of the work whose duties shall include all reasonable
proper and customary duties as are usually and customarily furnished in connection
with the general engineering of construction of such improvements including but not
limited to the following

i Performance of acceptance and quality assurance tests when required by
Department policy andor contract specification Examples of these tests
include but are not limited to Testing concrete for slump and air content
testing concrete for strength testing bituminous concrete pavement for density
using the nuclear method and using the Bulk Specific Gravity Method
Obtaining representative samples of miscellaneous materials such as paint
geotextile fabric joint sealer epoxy polyester resin etc for testing as
necessary andor as directed by the Department performance of field density
tests of earthwork embankments backfills and subgrade field density tests of
subbase and base courses and moisture content tests on materials where

applicable and laboratory proctor tests where applicable Test Reports shall
be submitted to the Department within three 3 working days of the date the
test was conducted

ii InspectionMeasurementOversight of construction to determine thatthe work
was completed in substantial conformance with the approved plans and
specifications and in compliance with the requirements set forth in the contract
documents All stop or start work orders shall be issued by the Department
the Resident Engineer shall recommend the orders Document pay item
quantities reported for pay in accordance with the latest revision of the
DepartmentsAirport Construction Documentation Manual

iii Preparation and forwarding to the Department of periodic project reports
required by the Department Biweekly construction reports will be submitted
to the Department within three 3 calendar days of the end of the contractors
work week

iv To obtain and review for specification compliance material certifications
andor test results for all materials prior to their use in the construction

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 5



v To reject for inclusion in the project any materials that are delivered without
certification andor test results or materials delivered with certification that has
been found to be in noncompliance or any defect found through visual
inspection which renders the material unsuitable for inclusion in the project
The Department shall be notified when any rejections are made Materials
that are delivered without certification andor test results may be stockpiled or
stored in a manner acceptable to the Resident Engineer until such time as the
certification andor test result arrive and are reviewed and accepted by the
Resident Engineer

vi Preparation of Reports required per the Sponsors NPDES permit while
providing onsite services retaining all support documentation

vii Participate in audits performed to determine that the project is proceeding
accordingly per the plans and specifications and adhering to AIP grant
requirements

d FINAL INSPECTION

Initiate a request upon substantial completion of all construction work for a final
inspection by the Department When necessary a punch list of uncompleted items
and electrical checklist if applicable on the project shall be established at the final
inspection Submit a final acceptance letter punch list complete which shall certify to
the Department and the Sponsor that to the best of the Consultants knowledge
information and belief the work involved has been done in substantial conformance
with the plans specifications and Contract Document as the same shall have been
modified or supplemented by change order supplementary contract or otherwise and
that such work is acceptable

e SAFEGUARD THE SPONSOR

Endeavor to safeguard the Sponsor against any defects and deficiencies on the part
of the Contractor The Resident Engineer does not guarantee the performance of the
contract by the Contractor except that the Resident Engineer shall ensure that to the
best of the Resident Engineersknowledge information and belief the work has been
done in substantial conformance with the approved plans and specifications and
advise the Sponsor andor the Department in writing of any known noncompliance set
forth in the contract This does not in anv way mean that the Resident Engineer is a
guarantor of the Contractorswork The Resident Engineer assumes no responsibility
for safety in on or about the job site nor shall the Resident Engineer have any
responsibility for the safety or adequacy of any equipment building component
scaffolding forms or other work aids provided by the contractor nor is the Resident
Engineer responsible for the superintendence of the contractorswork or any acts of
the contractor

f OTHER ENGINEERING SERVICES

Furnish other Engineering Services which may be required by the Sponsor including
surveys sub surface investigations sampling testing and analysis of soils offsite
inspection of materials laboratory testing and inspection and control at central mixing
plants Where tests must be conducted by commercial laboratories only those
laboratories approved by the Department will be utilized If any of these services are
conducted by outside firms the Resident Engineer shall submit copies of the executed
contract for such services as specified in Section IIIB of this Agreement The charges
for such services shall be specified in the contract and will remain in effect until
completion of the services and acceptance by the Consultant Certified copies of the
results of all tests required by the Department under this paragraph are to be mailed
to the Department within five 5 calendar days after the tests are completed

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 6



g FINAL QUANTITIES

Final quantities associated with the accepted construction work shall be submitted to
the Department within thirty 30 days after final acceptance of the construction work

D PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED THIS AGREEMENT

This phase may involve activities or studies unrelated to or outside of the scope of basic design
and construction phase engineering services routinely performed by the Consultant Those
activities may include master plan and airport layout plan development environmental studies
and assessments PCI surveys FWD testing when used to evaluate pavement as part of a
publication revision firstorder NGS monument surveys boundary surveys aeronautical
surveys photogrammetric surveys and topographic mapping preparation of property
ownership plats and easements appraisal and land acquisition services benefit cost analysis
studies RSA determination studies drainage studies and analyses FEMAFIRM map
revisions and GIS updates A detailed scope of services shall be attached with anticipated labor
effort and costs delineated in ATTACHMENTS D D1

E ENDORSEMENT OF DOCUMENTS

The Consultant will endorse and seal all final draft reports contract plans maps right of way
plats and special provisions for construction contract documents Such endorsements must
be made by a person duly licensed or registered in the appropriate category by the Department
of Financial and Professional Regulation of the state of Illinois being employed by the
Consultant and responsible for the portion of the services for which license registration is
required These sealed documents will serve as the record documents for the services covered
by the terms of the Agreement

F DELIVERABLES

At a minimum the Consultant shall provide the Department copy Sponsor upon request the
following deliverables

1 Final project estimate of costs complete w professional services fees and sponsor
reimbursement estimates

2 DBE participation goal and breakout of DBE work
3 QA verification of ELM Engineers Estimate for Schedule of Prices
4 Calendar day estimate of construction and detailed breakout of critical work items and

associated production rates
5 One set of final construction plans halfsize and special provisions sealed by the

Consultant and executed by the Sponsor
6 One copy of the construction Safety Plan per guidance explained in FAA AC 15053702F

or current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction
7 Original executed Consultant Project Certification ATTACHMENT N
8 Executed DBE Final Documentation ATTACHMENT 0
9 Electronic copyaccess of all information via CD electronic submittal or ftp site

G NOTICETOPROCEED NTP
The Consultant shall not commence any phase of the work until the official noticetoproceed
NTP has been issued in writing either by the Sponsor or Department via Office of Planning
and Programming

Services to be performed by the Consultant under this Agreement shall become eligible for
funding participation consideration as of the date of the written NTP The dated project program
notification letter ie Program Letter from the Departments Office of Planning and
Programming indicating the projects inclusion in the state program and the estimated funding
participation sourceslevels shall constitute the NTP The Consultant shall schedule a project

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 7



phase kickoff meeting predesign preconstruction etc with the Sponsor and the Department
at the earliest possible convenience upon the Sponsorsreceipt of this letter

For projects not covered by a program letter or with program letter pending the Sponsor may
issue the written NTP with concurrence from the Department In such cases the Sponsor is
fully liable for all costs incurred as a result of such authorization pending future reimbursement
once the project is programmed and a program letter is issued The SponsorConsultant is
required to schedule a project phase kickoff meeting predesign preconstruction etc with
the Sponsor and the Department at the earliest possible convenience

A copy of the program letter shall be included as ATTACHMENT R of this Agreement

In the absence of a written dated noticetoproceed the execution date of this Agreement shall
be used to determine the eligibility of service dates

The Sponsor and the Department are not liable and shall not authorize payment to the
Consultant for any services performed prior to the date of notice to proceed or the execution
of this Agreement whichever takes precedent All effort regardless of the noticetoproceed
authorization is subject to review and eligibility funding determination

H DETAILED SCOPE OF SERVICES Attach insert here

Under this agreement the Engineer will provide Preliminary Schematic and Design phase
services as provided for herein The proposed project will include the design phase services
for the Rehabilitation of the Runways 826 and 1230 Lighting System project

The Preliminary and Design phase engineering effort contained within this agreement has been
based on the following scope related parameters

1 The project schedule is based on the anticipation that the project will be
placed on an IDOT letting no later than July 31 2015 As such all

engineering effort is expected to be completed by the letting date and no
additional effort will be required on the project after May 1 2015

2 The proposed scope of design will be limited the design related effort to
replace and rehabilitate the existing Runways 826 and 1230 edge light
circuits cabling and fixtures

3 The project and design effort is based on primarily utilizing the existing
underground duct system and conduits Only minor duct crossings of
Taxiways are contemplated within scope of work on the project

4 Design of additional navigational aids taxiway light systems wind cones
or appurtenant facilities are not included within the scope of work for this
agreement

5 The design will include the area necessary to restore the landscaping
6 The general scope and magnitude of the expected work items is further

included within the estimate of probable construction cost contained
herein See Attachment T

7 No effort has been included for environmental related clearances

The anticipated effort and estimated manhours for each general Task is defined within
Attachments A A1 A2 B B1 and B2 contained within this contract

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 8



III CONSULTANT COMPENSATION

The Sponsor agrees to pay the Consultant as compensation for rendering the professional services
hereinabove described and submitted using the standard Department invoice forms

ATTACHMENTS G H Burden and overhead rates entered into this Agreement shall be in
effect for the length of the agreement and will not be adiusted except as may be determined under
an audit of costs by the Auditor General or the Department The rates used in this Agreement shall
be the latest audited or provisional approved rates by IDOT as of the date of execution of this
Agreement approval letter must be attached Should the rate change in the time between the final
approval notification of fees and the execution of this Agreement hours will be adjusted accordingly
so that there is no increase in the final approved nottoexceed amount

Any professional services effort performed beyond the nottoexceed limits expressed below and
for which a future amendment will be sought will be performed under all Agreement provisions as
the original contracted work The dollar value of such effort is not considered approved for payment
until review and approval by the Department

A PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN

For services outlined in Section IA Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design and
further detailed in Section IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a lump sum payment of 1240000

representing approximately 35 of the total estimated professional services

compensation for design phase services as determined from the TIP request The fee
shall be paid as a lump sum when the preliminary assessment and schematic design phase
deliverables outlined in Section IA are approved and accepted by the Department

B DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

For services outlined in Section IB Design Phase Services and further detailed in Section
IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a cost plus a fixed payment of 190000

total amount not to exceed 1480000 unless

a major change or addition to the scope of services is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The payment of this fee shall be made in
monthly installments submitted by the Consultant and approved by the Department The
final charges shall be submitted after the Design Phase Services have been performed
approved and all deliverables accepted by the Department in accordance with the guidance
outlined in Section IF This period of time expires 30 days after award of the construction
contract Any submittal after this time shall not be considered eligible for payment
reimbursement by the Department unless extended by the Department

2 a lump sum payment of na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when
the design phase deliverables outlined in Section IF are approved and accepted by the
Department

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 9



C CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES

For services outlined in Section IC Construction Phase Services and further detailed in
Section IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a cost plus a fixed payment of na

total amount not to exceed na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The payment of this fee shall be made in
monthly installments submitted to and approved by the Sponsor andor Department if
applicable The final charges shall be as soon as possible after official notification from
the Consultant of the acceptance of the construction work A time line will be submitted at
each billing cycle after 50 which will indicate a projection of the completed engineering
fee vs the contractorsprogress

If more than one contract exists for the project the monthly invoices submitted by the
Consultant shall detail the amounts of work accomplished under each separate contract
The invoices shall also indicate the dates that the services were performed If these

services are furnished by the Consultant by obtaining such services outside the
Consultants organization the Consultant shall be reimbursed at his actual cost for
obtaining these services However the total payment to the Consultant shall be within the
not to exceed amount as previously stated unless an amendment to this agreement is
approved by the Sponsor andor Department if applicable

D PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

For services outlined in Section ID Planning and Special Services and further detailed in
Section IH Detailed Scope of Services

1 a cost plus a fixed payment of na

total amount not to exceed na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The payment of this fee shall be made in
monthly installments submitted to and approved by the Sponsor The final charges for the
Special Services Phase shall be submitted within fortyfive 45 days after official
notification from the Consultant of the acceptance of the construction work or within 45
days after official notification from the Department of acceptance of other non construction
projects unless extended by the Department

2 a lump sum payment of na unless

a major change or addition to the scope of work is required by the Department or
extensions of time are necessary for completion of the project All justification for
amendments shall be documented with effort recorded separate from the hours approved
under this Agreement All amendment requests must be supported by justification per
Section IIIM Amendments to the Agreement The fee shall be paid as a lump sum when
the deliverables are approved and accepted by the Department

IV SPECIAL CONDITIONS

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 10



The Consultant shall render the services in accordance with generally accepted Professional
Standards

A TERMINATION

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836i2FAA Order 510038

The Sponsor by written seven 7 day notice may terminate this agreement in whole or in part
at any time because of the failure of the other party to fulfill his agreement obligations Upon
receipt of such notice the Consultant shall 1 immediately discontinue all services affected
unless the notice directs otherwise and 2 deliver to the Sponsor all data drawings
specifications reports estimates summaries and such other information and materials as may
have been accumulated by the Consultant in performing this agreement whether completed or
in process

1 If the termination is due to the failure of the Consultant to fulfill his agreement obligations
the Sponsor may take over the work and prosecute the same to completion by agreement
or otherwise In such case the Consultant shall be liable to the Sponsor for any additional
cost occasioned to the Sponsor thereby

2 If after notice of termination for failure to fulfill agreement obligations it is determined that
the Consultant had not so failed the termination shall be deemed to have been effected
for the convenience of the Sponsor

3 It is hereby understood and agreed that should the agreement be terminated the
Consultant shall be entitled to and shall receive a fee based on the amount of work
accomplished and approved by the Department up to the day of notification of termination
The fee shall be equal to the sum of the actual number of manhours of each category of
work applied at a negotiated hourly rate plus any outside services approved by the
participating agencies and accomplished prior to the notification If terminated under

Section IIIHH Breach of Contract Terms the Consultant will not be entitled to profit on
the work accomplished

B CHANGE IN CONSTRUCTION PLANS

It is hereby understood and agreed that if the construction plans are completed in accordance
with criteria andor decisions made by the Sponsor andor the Department if applicable and
approved by the Department and said construction plans are substantially changed or revised
for any reason other than the fault of the Consultant in preparing same then the Consultant
shall be entitled to compensation for rendering the services necessary to complete the
changes The amount of this fee shall be negotiated between the Sponsor Consultant and the
Department and approved by the Department and an amendment to the agreement should
be accomplished prior to authorizing the Consultant to proceed with the changes The fee shall
be due and payable when the revisions are approved by the Sponsor and the Department

It is the Consultants responsibility to notify the Department as soon as possible when
changesrevisions are identified that are beyond the scope of services contemplated under this
Agreement

C HOLD HARMLESS

The Consultant shall be responsible to pay for all labor material and equipment costs incurred
and for any and all damages to property or persons to the proportionate extent arising out of
the negligent performance of services under this agreement and shall indemnify and save
harmless the Sponsor andor the Department if applicable their officers agents and
employees from all third party suits claims actions or damages of any nature whatsoever to

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 11



the proportionate extent resulting there from These indemnities shall not be limited by the
listing of any insurance coverage If any errors negligent acts andor omissions are made by
the Consultant in any phase of the work under this agreement the correction of which may
require additional field or office work the Consultant will be promptly notified and will be
required to perform such additional services as may be necessary to correct these errors
negligent acts andor omissions without undue delay and without additional cost to the Sponsor
andor the Department if applicable The Consultant shall be responsible for any damages
incurred as a result of his errors negligent acts andor omissions and for any losses or cost to
repair or remedy construction as a result of his errors omission andor negligent acts to the
extent such error omission or negligent act breeches the Professional Standard of care The
Consultant shall not be responsible for any consequential damages of the Sponsor or the
Department Neither the Consultant nor the Sponsor nor the Department shall be obligated
for the other parties negligence or for the negligence of others

D DRAWING OWNERSHIP

It is further mutually agreed by the parties hereto that reproducible copies of the drawings
computer disks tracings construction plans specifications and maps prepared or obtained
under the terms of the contract shall be delivered to and become the property of the Sponsor
and basic survey notes and sketches charts computations and other data shall be made
available upon request of the Sponsor If any information is used by the Sponsor or another
Consultant such use or reuse by the Sponsor or others shall be at the sole risk and without
liability or legal exposure to the Consultant

E CONTRACT FOR OUTSIDE SERVICES

If any of the services outlined in Section I are furnished by the Consultant by obtaining such
services outside the Consultants organization the Consultant shall provide an executed
contract between the persons or firm and the Consultant outlining the services to be
performed and the charges for the same Two 2 copies of the executed contract shall be
submitted to the participating agencies for approval prior to the services being performed all
covenants and Special Conditions shall be included and binding on all subcontracts

F FORMERLY NOTICE TO PROCEED See Section IG

G SUBLET AGREEMENT

Each party binds himself his partners successors executors administrators and assigns to
the other part of this agreement and to the partners successors executors administrators and
assigns for such other party at all covenants of this Agreement

Except as above neither the Sponsor nor the Consultant shall assign sublet or transfer his
interest in this agreement without the written consent of the other party hereto

H AGREEMENT EXPIRES

This agreement expires upon final approval and acceptance of the completed projectsby the
Sponsor andor Department as applicable and after all final engineering charges have been
paid to the Consultant as of the date of project closeout or after five years from the date of
execution whichever comes first Payment liability by the State is as outlined above see
Section IG Notice to Proceed and Section II Consultant Compensation

I EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY

Reference 49 CFR Part 21 FAA AC 150510015A or latest revision

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 12



The Consultant agrees to conduct the services in compliance with all the requirements imposed
by or pursuant to Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 Part 21 of the Regulations of the
Secretary of Transportation and Executive Order No 11246 Equal Employment Opportunity
as amended

During the performance of this contract the Consultant for itself its assigns and successors
in interest hereinafter referred to as the Consultant agrees as follows

1 Compliance with Regulations The Consultant shall comply with the Regulations relative
to nondiscrimination in federally assisted programs of the Department of Transportation
hereinafter DOT Title 49 Code of Federal Regulations Part 21 as they may be
amended from time to time hereinafter referred to as the Regulations which are herein
incorporated by reference and made a part of this contract

2 Nondiscrimination The Consultant with regard to the work performed by it during the
contract shall not discriminate on the grounds of race color or national origin in the
selection and retention of subconsultants including procurements of materials and leases
of equipment The Consultant shall not participate either directly or indirectly in the
discrimination prohibited by Section 215 of the Regulations including employment
practices when the contract covers a program set forth in Appendix B of the Regulations

3 Solicitations for Subcontracts Including Procurements of Materials and Equipment In all
solicitations either by competitive bidding or negotiation made by the Consultant for work
to be performed under a subcontract including procurements of materials or leases of
equipment each potential subconsultant or supplier shall be notified by the Consultant of
the Consultants obligations under this contract and the Regulations relative to
nondiscrimination on the grounds of race color or national origin

4 Information and Reports The Consultant shall provide all information and reports required
by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto and shall permit access to its
books records accounts other sources of information and its facilities as may be
determined by the sponsor or the Federal Aviation Administration FAA to be pertinent to
ascertain compliance with such Regulations orders and instructions Where any
information required of a Consultant is in the exclusive possession of another who fails or
refuses to furnish this information the Consultant shall so certify to the sponsor or the FAA
as appropriate and shall set forth what efforts it has made to obtain the information

5 Sanctions for Noncompliance In the event the Consultants noncompliance with the
nondiscrimination provisions of this contract the sponsor shall impose such contract
sanctions as may determine to be appropriate including but not limited to

a withholding of payments to the Consultant under the contract until the Consultant
complies andor

b cancellation termination or suspension of the contract in whole or in part

Incorporation of Provisions The Consultant shall include the provisions of paragraphs 1
through 5 above in every subcontract including procurement of materials and leases of
equipment unless exempt by the Regulations or directives issued pursuant thereto The
Consultant shall take such action with respect to any subcontract or procurement as the
sponsor may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions including sanctions for
noncompliance Provided however that in the event an Consultant becomes involved in or is
threatened with litigation with a subconsultant or supplier as a result of such direction the
Consultant may request the sponsor andor Department to enter into such litigation to protect
the interests of the sponsor and in addition the Consultant

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 13



DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE DBE ASSURANCES

1 Policy It is the policy of the Department of Transportation DOT that disadvantaged
business enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 23 shall have the maximum opportunity to
participate in the performance of contracts financed in whole or in part with Federal funds
under this agreement Consequently the DBE requirements of 49 CFR Part 23 applies to
this agreement

2 DBE Obligation The Consultant agrees to ensure that disadvantaged business
enterprises as defined in 49 CFR Part 23 have the maximum opportunity to participate in
the performance of contracts and subcontracts financed in whole or in part with Federal
funds provided under this agreement In this regard all Consultants shall take all
necessary and reasonable steps in accordance with 49 CFR Part 23 to ensure that
disadvantaged business enterprises have the maximum opportunity to compete for and
perform contracts Consultants shall not discriminate on the basis of race color national
origin or sex in the award and performance of DOT assisted contracts

J OPEN ACCESS TO DOCUMENTS

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836iFAA Order 510038
Public Act 900572 Section 2065 Public Act 87991

The Consultant shall maintain for a minimum of 5 years after the completion of the contract
adequate books records and supporting documents to verify the amounts recipients and
uses of all disbursements of funds passing in conjunction with the contract the contract and all
books records and supporting documents related to the contract shall be available for review
and audit by the Auditor General and the Consultant agrees to cooperate fully with any audit
conducted by the Auditor General and to provide full access to all relevant materials Failure
to maintain the books records and supporting documents required by this Section shall
establish a presumption in favor of the State for the recovery of any funds paid by the State
under the contract for which adequate books records and supporting documentation are not
available to support their purported disbursement

K CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 Section 5013

It is unlawful for any person holding an elective office in this State holding a seat in the General
Assembly or appointed to or employed in any of the offices of State government or who is an
officer or employee of the Illinois Building Authority or the Illinois Toll Highway Authority or who
is the wife husband or minor child of any such person to have or acquire any contract or any
direct pecuniary interest in any contract therein whether for stationery printing paper or for
any services materials or supplies which will be wholly or partially satisfied by the payment of
funds appropriated by the General Assembly of the State of Illinois or in any contract of the
Illinois Building Authority or the Illinois Toll Highway Authority Payments made for a public aid
recipient are not payments pursuant to a contract with the State within the meaning of this
Section

It is unlawful for any firm partnership association or corporation in which any such person is
entitled to receive more than 7 12 of the total distributable income to have or acquire any
such contract or direct pecuniary interest therein

It is unlawful for any firm partnership association or corporation in which any such person
together with his spouse or minor children is entitled to receive more than 15 in the

aggregate of the total distributable income to have or acquire any such contract or direct
pecuniary interest therein

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 14



Nothing in this Section invalidates the provisions of any bond or other security hereto or
hereafter offered for sale or sold by or for the State of Illinois
This Section does not affect the validity of any contract made between the State and an officer
or employee of the State or member of the General Assembly his spouse minor child or any
combination of such persons if that contract was in existence before his election or
employment as such officer member or employee Such a contract is void however if it
cannot be completed within 6 months after such officer member or employee takes office or
is employed

This Section does not apply to 1 a contract for personal services as a teacher or school
administrator between a member of the General Assembly or his spouse or a State officer or
employee or his or her spouse and any school district public community college district the
University of Illinois Southern Illinois University or any institution under the control of the Board
of Governors of State Colleges and Universities or under the control of the Board of Regents
or 2 a contract for personal service of a wholly ministerial character including but not limited
to services as a laborer clerk typist stenographer page bookkeeper receptionist or
telephone switchboard operator made by a spouse or minor child of an elective or appointive
State officer or employee or of a member of the General Assembly or 3 payments made to a
member of the General Assembly a State officer or employee his or her spouse or minor child
acting as a foster parent homemaker advocate or volunteer for or in behalf of a child or family
served by the Department of Children and Family Services

Any person convicted of a violation of this Section shall be guilty of a business offense and
shall be fined not less than1000 nor more than5000

The appropriate Certification of Capacity to Contract will be executed in Section IIIX of this
agreement

L THE CONSULTANT SELECTION

Reference 49 CFR Part 18 FAA AC 510014D or latest revision
30 ILCS 535 IDOTAeronautics Administrative Bulletin 201002

The Dixon Municipal Airport hereby certifies that it
Sponsor

has completed the prescribed qualifications based consultant selection procedures

The firm of Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc of Springfield IL has

Consultant Location
been selected to provide the engineering services required for the project on

September 2 2014

Date
A copy of the executed Retainer Agreement identifying the project covered by this Agreement
is included as ATTACHMENT U

M AMENDMENTS TO THE AGREEMENT

All effort recorded to document a claim for additional compensation must be delineated
separately from the original scope of services with personnel classifications dates worked
rates hours and services thoroughly detailed and clearly identified

The Department shall be notified of potential amendment requests at the earliest possible
opportunity once it has been determined that any of the following three circumstances may
exist Any amendments to the Agreement which increases the fee or the time of performance

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 15



must contain one of the following written determinations with support documentation
depending upon the circumstances of the change

1 The undersigned determine that the circumstances which necessitate this change were not
reasonably foreseeable at the time the contract was signed

2 The undersigned determine that the circumstances which necessitate this change were not
within the contemplation of the contract as signed

3 The undersigned determine that this change is in the best interest of the state of Illinois
and is authorized by law

Date Sign Name

Print Name

Title

Any professional services effort performed beyond the nottoexceed limits expressed in
Section II Consultant Compensation and for which a future amendment will be sought will be
performed under all Agreement provisions as the original contracted work The dollar value of
such effort is not considered approved for payment until review and approval by the
Department

N CERTIFICATION OF CONSULTANT

Public Act 900572 Section 505

I hereby certify that I am the Vice President title and duly

authorized representative of the firm Crawford Murphy TiIIv Inc

whose address is 2750 West Washington Street Springfield IL 62702 and

that neither I nor the above firm I here represent has

1 employed or retained for a commission percentage brokerage contingent fee or other
consideration any firm or person other than a bona fide employee working solely for me
or the above Consultant to solicit or secure this Agreement

2 agreed as an express or implied condition for obtaining this contract to employ or retain
the services of any firm or person in connection with carrying out the Agreement or

3 paid or agreed to pay to any firm organization or person other than a bona fide employee
working solely for me or the above Consultant any fee contribution donation or
consideration of any kind for or in connection with procuring or carrying out the contract
except as here expressly stated if any

The firm certifies by execution

1 it has not been convicted of bribery or attempting to bribe an officer or employee of the
State of Illinois nor has the firm made an admission of guilt of such conduct which is a
matter of record nor has an official agent or employee of the firm committed bribery or
attempted bribery on behalf of the firm and pursuant to the direction or authorization of a

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 16



responsible official of the firm nor has the firm been barred from being awarded a contract
or subcontract

2 it has not been barred from contracting with a unit of state or local government as a result
of a violation of the Criminal Code of 1961

I acknowledge that this certification is to be furnishes o the Federal Avia ion A ministration
of the United States Department of Transportation i onnection with thi con ct involving
participation of Airport Improvement Program AIP n a J is

subjI
o a Iicalestate

and Federal laws both criminal and civil

121Ssot4Date Sig ame

Brian R Welker PE

Print Name

Vice President Aviation Group Manager
Title

O FEDERAL TAXPAYER IDENTIFICATION NUMBER

The following statement is made under penalty of perjury

The Firms correct Federal Taxpayer Identification Number is 370844662

4am This firm is doing business as a please check one

Individual Partnership X Corporation

P DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE DBE PARTICIPATION
Reference 49 CFR Part 26

Contract Assurance 02613 The Consultant or subconsultant shall not discriminate on the
basis of race color national origin or sex in the performance of this contract The Consultant
shall carry out applicable requirements of 49 CFR Part 26 in the award and administration of
DOT assisted contracts Failure by the Consultant to carry out these requirements is a material
breach of this contract which may result in the termination of this contract or such other
remedy as the recipient deems appropriate

In keeping with the DBE plan adopted by the Sponsor the Consultant shall take all necessary
and reasonable steps to attain DBE participation in this contract

The work for each subconsultant should be listed separately If the subconsultant is being
utilized to meet the project DBE goal they must be prequalified in that category and certified
as a DBE in that category Please indicate that they are certified in that category The
certification list is available on the Departmentswebsite on the Doing Business menu under
Small Business Enterprises and IL UCP directory http wwwdotilgovucpucphtmlDBE
Directory The percent of work is computed based on the individual subconsultantswork effort
in each category

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 17



Firm Name

Subcontract Amount

Prequalification Category of Work DBE Certification

If more than one subconsultant is being used attach additional sheets

NOTE All final payment requests shall include a completed ATTACHMENT 0 DBE Final

Documentation or the complete information on the Consultantsformat

O DISCRIMINATION

Reference 49 CFR Part 21 FAA AC 150510015A or latest revision
Executive Order 11246 of September 24 1965 41 CFR Part 60

The Consultant agrees not to commit unlawful discrimination in employment in Illinois and
further agrees to take affirmative action to ensure that no unlawful discrimination is committed

R DUESFEES TO CLUBS WHICH DISCRIMINATE

775 ILCS 252 Source PA 85909

The Consultant of the business entity certifies that it is not prohibited from selling goods or
services to the State of Illinois because it pays dues or fees on behalf of its employees or
agent or subsidizes or otherwise reimburses them for payment of their dues or fees to any
club which unlawfully discriminates

S CONFLICT OF INTEREST

Public Act 900572 Section 5013

The Consultant agrees to comply with the provision of the Illinois Public Act prohibiting conflict
of interest and all the terms conditions and provisions of those Sections apply to this contract
and are made a part of this contract the same as though they were incorporated and included
herein

T FELONY CONVICTION

Public Act 905072 Section 5010

The Consultant certifies that if heshe or the business entity has been convicted of a felony at
least five years has passed since the completion of the sentence as of the contract date

U ILLINOIS HUMAN RIGHTS NUMBER

The Consultant must have an Illinois Department of Human Rights prequalification number or
have an application on file with the Illinois Department of Human Rights office at the State of
Illinois Center Suite 10100 100 West Randolph Chicago Illinois 60601 refer to Department
of Human Rights form

IDHR PC1 IL 442 0010 IDHR 01876004

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 18



V EDUCATIONAL LOAN DEFAULT

5 ILCS 385

The Consultant certifies that if this agreement is with an individual or individuals that heshe
is not in default on an educational loan

W DRUG FREE WORKPLACE

30 ILCS 580

If the Consultant has 25 or more employees the following certification shall apply and by
signing this document the Consultant certifies as follows

1 The Consultant certifies that he will provide a drug free workplace in compliance with the
Drug Free Workplace Act Act Specifically Consultant certifies he will do the following

a Publish a statement

i Notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture distribution dispensation
possession or use of a controlled substance including cannabis is prohibited
in the Consultants workplace

ii Specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violations of
such prohibition

iii Notifying the employee that as a condition of employment on this agreement
the employee will
1 abide by the terms of the statement and
2 notify the employer of any criminal drug statute conviction for a violation

occurring in the workplace no later than 5 days after such conviction
b Establish a drug free awareness program to inform employees about

i the dangers of drug abuse in the workplace
ii the Consultant policy of maintaining a drug free workplace
iii any available drug counseling rehabilitation and employee assistance

programs and
iv the penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug violations

c Give a copy of the statement described above to each employee engaged in the
performance of the contract and post the statement in a prominent place in the
workplace

d Notify the State within 10 days after receiving notice under parta3Babove from
an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction

e Impose a sanction on or require the satisfactory participation in a drug abuse
assistance or rehabilitation program by any employee who is so convicted as required
by 5 of the Act

f Assist employees in selecting a course of action in the event drug counseling
treatment and rehabilitation is required and indicate that a trained referral team is in
place

g Make a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug free workplace through
implementation of 3 of the Act

If an individual the Consultant further certifies that he will not engage in the unlawful
manufacture distribution dispensation possession or use of a controlled substance in the
performance of the agreement

X CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572

The Consultant certifies that the Corporationscertificate of Authority to do business in
Illinois is in good standing with the Secretary of StatesOffice

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 19



CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract
with the State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any
contract with the State of Illinois whether for materials services supplies printing or stationery
This prohibition does not extend to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature
as provided for in the Act

Corporation

The undersigned being a duly elected Vice President and Associate of

Crawford Murphy Tilly Inc a corporation hereby certify
that they have read Public Act 900572 Section 5013 and that they have checked the records
of the corporation and that no person who is entitled to receive individually more than 7 12
of the total distributable income of the corporation or together with their spouse or minor child
more than 15 of the total distributable income of the corporation is i an elected State official
a member of the General Assembly an appointed State officer a State employee ii an officer
or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway Authority or of the Illinois Building Authority or iii a
spouse or a minor child of any such enumerated person

day of 0 20 14 1
Co io

BY A l t ill 1 BY

Daniel L Pape PE Associate Brian R Welker PE Vice President
Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 20



CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract
with the State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any
contract with the State of Illinois whether for materials services supplies printing or stationery
This prohibition does not extend to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature
as provided for in the Act

Partnerships and Non Corporate Firms and Associations

The undersigned being each and every one of the partnersmembersassociatesother of

WA hereby
certify on behalf of themselves individually that they have read Public Act 900572 Section 50
13 and that i they are not an elected State official a member of the General Assembly an
appointed State officer a State employee an officer or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway
Authority or of the Illinois Building Authority nor a spouse or minor child of any such
enumerated person or ii that they are such an enumerated person but that they are not
entitled to receive individually more than 7 12 of the total distributable income of the
partnershipfirmassociation or together with their spouse or a minor child more than 15 of
the total distributable income of the partnershipfirmassociation

day of AD 20

BY BY

Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

dba

Name

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 21



CERTIFICATION OF CAPACITY TO CONTRACT

Public Act 900572 prohibits certain persons and entities from having or acquiring any contract
with the State of Illinois and from having or acquiring any direct pecuniary interests in any
contract with the State of Illinois whether for materials services supplies printing or stationery
This prohibition does not extend to certain contracts for personal services of a ministerial nature
as provided for in the Act

Individual Consultants

I NA

Name

hereby certify that I have read Public Act 900572 Section 5013 and I further certify i that I
am not an elected State official a member of the General Assembly an appointed State officer
a State employee ii that I am not an officer or employee of the Illinois Toll Highway Authority
or of the Illinois Building Authority and iii that I am not a spouse or a minor child of any such
official member officer or employee

day of AD 20

BY

Printed Name Title

dba

Name

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 22



Y CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING

Reference 49 CFR Part 20 Appendix A

Certification for Contracts Grants Loans and Cooperative Agreements

The Consultant certifies compliance with Section 319 of Public Law 101 102 and to the best of
his or her knowledge and belief that

1 No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the
undersigned to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any agency a Member of Congress an Officer or employee of Congress or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract the making of any Federal grant the making of any Federal loan the entering into
of any cooperative agreement and the extension continuation renewal amendment or
modification of any Federal contract grant loan or cooperative agreement

2 If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency a
Member of Congress an officer or employee of Congress or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract grant loan or cooperative agreement
the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL Disclosure Form to
Report Lobbying in accordance with its instructions

3 The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award documents for all sub awards at all tiers including subcontracts sub grants and
contracts under grants loans and cooperative agreements and that all sub recipients
shall certify and disclose accordingly

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
this transaction was made or entered into Submission of this certification is a prerequisite

for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352 Title 31 US Code
Any person who fails to file the required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of
not less than 10000 and not more than 100000 for each such failure

Z INTERNATIONAL BOYCOTT

Applicable to contracts in excess of 10000

The Consultant certifies that neither it nor any substantiallyowned affiliated company is
participating or shall participate in an international boycott in violation of the provisions of the
US Export Administration Act of 1979 or the regulations of the US Department of Commerce
promulgated under that Act The Consultant makes the certification set forth in Section 5 of
the International Anti Boycott Certification Act

AANONAPPROPRIATION CLAUSE

Obligations of the State will cease immediately without penalty or further payment being
required in any fiscal year the Illinois General Assembly fails to appropriate or otherwise
make available sufficient funds for payment of this Agreement

BBDEBT CERTIFICATION

The Consultant certifies that it or any affiliate is not barred from being awarded a contract
under 30 ILCS 5005011 and 5012 The Consultant further acknowledges that the contracting

State agency may declare the contract void if the preceding certification is false or if the
contractor or any affiliate is determined to be delinquent in the payment of any debt to the

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 23



State during the term of the contract

CCGOODS FROM CHILD LABOR ACT

The Consultant certifies in accordance with Public Act 940264 thal no foreign made
equipment materials or supplies furnished to the State under the contract have been produced
in whole or in part by the labor of any child under the age of 12

DD QUALIFICATION BASED SELECTION ACT

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836 FAA Order 510038 FAA AC 150510014 latest

The parties hereby certify that there was compliance with the provisions of the State of Illinois
Architectural Engineering and Land Surveying Qualifications Based Selection Act Chapter 30
ILCS 535 in the procurement of the services covered by this Agreement

EE CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT SUSPENSION INELIGIBILITY AND
VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

Reference 49 CFR Part 29 FAA Order 510038

The Consultant certifies by submission of this proposal or acceptance of this contract that
neither it nor its principals is presently debarred suspended proposed for debarment declared
ineligible or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal
department or agency It further agrees by submitting this Agreement that it will include this
clause without modification in all lower tier transactions solicitations proposals contracts and
subcontracts Where the Consultant or any lower tier participant is unable to certify to this
statement it shall attach an explanation to this solicitationproposal

FF RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836i8FAA Order 510038

All rights to inventions and materials generated under this contract are subject to regulations
issued by the FAA and the Sponsor of the Federal grant under which this contract is executed

GG TRADE RESTRICTION CLAUSE

Reference 49 CFR Part 3013 FAA Order 510038

The Consultant or subconsultant by submission of an offer andor execution of a contract
certifies that it

1 is not owned or controlled by one or more citizens of a foreign country included in the list
of countries that discriminate against US firms published by the Office of the United States
Trade Representative USTR

2 has not knowingly entered into any contract or subcontract for this project with a person
that is a citizen or national of a foreign country on said list or is owned or controlled directly
or indirectly by one or more citizens or nationals of a foreign country on said list

3 has not procured any product nor subcontracted for the supply of any product for use on
the project that is produced in a foreign country on said list

Unless the restrictions of this clause are waived by the Secretary of Transportation in
accordance with 49 CFR 3017 no contract shall be awarded to a Consultant or subconsultant
who is unable to certify to the above If the Consultant knowingly procures or subcontracts for
the supply of any product or service of a foreign country on said list for use on the project the
Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the Sponsor cancellation of the contract at
no cost to the Government

DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 24



Further the Consultant agrees that if awarded a contract resulting from this solicitation it will
incorporate this provision for certification without modification in each contract and in all lower
tier subcontracts The Consultant may rely on the certification of a prospective subconsultant
unless it has knowledge that the certification is erroneous

The Consultant shall provide immediate written notice to the sponsor if the Consultant learns
that its certification or that of a subconsultant was erroneous when submitted or has become

erroneous by reason of changed circumstances The subconsultant agrees to provide written
notice to the contractor if at any time it learns that its certification was erroneous by reason of
changed circumstances

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when
making the award If it is later determined that the Consultant or subconsultant knowingly
rendered an erroneous certification the Federal Aviation Administration may direct through the
Sponsor cancellation of the contract or subcontract for default at no cost to the Government

Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of
records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this provision The
knowledge and information of a contractor is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings

This certification concerns a matter within the jurisdiction of an agency of the United States of
America and the making of a false fictitious or fraudulent certification may render the maker
subject to prosecution under Title 18 United States Code Section 1001

HHBREACH OF CONTRACT TERMS

Reference 49 CFR Part 1836

Any violation or breach of terms of this contract on the part of the Consultant or their
subconsultants may result in the suspension or termination of this contract or such other action
that may be necessary to enforce the rights of the parties of this agreement The duties and
obligations imposed by the Contract Documents and the rights and remedies available
thereunder shall be in addition to and not a limitation of any duties obligations rights and
remedies otherwise imposed or available by law

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 25



Policies and procedures for procurement of professional services are established in Federal Regulation
Title 49 CFR Part 18 Uniform Administrative Requirements for Grants and Cooperative Agreements The
Airport and Airway Improvement Act AAIA of 1982 as amended serves as the enabling legislation The
parties agree that these policies and procedures have been followed

IN WITNESS WHEREOF the parties hereto have affixed their hand and seals at

Dixon Illinois this 2014

city date year

ATTEST

SEAL

City of Dixon
Sponsor Name

Federal EmployeesIdentification Number

BY BY

Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

ATTEST

SEAL

Consultant Name

3708446 r 2

Feder Id umber

BY BYBY I
Daniel L Pape PE Associate Brian R Welker PE Vice President

Printed Name Title Printed Name Title

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 26



LIST OF ATTACHMENTS

ATTACHMENT A Al PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT AND SCHEMATIC DESIGN PHASE
SERVICES

ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT B B1 DESIGN PHASE SERVICES

ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT C C1 CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES
ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT D D1 PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES

ESTIMATE OF COSTS SALARY EXPENSES

ATTACHMENT E ENGINEERING REPORT General Guidance

ATTACHMENT F RESIDENT ENGINEERSDIARY Standard Format

ATTACHMENT G COST PLUS FIXED PAYMENT INVOICE Standard Format

ATTACHMENT H LUMP SUM INVOICE Standard Format

ATTACHMENT I EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN Standard Format

ATTACHMENT J TESTING SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT K TESTING RATES COST SUMMARY

ATTACHMENT L SUMMARY OF PAYROLL BURDEN AND FRINGE COSTS

ATTACHMENT M SUMMARY OF OVERHEAD AND INDIRECT COSTS

ATTACHMENT N PROJECT CERTIFICATION

ATTACHMENT O DBE FINAL DOCUMENTATION

ATTACHMENT P PROJECT SKETCH

ATTACHMENT 0 PROJECT LETTING SCHEDULE

ATTACHMENT R OPP PROGRAM LETTER

ATTACHMENT S CURRENT IDOT PROVISIONAL PAYROLL BURDEN FRINGE EXPENSE
AND GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATE LETTER

ATTACHMENT T CONSULTANTSPRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE
CONSTRUCTION COSTS

ATTACHMENT U RETAINER AGREEMENT

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 27



Dixon Municipal Airport
Rehabilitate Airfield Lighting System

Attachment A

Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Services
ESTIMATE OF COSTS

CATEGORY AMOUNT

1 Direct Salary Costs 443436

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead 5681 251916

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses 7988 354217

Lodging23

MealsPer Diem23

Transportation 24000

Materials Supplies 2500

Printing 2500

CADD time

Other Costs Excluding outside Services 2500

4 Fixed Payment 160000

5 Outside SenAcesSubconsultants

none anticipated

Estimate of Total Costs 1241069

Lump Sum Total Amount Not to Exceed Use 1240000

Estimated Construction Cost

FederalStateLocal 195000

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 28



ATTACHMENT A1

Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Services

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSE

TIME REQUIRED HOURLY SALARY

CLASSIFICATION HOURS WAGE EXPENSE

PRINCIPAL 0 6833 000

SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER 3 5651 16953

PROJECT ENGINEER 20 4394 87880

SENIOR ENGINEER 25 3398 84950

ENGINEER 27 2755 74385

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR 2 3923 7846

SENIOR TECHNICIAN 37 3355 124135

ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 18 2520 45360

CLERKTYPIST 1 1927 1927

AVERAGE

TOTAL 133 3334 443436

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 29



Dixon Municipal Airport

Rehabilitate Airfield Lighting System
Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Services

Attachment A2

Cost Estimate of Consultant Services By Task

Ave

Hourly Total Direct of Total

Element of Work Hours Rate Labor Labor

Preliminary AssessmentSchematic Design Per Section IA of Agreement
1 Field InvestigationsSurveys 40 2994 119749 2700

2 Preliminary Design 35 Design Report subtotal 70 3316 232149 5235

General Scope DevelopmentOverall Limits 8 3167 25337 571

Preliminary sequence of construction 5 3331 16657 376

Existing ConditionsRemovals 10 3223 32232 727

Existing Lighting System Evaluation 7 3493 24449 551

Proposed Lighting System 19 3342 63491 1432

LayoutPlan Development

Proposed Electrical Details 7 3487 24406 550

Electrical Vault Improvements 7 3167 22167 500

Preliminary opinion of probable costquantity 7 3344 23410 528

evaluation and funding review

3 Design conferences with C73IDA 7 4004 28031 632

4 Agency CoordinationPermitting 6 3716 22294 503

5 ProgressReview Meetings 6 3896 23376 527

6 Quality Control and Constructability Review 2 3896 7792 176

7 Project Management 2 5023 10045 227

Totals 133 3334 443436 100

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 30



Dixon Municipal Airport
Rehabilitate Airfield Lighting System

Attachment B

Design Phase Services
ESTIMATE OF COSTS

CATEGORY AMOUNT

1 Direct Salary Costs 528595

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead 5681 300295

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses 7988 422242

Lodging23

MealsPer Diem23

Transportation 25000

Materials Supplies 3000

Printing 12000

CADD time

Other Costs Excluding outside Services 2500

4 Fixed Payment 190000

5 Outside ServicesSubconsultants

none anticipated

Estimate of Total Costs 1483632

Cost Plus Fixed Fee Total Amount Not to Exceed Use 1480000

Estimated Construction Cost

FederalStateLocal 195000

Attach a sketch labeled ATTACHMENT P in sufficient detail to clearly delineate the proposed areas of
work

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board

3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 31



ATTACHMENT B1

Design Phase Services

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSE

TIME REQUIRED HOURLY SALARY

CLASSIFICATION HOURS WAGE EXPENSE

PRINCIPAL 0 6833 000

SENIOR PROJECT ENGINEER 6 5651 33906

PROJECT ENGINEER 21 4394 92274

SENIOR ENGINEER 48 3398 163104

ENGINEER 40 2755 110200

REGISTERED LAND SURVEYOR 0 3923 000

SENIOR TECHNICIAN 30 3355 100650

ENGINEERING TECHNICIAN 9 2520 22680

CLERKTYPIST 3 1927 5781

AVERAGE

TOTAL 157 3367 528595

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 32



Dixon Municipal Airport

Rehabilitate Airfield Lighting System
Design Phase Services

Attachment B2

Cost Estimate of Consultant Services By Task

Ave

Hourly Total Direct Ye of Total

Element of Work Hours Rate Labor Labor

DesignBidding Phase Per Section IB of Agreement
1 Prel Design FollowupDesign Report 35 Addendum 5 3580 17900 339

2 Design conferences with C73IDA 6 3896 23376 442

3 Plan Development Detailed Design 80 Level subtotal 80 3278 262223 4961

CoverSummary of QuantitiesGeneraVComps 18 3165 56971 1078

Preliminary sequence of construction 10 3264 32640 617

Existing ConditionsRemovals 6 3169 19016 360

Proposed ReCable PlanLighting Layout 10 3331 33314 630

Electrical Details 10 3284 32844 621

Electrical Vault ImprovementsMods 13 3270 42512 804

Specifications Bid Documents Opinion of Probable Cost 13 3456 44926 850

Detailed Design 80 Level
4 Plan Development Final Design 80 100 Level subtotal 47 3325 156255 2956

CoverSummary of QuantitiesGeneraVComps 8 2953 23624 447

Preliminary sequence of construction 5 3252 16261 308

Existing ConditionsRemovals 4 3216 12863 243

Proposed ReCable PlanLighting Layout 6 3443 20655 391

Electrical Details 8 3633 29061 550

Electrical Vault ImprovementsMods 8 3241 25930 491

Specifications Bid Documents Opinion of Probable Cost 8 3483 27861 527

Detailed Design 80 Level

5 Agency CoordinationPermitting 2 3077 6153 116

6 ProgressReview Meetings 4 3077 12306 233

7 Quality Control and Constructability Review 4 4210 16841 319

8 Project Management 4 4210 16841 319

9 Miscellaneous bid admininistration addenda respond to 5 3340 16700 316

questions during bidding analysis of bids etc

Totals 157 3367 528595 100

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 33



ATTACHMENT C

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF COSTS

Category Amount

1 Direct Salary Costs

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Lodging

MealsPer Diem

Transportation

Materials Supplies

Printing

CADD time

Other Costs excluding outside services

4 Fixed Payments

5 Outside Services

Cost Plus Fixed Payment
Total Amount Not to Exceed

Estimated Number of Calendar Days

Estimated Days of OnSite Resident Engineer Services

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 34



ATTACHMENT C1

CONSTRUCTION PHASE SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSES

Classification Hours RateHour Cost

Principal

Vice Principal

Project Manager

Senior Project Engineer

Senior Project Architect

Project Engineer

Resident Engineer

Senior Engineer

Senior Architect

Engineer

Planner

Registered Land Surveyor

Land Surveyor

Senior Engineering Technician

Engineering Technician

Engineering Assistant

CADDDraftsmanTechnician

Clerical

Total

hours average total direct salary costs
ATTACHMENT C

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 35



ATTACHMENT D

PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF COSTS

Category Amount

1 Direct Salary Costs ATTACHMENT D1

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead

3 Direct Nonsalary Expenses

Lodging

MealsPer Diem

Transportation

Materials Supplies

Printing

CADD time

Other Costs excluding outside services

4 Fixed Pavment

5 Outside Services

Cost Pius Fixed Payment
Total Amount Not to Exceed

OR

Lump Sum
Total Amount Not to Exceed

NOTES

1 A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

2 Current approved rates established by State of Illinois Governors Travel Control Board
3 Shall not be used in calculation of fixed payment amount
4 Maximum CADD rate shall be 1500hour
5 Fixed Payment Profit 145xDirect Salary Costs OHBxDirect Salary Costs

Transportation Materials Supplies Printing CADD time Other Costs excluding outside
services

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 36



ATTACHMENT D1

PLANNING AND SPECIAL SERVICES NOT INCLUDED WITHIN THIS AGREEMENT

ESTIMATE OF SALARY EXPENSES

Classification Hours RateHour Cost

Principal

Vice Principal

Project Manager

Senior Project Engineer

Senior Project Architect

Project Engineer

Project Architect

Senior Engineer

Senior Architect

Engineer

Planner

Registered Land Surveyor

Land Surveyor

Senior Engineering Technician

Engineering Technician

Engineering Assistant

CAD DDraftsmanTechnician

Clerical

Total

hours average total direct salary costs
ATTACHMENT D

Classifications may be adjusted as per Consultantswork force

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 37



ATTACHMENT E

ENGINEERING REPORT General Guidance

The Engineering Report is to be prepared by the Consultant and submitted to the Sponsor andor
Department if possible prior to starting Plans and Specifications The Report shall include at a minimum
a discussion of the following elements which are applicable and any other elements deemed necessary by
the Department

1 Introduction project overview and consistency with approved ALP justification scope
authorization funding required environmental actions and schedule

2 Investigations and evaluations including pavement history PCI information topographic survey
data soil sampling and testing boring logs CBR test results subgrade stabilization considerations
and seasonal frost issues

3 Pavement design considerations including pavement types andor alternates any unusual design
and reasons therefore selection of design CBR value traffic distribution and reported pavement
strength

4 Rehabilitation strengthening andor overlay work shall be detailed as to the type of work required
including existing pavement conditions material selection considerations thickness design and
economic analysis

5 Construction features which vary from FAA criteria should be identified including the problems
facts alternative solutions and or desired solution Is the desired solution the most economical

6 Items such as materials sources soils drainage water for construction cost of land vs
development contractor resources available finances and stage development The report should
say how these factors affected the decisions made by the Consultant in the design

7 Explanation of drainage design criteria including explanation of drainage districts data iNPUT and
offsite drainage impact on design Include drainage calculations and modeling

8 Special considerations for local circumstances such as available material equipment contractors
and airport sponsored events

9 Consultantschoice of options for the lighting design similar explanation of choices made for the
drainage fencing turfing and marking including decisions regarding cover crop seeding

10 Approach conditions which will result from proposed work and comparison with FAA criteria

11 Analysis of potential RSA determination if applicable

12 Development of PCN for runway strengthening and rehabilitation projects

13 Description of nonAIP work and quantity separation from AIP eligible items

14 Identify work to be done by others such as utility companies and airports sponsor forces

15 The Consultantspreliminary estimate of construction costs fees and expenses shall be included

16 A discussion of project safety concerns per guidance explained in FAA AC 15053702F or
current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction shall be included

17 A discussion of project phasing sequencing and estimate of construction calendar days shall be
included

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 38



ATTACHMENT F

Illinois Department
of Transportation Resident EngineersDiary

Airport Date

Contractor IL Project No AIP Project

Temperature Wind Weather Conditions

Status Active Suspended Jobsite Conditions Workable Non workable

Controlling Item

Workforce

Consultant of people hours

Contractor of people equipment hours

Daily Work
Pay items General Location

Instructions to Contractor Unusual Events

Verbal Approvals official item

Additional Work change order etc

Official Visitors

Materials Deliveries material quantity quality Testing test location corrective action

Other

Calendar Days Awarded DBE Onsite yes or no
Charged Own forces used yes or no
Remaining Own equipment used yes or no

Submitted Firm Date

DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 39



ATTACHMENT G

COST PLUS FIXED PAYMENT INVOICE Standard Format

To Chief Engineer From Firm
Illinois Department of Transportation Address

Division of Aeronautics Telephone No
Abraham Lincoln Capital Airport Invoice Date

1 Langhorne Bond Drive Partial Final

Springfield IL 627078415

Attn Section Chief

Airport Municipality IL

Illinois Project No Federal Project No

Notice to Proceed Date OPP Program Letter or Sponsor Authorization
Per NE AgreementAmendment dated

Services Check only those services pertaining to invoice
Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Planning and Special Services
Design Phase Other

Construction Phase Amendments

Service Dates For Services Rendered From date To date

To Date Billing
Period

1 Direct Salaries
Include all information per ATTACHMENT I EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN

2 Labor and General and Administrative Overhead
3 Direct NonSalary Expenses OT Premium

Support documentation must accompany all payment requests of direct nonsalary expenses
4 Profit Fixed Payment x Complete
5 SUBTOTAL 1 4
6 Outside Services

TOTAL AMOUNT EARNED TO DATE 5 6
Maximum Payable per Engineering Agreement
Estimated total cost to complete project for billings after 50
Less Total Amounts Previously Invoiced
PAYMENT DUE THIS INVOICE

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the percent of work shown as complete on this Invoice is correct

By
Printed Name and Title

Department Approval
By

Printed Name and Title

NOTE This format is for general information The Consultantsformat containing essential data may be
acceptable

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 40



ATTACHMENT H

LUMP SUM INVOICE Standard Format

To Chief Engineer From Firm
Illinois Department of Transportation Address

Division of Aeronautics Telephone No
Abraham Lincoln Capital Airport Invoice Date

1 Langhorne Bond Drive Partial Final

Springfield IL 627078415

Attn Section Chief

Airport Municipality IL

Illinois Project No Federal Project No
Notice to Proceed Date OPP Program Letter or Sponsor Authorization
Per AE AgreementAmendment dated

Services Check only those services pertaining to invoice
Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Phase Planning and Special Services
Design Phase Other

Construction Phase Amendments

Service Dates

For Services Rendered From date To date

1 Lump Sum LS Fee or Maximum Payable per Engineering Agreement

2 Percent of Work Complete

3 Fee Earned to Date LS x Complete

4 Less Total AmountsPreviously Invoiced

5 PAYMENT DUE THIS INVOICE

I certify that to the best of my knowledge the percent of work shown as complete on this Invoice is correct

By
Printed Name and Title

Department Approval

By
Printed Name and Title

NOTE This format is for general information The Consultantsformat containing essential data may be
acceptable

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 41



ATTACHMENT I

EFFORT DETAIL BREAKDOWN Standard Format

Page of Pages

Airport
Illinois Project No
Federal Project No

Invoice No

Date

ENGINEERING COSTS BREAKDOWN

Agreement
Employees

Paragraph Service Date
Name and Hours Rate Amount

Governing Performed Performed

Services
Classification

Total

ENGINEERING FIRM

Name

Address

Prepared By

Date

NOTE

This format is for general information however the consultantsformat containing the essential data may
be acceptable

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 42



r

ATTACHMENT J

TESTING SCHEDULE

Testing Schedule anticipated for the Preliminary Assessment and Schematic Design Design and
Construction phases of the project

Description Approximate Number
ASTM D 421 Particle Size Analysis
ASTM D 2217

ASTM C 422

ASTM D 698 Moisture Density Relations of Soil
ASTM D 1557

ASTM D 427 Shrinkage Factors of Soil
ASTM D 2434 Permeability of Granular Soils
AASHTO T 194 Determination of Organic Materials in Soils by Wet
Combustion

ASTM D 1883 Bearing Ratio of Laboratory Compacted Soil
AASHTO T 222 Modulus of Soil Reaction
ASTM D 2487 Soil Classification Unified System
ASTM D 2113 Soil Borings
ASTM C 207 Hydrated Lime
ASTM C 131 Abrasion
ASTM C 88 Soundness
ASTM D 946 Penetration

ASTM D 3381 Viscosity
ASTM D 1559 Marshall Method
ASTM C 136 Gradation
ASTM D 2172 Extraction and Gradation
ASTM D 2726 Bulk Specific Gravity
ASTM D 2041 Maximum Theoretical Specific Gravity
ASTM D 2950 Nuclear Density
ASTM C 117 Washed Aggregate Sample
ASTM D 4318 Liquid Limit Plastic Limit Plasticity Index
ASTM C 127 Absorption and Specific Gravity
ASTM C 128

ASTM C 566 Moisture Content
ASTM C 31 PCC Test Cylinders
ASTM C 141 Slump
ASTM C 231 Air Content
ASTM C 78 Flexural Strength
ASTM C 138 Yield Cement Content
ASTM D 412 Rubber in Tension
ASTM D 1664 Striping Test

The testing form shall be adjusted to the specific project The consultant shall not assume IDOT will
provide any testing and inspections Payment for these services shall be at the rates established in
ATTACHMENT K TESTING RATES COST SUMMARY

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 43



ATTACHMENT K

TESTING RATES COST SUMMARY

DESCRIPTION OF TEST
ESTIMATED COST PER NUMBER

TOTALTEST REQUIRED

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 44



ATTACHMENT L Optional

SUMMARY OF PAYROLL BURDEN AND FIXED COSTS

of Direct

Productive

Payroll

Federal Insurance Contributions Act

State Unemployment Compensation

Federal Unemployment Compensation

WorkmensCompensation Insurance

Paid Holidays Vacation Sick Leave

Bonus

Pension

Group Insurance

TOTAL PAYROLL BURDEN FRINGE COSTS

NOTE

A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 45



ATTACHMENT M Required

SUMMARY OF OVERHEAD AND INDIRECT COSTS

of Direct

Productive

Payroll

Taxes except Federal Income

Business Insurance except keyman insurance insurance including accident
liability and valuable papers

Depreciation and authorization

Administrative unassignable staff time recruiting training and education
severance negotiating new business and office accounting clerical and secretarial
wages and salaries

Reproduction and printing costs

Office Supplies

Computer Costs

Professional services including specialists legal auditing etc

Employees travel expenses not assigned to clients and excluding costs outside
Illinois

Telephone Telegraph and Postage

Recruiting and relocating expense

Training and educational nonsalary expenses

Fees licenses dues publications technical and professional

Utilities and maintenance

Business space rent

Rental of Equipment

Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL OVERHEAD

NOTE A letter from IDOT with approval or provisional payroll burden fringe and general administrative
expense rates must be attached ATTACHMENT S for verification of rates

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 46



ATTACHMENT N

PROJECT CERTIFICATION

Airport Letting Date
IL Project No
Federal Project No
Contract No

Project Description

Pursuant to Federal Aviation Regulations Part 152 as amended and as a condition to receiving any
Federal andor State financial assistance through a Grant Offer from the FAA andor the State of Illinois
Department of Transportation for the proposed airport development project it is hereby represented to the
best of our knowledge information and belief that

1 The Consultant has been selected to provide the necessary professional services for the project
described herein and identified in the Professional Services Request For Qualifications RFQ
Selection Date Required Copy of Retainer attached ATTACHMENT U

2 Project is clearly delineated on the currently approved Airport Layout Plan
Approval Date Required

3 Project is environmentally cleared CatEx EA EIS FONSI

Approval Date Required
4 All CorpsEPA permits and other regulatory agency reviewsapprovalsmitigation have been

satisfied and there are no known encumbrances to the completion of the project
Yes No

5 Plans were prepared in accordance with FAA approved standards and advisory circulars and the
specifications were prepared in accordance with the FAA approved Illinois Standard Specifications
For Construction Of Airports along with the Division of Aeronautics most current Policy
Memorandums and Handout Specifications except as noted by attached Modification of
Standards MOS which has been addressed and justified in the engineering report and submitted
to and approved by the FAA and Engineer of Design Yes No

Approval Date of MOS If applicable
6 The design conforms to the approved project scope Yes No

7 Provisions have been included for safety during construction per guidance explained in FAA AC
15053702F or current Operational Safety on Airports during Construction Yes No

8 The plans special provisions and quantities have been thoroughly checked in accordance with
best management practices by the Consultant for accuracy and consistency and are in
conformance with AC 150530013 latest edition All contract deliverables referenced in Section
IF DELIVERABLES have been submitted received and determined acceptable

Yes No

Date By
Design Engineer Consultant

Date By PE

Project Engineer Consultant

Date By PE

Department Design Engineer

Date By PE

Engineer of Design

DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 47



ATTACHMENT 0

DBE FINAL DOCUMENTATION

Illinois Department
of Transportation

Prime Consultant DBE Subconsultant

Name Name

Address Address

Telephone Telephone

Subject Contract Amounts

Airport Consultant Contract Amount

Illinois Project No DBE Contract Amount
Federal Project No DBE Participation

This documentation verifies the services provided and the amount paid to the DBE Subconsultant on the above
captioned contract The undersigned certifies that the services reported herein were executed by the DBE that
the DBE actually provided the services and that the services reported herein conform to the services reported in
the approved Professional Services Agreement together with any amendments approved by the Sponsor andor
Division as applicable

Description of Service Provided Contract Amount Amount Paid Difference

1

2

3

4

5

6
Totals

DBE Contract amount has been met or exceeded Yes No check one

DBE Contract amount not met Shortfall documentation explaining shortfall attached

Prime Consultant DBE Subconsultant

Print Name Print Name

Title Title

Signature Signature

Date Date

I DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 48



ATTACHMENT P

PROJECT SKETCH

i

ivauIt
Improvements i

i j j

i V Y

1 O Ali

L
f

1 J

f 1
L

Proposed Runway

7 f 1 I Edge Lighting
Rehabilitation

11
Typ

1

1

I

DOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 49



ATTACHMENT 0

PROJECT LETTING SCHEDULE

PRELIMINARY PROJECT SCHEDULE

The proposed project schedule is shown below

Schedule Item Due Date

Project Pre design Estimate 121514

Engineering Report 35 January 9 2015
AgencyOwner Review Comments January 23 2015
Preliminary Plans 80 March 20 2015

AgencyOwner Review Comments April 3 2015
Final Plans 100 June 5 2015
IDOT Service Bulletin June 26 2015
IDOT Letting July 31 2015
Anticipated Start of Work September 25 2015

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard AE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 50



ATTACHMENT R

OPP PROGRAM LETTER

EXCERPTS FROM IDOT PROGRAMMING LETTER

Vi Illinois Department of Transportation
Office of Planning and Programming
2300 South D rksen Parkway Springfield IllinO4s f 62764

May 31 2013

Mr Dave Fienner
Airport Board Secretary
Dixon Municipal Airport
PO Box 386

Dixon Illinois 61021 9032

Dear Mr Flenner

For Fiscal Year 2014 the Illinois Department of TransportationsProposed Airport
Improvement Program includes projects at airports throughout the state to ensure
continued safe and efficient operations at these facilities as well as maximizing
opportunities for economic development in Illinois

Following for your tformation are t federally funded projects for your airport
that are included in the Federal Fiscal Year FFY 2014 Proposed Airport
Improvement Program This program is based on federal fun levels
established in the current federal funding kOslation which provide for a minimum
of 1 million ni entitlement funds for primary airports as well as 150000
entitlements for nonprimary airports Tte federal legislation calls for a 90 federal
match and the state and focal match will be 5 for all projects which are eligible
for state funding All other federal projects win refire a 10 local match

The projects included in the program were selected frown the many projects that
were submitted as the result of the fan of 2012 Transportation Improvement
Program TIP meetings Federal state and kcal parities weighed heavily in the
selection process

The FFY 2013 and prior program contains the following federal projects for your
airport

Rehabilitate lights on both Entitlement 5235391
runways State Apportionment SO

Discretionary 50
State Match 57304
Local Match 57305

Total 5250000

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 51



ATTACHMENT S

CURRENT IDOT PROVISIONAL PAYROLL BURDEN FRINGE EXPENSE AND GENERAL

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSE RATE LETTER

CALENDAR YEAR 2013

PROVISIONAL 2014 62015

CMT ACCOUNT OF DIRECT

NUMBER ACCOUNT NAME LABOR COSTS

PAYROLL BURDEN AND FRINGE BENNEFITS

6151 FICA Tax 1146

6102 6103 6170 Paid Time Off Vacation Holidays and Sick Leave 1799

6154 6156 6158 Group Medical Life Workers Comp Disability and Unemployment Insurance 1276

6159 6160 Employee Retirement Plan Contributions 1460 5681

GENERAL ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD EXPENSE

61046119 Indirect Salaries Not Allocable to Projects 3923

6222 6264 Miscellaneous Taxes 90

6231 Professional Fees 168

6251 Rent 906

6252 Utilities 107

6271 Telephone Data 359

62536254 Maintenance Repairs 186

6261 6265 Office Supplies Shipping Reproduction 159

6281 6284 Seminars Registration Education 229

62919295632123 Travel Vehicle Expense 256

6331 6332 Business Insurance 313

635152616269 Equipment Expense Repairs Maintenance 95

6366 6367 6368 Computer Expense Supplies 536

6371637263816382 Maps Reference Books Engineering Survey Supplies 58

6401 COFC Depreciation Cost of Facilities Capital 27 603 7988

TOTAL OVERHEAD 13669

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014
Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 52



ATTACHMENT T

CONSULTANTSPRELIMINARY ESTIMATE OF PROBABLE CONSTRUCTION COSTS

0
Illinois Department of Transportation err
Division of Aeronautics r111 r

2012 TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM

ESTIMATE OF WORK

r rpoilattleWDixon Municipal Airport Charles R Walgreen Field C73
s Dixon IL

A 2014 F 2

Rehab Runway 826 and 1230 Lighting Circuits

YTEM t1E5CRYsrld1l

EXCAVATION

CleanngGrubbing
Earthwork CY 53500

DRAINAGE

Underdrains LF 52200

Pipe LF 56500

Curb and Gutter LF 52000

Special Structures EACH 5250000

PAVING

Subbase Preparation SY 51320

Porous Granular Embankment CY 55000

401 TON 57500

501 SY 58000

PCC Sidewalk 5 SF 5500

Pavement Removal SY 5750

Grooving
Special

LIGHTING
Fixtures Signs NewReiocated 40 EA 575000 53000000 5300000 1000
Cable Transformers 16000 LF 5750 512000000 5450000 375

Regulators 2 EA 51500000 53000000
Vault RehabiktationWork 1 LS 51000000 51000000

Special 1 LS 51500000 51500000

LANDSCAPING

SeedingMulchingBlanket
Sodding

Watering
Special Wetlands

FENCING

Class C

Class E

Gates ManuaWEieclnc

OTHER MISC

Marking
Demolition

Other Specialty ttems
EngineeringContingencyAdmin 1 LS 54500000 54500000

Studies EIS Drainage MP
Land Acquisition

525000000 5750000 300

PAGE 1 OF 1 1162013

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 53



ATTACHMENT U

RETAINER AGREEMENT

See Project No 3

AGREEMENT FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES

THIS AGREEMENT made at Dixon Illinois thisLthi day of iStilalorin the year 2014 by and
between the City of Dixon hereinafter referred to as the Owner as Party of the First Part and Crawford
Murphy Tilly Inc hereinafter referred to as the Engineer as Party of the Second Part

W ITNESSETH

WHEREAS the Owner intends to sponsor the accomplishment of a development program in stages
of the public air navigation facilities known as the Dixon Municipal Airport Charles R Walgreen Field
located in Latitude 41 5002N Longitude 89 2677 W in Lee County State of Illinois and

WHEREAS the development program shall include projects described as

1 Acquire Avigation Easement 95 Acres for Runway Protection Zone and Obstruction Removal on
Runway 8 Approach

2 Install Perimeter Fence along North Property Line Phase 1

3 Rehabilitate Runway 826 and 1230 Lighting Circuits

4 Acquire Land for Runway Proection Zone RPZ and object removal for Runway 12

5 Construct Replacement THangar

6 Rehabilitate the airport entrance road and diagonal parking pavements

7 Install perimeter fencing along north property line Phase 2

8 Prepare an Environmental Assessment for the construct of a new primary runway and related
development

9 Acquire Burkett lands 75 acres in fee simple for the development of new Runway 826

10 Acquire Hill lands 76 acres in fee simple and provide relocation assistance for the development of
new Runway 826

11 Install perimeter fencing along east property line Phase 3

12 Relocate Township Road Burkett Road4650 linear feet with a 20foot paved section Relocate
natural gas power and telephone lines

13 Construct grading and drainage for new Runway 826

14 Pave Light and mark new Runway 8265000 feet long 100 feet wide and with a pavement strength
of 60000 pounds dual wheel gear

15 Consultation on FAA requirements regarding airport development issues including grant assurance
compliance

16 Preparation of or updaterevision of the Exhibit A Property Line Map Airport Layout Plan Part 150
study Master Drainage Study and Environmental Assessments as necessary

17 Land acquisitionlandacquisition reimbursement including various plat preparation such as appraisal
plats easements plats of survey etc clear zone obstructions surveys technical advising and
environmental site assessments

18 Preparation of project pre applicationsapplications and Transportation Improvement ProgramTIP
sheets

1

IDOT Division of Aeronautics December 3 2014

Standard NE Agreement 201201 Rehabilitate Runway Lighting System

Page 54



6

City of Dixon 13 F
December 15 2014

Topic INTERFUND LOAN FROM CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND TO
CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TIF

Presented By Paula Meyer

Presentation

The City Council approved the FY15 budget to appropriate all current and future Central
Business District TIF funds to finance the 10 block Downtown Streetscape project The
6200000 project will use approximately2500000 from the Central Business District
TIF

Because1575000 of those monies will be collected from future TIF tax levies it
becomes necessary to lend the Central Business District TIF the1575000 until those
levies are collected

The Central Business District TIF will repay the interfund loan as follows

Repayment date Amount

December 15 2015 175000
December 15 2016 175000
December 15 2017 175000
December 15 2018 175000
December 15 2019 175000
December 15 2020 175000
December 15 2021 175000
December 15 2022 175000
December 15 2023 175000

1575000

The Central Business District TIF has an agreement with other taxing bodies affected by
the TIF Repayments to the Capital Projects Fund will be made after the annual
obligations to these taxing bodies are satisfied

Recommendation

The administration recommends the Council approve the accompanying resolution for an
interfund loan of1575000 from the Capital Projects Fund to the Central Business
District TIF fund



RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING AN INTERFUND LOAN FROM THE CAPITAL

PROJECT FUND TO THE CENTRAL BUSINESS DISTRICT TIF FUND

WHEREAS the City Council for the City of Dixon hereinafter referred to as Council
has accumulated significant cash in the Capital Project Fund and

WHEREAS the Council has undertaken a Downtown Streetscape project which costs are
expected to be in excess of6200000 of which2500000 will be paid from the Central
Business District TIF Funds as approved in the fiscal year 2015 budget and

WHEREAS the Council is anticipating a future total of Central Business District TIF
funds of1575000 to pay Central Business District TIF obligations and

WHEREAS there is currently 0 in available cash in the Central Business District TIF
Fund and

WHEREAS the Council has reviewed the needs of the City and deems it advisable and
in the best interests of the City to lend a portion of available Capital Project Fund monies to the
Central Business District TIF Fund to be reimbursed over the lifespan of the Central Business
District TIF as revenues are received and available for such purpose

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Dixon that
the Finance Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed to lend1575000 to the
Central Business District TIF toward payment of costs associated with the Downtown
Streetscape project which costs are estimated at6200000

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Dixon that the Finance
Director of the City is hereby authorized and directed to repay the capital project fund as monies
are available in the Central Business District TIF Fund for such purpose

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City Council finds that all of the recitals
contained in the preambles to this Resolution are full true and correct and does incorporate them
into this Resolution by reference

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that all resolutions and parts of resolutions in conflict
herewith are to the extent of such conflict hereby repealed

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from

and after the date of its passage and approval and publication as required by law

2



Passed by the Mayor and the City Council of the City of Dixon on December 15 2014

Mayor
ATTEST

City Clerk

3


